
Agenda compiled by: 
Guy Close 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Tel: 24 74356 

 
 
 

Principal Scrutiny Advisor: 
Kate Arscott 
Tel: 24 74189 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

A 

 

 
 
 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN'S SERVICES) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 

Thursday, 9th July, 2009 at 9.45 am 
 

(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.15 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

B Cleasby - Horsforth; 

J Dowson - Chapel Allerton; 

G Driver - Middleton Park; 

R D Feldman - Alwoodley; 

B Gettings - Morley North; 

W Hyde (Chair) - Temple Newsam; 

G Kirkland - Otley and Yeadon; 

B Lancaster - Moortown; 

K Renshaw - Ardsley and Robin Hood; 

B Selby - Killingbeck and Seacroft; 

E Taylor - Chapel Allerton; 

 
Co-opted Members (Voting) 

Mr E A Britten - Church Representative (Catholic) 
Prof P H J H Gosden - Church Representative (Church of England) 
Mr B Wanyonyi - Parent Governor Representative (Secondary) 
Mr I Falkingham - Parent Governor Representative (Special) 
Mrs S Knights - Parent Governor Representative (Primary) 

 
Co-opted Members (Non-Voting) 

Ms C Johnson - Teacher Representative 
Ms C Foote - Teacher Representative 
Mrs S Hutchinson - Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership 
Ms J Morris-Boam - Leeds VOICE Children and Young People Services 

Forum Representative 
Ms T Kayani - Leeds Youth Work Partnership Representative 

 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information 
Rules (in the event of an Appeal the press and 
public will be excluded.) 
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting.) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 No exempt items or information have 

been identified on this agenda. 
 

 



 

C 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration.  
 
(The special circumstance shall be specified in the 
minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the 
purpose of Section 81(3) of the Local Government 
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of the Members’ 
Code of Conduct.  
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES - 11TH JUNE 2009 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 11th June 2009. 
 

1 - 6 

7   
 

  REQUEST FOR SCRUTINY - CITY OF LEEDS 
HIGH SCHOOL 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development which invites 
the Board to consider a request for scrutiny relating 
to consultation on the proposal to close City of 
Leeds High School and replace it with an 
Academy. 
 

7 - 10 

8   
 

  LEEDS STRATEGIC PLAN PERFORMANCE 
REPORT FOR QUARTER 4 2008/09 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Policy, Performance and Improvement which 
outlines progress against improvement priorities 
relevant to the Board at Quarter 4 2008/09. 
 

11 - 
64 



 

D 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

9   
 

  SCRUTINY INQUIRY - 14-19 EDUCATION 
REVIEW 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development which updates 
Members on progress with the 14-19 education 
review. 
 

65 - 
74 

10   
 

  YOUTH SERVICE USER AND NON-USER 
SURVEYS 2009 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Director 
of Children’s Services presenting the Youth 
Service user and non-user surveys 2009. 
 

75 - 
114 

11   
 

  DRAFT TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR 
SCRUTINY INQUIRY - POPULATION GROWTH 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development which invites 
the Board to agree terms of reference on the 
implications of population growth for children’s 
services in Leeds. 
 

115 - 
116 

12   
 

  WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To receive a report from the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development which outlines the Scrutiny 
Board’s work programme for the remainder of the 
current municipal year. 
 

117 - 
146 

13   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
To note that the next meeting of the Board will be 
held on Thursday 17th September 2009 at 9.45 am 
with a pre meeting for Board Members at 9.15 am. 
 

 

 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 9th July, 2009 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN'S SERVICES) 
 

THURSDAY, 11TH JUNE, 2009 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor W Hyde in the Chair 

 Councillors B Cleasby, G Driver, R D Feldman, 
G Kirkland, B Lancaster, K Renshaw and E Taylor 
 

CO-OPTED MEMBERS (VOTING): 
 

 Mr E A Britten - Church Representative 
(Catholic) 

 Prof P H J H Gosden - Church Representative 
(Church of England) 

 Mrs S Knights - Parent Governor 
Representative (Primary) 

 Mr B Wanyonyi - Parent Governor 
Representative (Secondary) 

CO-OPTED MEMBERS (NON-VOTING): 
 

 Ms C Foote - Teacher Representative 
 
 
 

1 Chair's Opening Remarks.  
 

The Chair welcomed everyone present to the first meeting of the Scrutiny 
Board (Children’s Services) of the 2009/10 Municipal Year. 
 

2 Declaration of Interests  
 

Councillor Driver declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 10, Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee Referral, due to his membership of the 
Corporate Governance and Audit Committee.  (minute No. 136 refers.) 
 
 

3 Apologies for Absence  
 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Dowson, 
Gettings and Selby; and Co-opted Members: Mr Falkingham, Ms Johnson, 
Mrs Hutchinson, Ms J Morris-Boam and Ms T Kayani. 
 

4 Minutes - 7th May 2009  
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 May 2009, be 
confirmed as a correct record. 
 

5 Appointment of Co-opted Members  
 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 9th July, 2009 

 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development sought 
Member’s approval for the appointment of Co-opted Members to the Board.  
Details of current arrangements were contained in the report. 
 
RESOLVED –   
 
(1) That the re-appointment of Professor Gosden (Church Representative - 
Church of England) and Mr Britten (Church Representative - Roman Catholic) 
as voting co-opted members of the Board for 2009/10 be confirmed; 
  

(2) That the continued appointment of Mr Wanyonyi (Parent Governor 
Representative - Secondary), Mr Falkingham (Parent Governor 
Representative - Special) and Mrs Knights (Parent Governor Representative - 
Primary) be noted; 
  

(3) That Ms Foote and Ms Johnson (Teacher Representatives), Mrs 
Hutchinson (Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership 
Representative), Ms Kayani (Youth Work Partnership Representative) and Ms 
Morris-Boam (Leeds VOICE Children and Young People Services Forum 
Representative) be appointed as non-voting co-opted members of the Board 
for 2009/10. 
 

6 Constitutional Amendments  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development provided the 
Board with information and guidance which reflected recent amendments to 
the Council’s Constitution, as agreed by the Council on 21 May 2009 and 
which directly related to and/or made an impact on the work of Scrutiny 
Boards. 
 
Members’ attention was brought to the Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) 
provisions which would give opportunity for Elected Members to raise matters 
for consideration by the Council’s Scrutiny Boards.  In response to a question 
regarding the obligation of partner and neighbouring authorities to participate 
in scrutiny requests, it was reported that further guidance was awaited on this. 
  
RESOLVED –  
 

(1) That the amendments to the Council’s Constitution as outlined in 
the report, be noted. 

(2) That the likely changes resulting from the Secretary of State 
regulations regarding the provision of information from partner 
authorities be noted. 

 
7 Input to the Work Programme 2009/10 - Sources of Work and 

Establishing the Board's Priorities  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development provided 
information and guidance to assist the Board to develop its Work Programme 
for 2009/10. 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 9th July, 2009 

 

 
Relevant information from the following key sources was attached to the 
report to assist Members: 
 

• Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 to 2011 – Executive Summary 

• Building Brighter Futures: The Leeds Children and Young People’s 
Plan 2009-14 – immediate priorities and long term ambitions 

• List of scrutiny work undertaken in the past 5 years 
 
The Chair welcomed the following to the meeting to contribute to the 
discussion about the Board’s Work Programme: 
 

• Councillor Stuart Golton – Executive Member for Children’s Services 

• Councillor Richard Harker – Executive Member for Learning 

• Rosemary Archer – Director of Children’s Services 

• Chris Edwards – Chief Executive, Education Leeds 
 

The following issues were highlighted as potential areas for scrutiny: 
 

• Ongoing focus on safeguarding – including domestic violence 

• Launch of the new Children and Young People’s Plan 

• Changes in the way 14-19 services are provided 

• The number of young people not in education, employment or training 
(NEET) 

• New policy framework for schools – 21st century schools 

• Young people’s priority around places to go and things to do 

• Aiming High for Disabled Children 

• Children’s Trust Arrangements – further guidance from Government has 
been deferred for a year 

• The impact of population growth on Schools and other Children’s 
Services. 

• National Year of Volunteering – how to involve and recruit young people. 

• The Rose Review of the primary curriculum– including the 
recommendation that children started school in the term after their 4th 
birthday 

• Replacement of the Learning and Skills Council – complex issues at 
regional and sub regional level, transfer of responsibilities to the Council 

• Anticipated reductions in funding for education over the next ten years. 

• Community use of school grounds and buildings. 

• Locality working and the need to ensure services are fit for local needs. 

• Post 16 education for young people with special educational needs. 
 
In response to Members’ comments and questions, the following issues were 
discussed: 
 

• Additional tuition entitlement for low achievers and any potential 
detrimental effect on routine class teaching – it was not envisaged that 
additional teaching for low achievers would create a problem. 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 9th July, 2009 

 

• Safer schools – how to change the way that communities engaged with 
schools and how the police could be involved in learning. 

• How to assist those not in education, employment or training (NEETs).  
It was suggested that a representative of Prospects be invited to a 
future meeting to discuss this. 

• Personal, Health and Social Education (PHSE) – issues surrounding 
the provision of sex and relationships education and different levels of 
teaching across schools.  Related issues included teenage conception 
rates. 

• Improving attendance. 

• The impact of different models of school organisation including trusts, 
federations and academies. 

• Sharing of best practice between schools. 
 
RESOLVED – That the information presented with the report and discussion 
with those present be used towards the development of the Board’s Work 
Programme. 
 
(Councillor Driver declared an interest in this item as a prospective governor 
at the College of Building. Councillor Renshaw declared an interest in this 
item as a governor at Seven Hill Primary, East Ardsley Primary and Rodillian 
High Schools. Councillor Lancaster declared an interest in this item in relation 
to her roles as governor at Carr Manor High School and member of the West 
Yorkshire Police Authority.) 
 

8 Corporate Governance and Audit Committee referral  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which 
gave details on a referral for scrutiny from Corporate Governance and Audit 
Committee. 
 
The following concerns had been highlighted by the Corporate Governance 
and Audit Committee following receipt of the Audit Commission’s Annual Audit 
and Inspection Letter: 
 

• The outcomes relating to Children and Young People, particularly 
infant mortality, fostering and the timeliness of reviews of looked after 
children, and whether they were caused by problems with leadership 
and management or resources; 

• The high proportion of young people not in employment, education or 
training 

 
The Committee had subsequently resolved to refer these issues to the 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) to investigate these matters further. 
 
Members attention was brought to monitoring of the Joint Area Review and 
Annual Performance Assessment which demonstrated ongoing work on some 
of the areas of concern whilst others fell under the remit of health partners.  It 
was reported that there was to be a re-inspection of the foster service and all 
the matters of concern were already under consideration. 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 9th July, 2009 

 

 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted and that Corporate Governance and 
Audit Committee be informed of the work already being undertaken by the 
Scrutiny Board on these topics.  
 

9 KPMG - Scrutiny Review - May 2009  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development presented the 
findings of the recent KPMG external audit review of the Scrutiny function in 
Leeds.  It also detailed management’s response to the review 
recommendations. 
 
Issues discussed in relation to the recommendations outlined in the KPMG 
report included Elected Member training, single item agendas, the amount of 
information sent to Members and specific training for Chairs. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted and the Board’s comments be passed 
to the Scrutiny Advisory Group. 
 

10 Executive Board referral  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development gave details of 
a referral for scrutiny from Executive Board.  This followed the Scrutiny Inquiry 
report of the Scrutiny Board (City and Regional Partnerships) into the role of 
the voluntary, community and faith sector (VCFS) in council led community 
engagement. 
 
The report detailed previous instances of the Board’s recommendations, 
namely the Inquiries into the Youth Services and into Services for 8 to 13 
Year Olds.  This had been acknowledged by the Scrutiny Board (City and 
Regional Partnerships) in its report.  Further discussion focussed on funding 
for VCFS organisations and concern that further scrutiny of related areas 
could lead to duplication. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted and comment be submitted back to 
Executive Board. 
 

11 Determining the Work Programme for 2009/10  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which 
requested Members to determine the Work Programme for 2009/10.  A draft 
work programme was appended to the report. 
 
Further to earlier discussion, the following issues were highlighted: 
 

• Primary school places and effects of the increase in birth rates and the 
Rose Review. 

• Post 16 Special Educational Needs provision. 

• Safeguarding 

• NEETs 

Page 5



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 9th July, 2009 

 

• Quarterly Performance Information 
 
It was also suggested that new Members needed to be contacted regarding 
availability for ongoing Working Groups. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report and discussion be noted and that the Principal 
Scrutiny Adviser produce a draft work programme based on the earlier 
discussion of priority issues, to be confirmed at the next meeting of the Board. 
 
(Councillors Lancaster and Feldman left the meeting at 12.00 and 12.15 
respectively during consideration of this item.) 
 

12 Draft Report - Education Standards - Entering the Education System  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted the draft report 
following the Board’s Inquiry into Education Standards – Entering the 
Education System. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 

(1) That the Board’s final report and recommendations be agreed. 
(2) That a formal response to the recommendations be produced in line 

with normal procedures for scrutiny inquiry reports. 
 

13 Dates of Future Meetings  
 

Thursday, 9 July 2009 
Thursday, 17 September 2009 
Thursday, 15 October 2009 
Thursday, 12 November 2009 
Thursday, 10 December 2009 
Thursday, 28 January 2010 
Thursday, 25 February 2010 
Thursday, 25 March 2010 
Thursday, 22 April 2010 
 
 
 

Page 6



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) 
 
Date: 9 July 2009 
 
Subject: Request for Scrutiny – City of Leeds High School 
 

        
 
 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 A request for scrutiny has been received from Councillors Ewens and Pryke, who 

have been invited to attend the Board meeting to briefly outline the reason for the 
request. The request relates to consultation on the proposal to close City of Leeds 
High School and replace it with an Academy. A letter from the councillors is attached. 

1.2 The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules state that a Board “…..shall consider a request 
from any (other) source to conduct an Inquiry.  All such requests for an Inquiry must 
be submitted in writing to the Proper Officer. The Proper Officer shall add the request 
to the agenda for the next Ordinary Meeting of the relevant Scrutiny Board. The 
Proper Office shall acknowledge all such requests for an Inquiry. At the next Ordinary 
Meeting, the Scrutiny Board shall consider any request for an Inquiry which the Proper 
Officer has added to the agenda.  

1.3 Where the request has not come from the Executive or the Council, the person or 
body making the request will be invited to attend the Board’s meeting to explain the 
reasons for the request. The Scrutiny Board Chair will decide how much time will be 
given to the person or body for addressing the Scrutiny Board. The Proper Officer will 
inform whoever submitted the request and any other relevant parties about the 
decision of the Scrutiny Board.” 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Kate Arscott 
 

Tel: 247 4189 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



2.0 OPTIONS FOR INVESTIGATIONS AND INQUIRIES 
 
2.1 The Scrutiny Board is required to consider whether an Inquiry into this matter is 

appropriate and if so, what form that Inquiry shall take. 
 

2.2 When deciding whether the Board will pursue a request for Scrutiny, it is important for 
Members to consider the request in the context of the Board’s terms of reference, its 
existing Work Programme and commitments. 

 

3.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 

3.1 The Board is asked to consider the request for Scrutiny and to consider whether 
further investigation is to be undertaken. 

 
 
Background papers 
 
Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



 

Report of the Head of Policy, Performance and Improvement 
 
Children’s Services Scrutiny Board 
 
Date: 9th July 2009 
 
Subject: Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 4 2008/09 
 

        
 

 
 
1.0  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Since April 2008 and the introduction of the Leeds Strategic Plan and Council 
Business Plan we have seen a significant change to the council’s accountability 
processes, in particular, the identification of lead and contributory officers for each 
improvement priority and the introduction of a reporting process that will provide a 
single source of performance information to be used by the full range of different 
stakeholders in the accountability process. 

 
At the end of the first year of delivery of the Leeds Strategic Plan and Local Area 
Agreement this report provides an overview by exception (i.e. red and amber) on the 
progress against improvement priorities relevant to the Board at Quarter 4 2008/09.  

 
2.0 Purpose of this Report 

2.1 This report provides a strategic overview of performance against those improvement 
priorities within the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11, and specifically in relation to 
Children’s Services  priorities.  In particular the Action Tracker Summary Sheet 
(appendix 1) provides an overall assessment of progress against each of the 
improvement priorities relevant to the Board; a rating of Red, Amber or Green is 
applied to indicate the status of each improvement priority. 

 
2.2 In appendix 2 to this report the Action Trackers are provided on an exception basis for 

those areas of under performance and/or of concern in relation to the improvement 
priorities for Children’s Services within the Leeds Strategic Plan, as at 31st March 
2009.  In addition, performance indicator information is provided for the full National 
Indicator Set together with any locally agreed indicators where appropriate.  Through 
this process the Board receives the full set of performance indicator information. 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originator:  Marilyn Summers 
 

 

Tel:  39 50786  

 

 

 
 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
  

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 11



3.0 Background Information 
 
3.1 Executive Board approved a new corporate planning framework for the council in July 

2007.  The strategic element of this framework includes two high level plans which set 
the policy objectives for the organisation and our partnership working.  These are: 

 
ØØØØ Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 to 2011 - which sets out the customer/citizen 

(external) focused strategic outcomes being sought by the council and its 
partners for the city.  This plan includes our requirements to produce a Local 
Area Agreement and is the main delivery mechanism for the Vision for Leeds 
2004 to 2020. 

ØØØØ Council Business Plan 2008 to 2011 - which sets out what the council needs 
to do internally to enable the organisation to achieve the Leeds Strategic Plan.  
That is outlining the business development, organisational change, process 
transformation and financial planning activities that we will be undertaking over 
the next three years.   

3.2 Both these plans include a set of outcomes, improvement priorities and aligned 
performance indicators with three year targets.  Through our performance reporting 
and accountability arrangements we need to track our progress against the 
improvement priorities as well as against the indicators to provide both a qualitative 
and quantitative picture of performance.  This is because the scope of most of the 
improvement priorities is wider than that of the performance indicator and without 
some form of contextual reporting we would not be able to capture or monitor this 
progress. 

3.3 Within this report the following information is provided: 

Appendix 1 Action Tracker Summary Sheet - this sheet sets out all the 
improvement priorities relevant to the Board and shows the full set of overall progress 
traffic lights. 

Appendix 2 Action Trackers – this appendix includes the action trackers for the 
improvement priorities that have been given an amber or red rating for overall 
progress.  There is a guidance sheet to assist members in interpreting the information 
provided. 

Appendix 3 Performance Indicator Report – this appendix provides a full 
performance indicator report including the year end results for all strategic, national 
and local indicators organised by Directorate. 

4.0 Main Issues - Progress Towards Improvement Priorities 

The Children’s Services Scrutiny portfolio contains 14 improvement priorities. 4 of 
which are rated green, 10 amber and 0 red. The overall progress summary is 
provided below for each of the improvement priorities rated as amber as recorded on 
the action tracker. 

Thriving Places 
 
TP-3b - Reduce the number of children in poverty. 
Leeds' bid for Beacon Status for tackling child poverty helped to raise the profile of the 
importance of adopting a corporate and city wide approach to tackling this tough 
issue. Reducing the child poverty is now a priority within the Leeds Strategic Plan and 
this has been carried through into the Children and Young people's plan.  A Child 
Poverty Outcome Group has been established to coordinate the work on Tackling 

Page 12



Child Poverty across the city and they first met in mid May 2009 and are working to 
agree the basket of indicators against which the effectiveness of this work will be 
measured. 
 
TP-3c - Develop extended services, using sites across the city, to improve 
support to children, families and communities. 
80% (212/264) of all schools in Leeds now provide all 5 elements of the full core offer 
of extended service:  childcare; a varied menu of activities; swift and easy access to 
services; parental support; and, community use of schools and other buildings.  Clear 
strategies are in place to meet the national target of 85% of all schools providing 
access to the core offer by September 2009.   
 
Evidence from external evaluation continues to confirm that clusters of schools and 
children's centres across the city are making good progress in delivering integrated 
children's and family services and in raising the profile of extended services with 
schools and other partners.  Clusters are at different stages of development but 
overall there is confidence in the capacity to further develop and improve. Areas for 
development include targeted youth support, business planning and access for 
vulnerable groups and those with disabilities or additional needs. Work to improve the 
range of outcomes for children (e.g. attainment and engagement), young people and 
families is incorporated into each cluster action plan. 
 

Health and Well being 
 
HW-2a - Reduce teenage conception and improve sexual health. 
The reduction in Leeds for 2007 of 4.6% from the 1998 baseline is very positive. This 
is the first reduction for 4 years and although it cannot yet be said to be a downward 
trend, it is contrary to the national direction for 2007 in which the majority of the Core 
Cities increased. The rate for Leeds is 48.1 conceptions per 1000 female population 
aged 15-17 (677 conceptions), still above the national rate of 41.7. 
 
National research and guidance is for each Authority to have certain key elements in 
place for a sustained reduction to be achieved.  If any are weak or missing then it is 
difficult to maintain momentum in terms of reduction. These key elements are the 
basis of the work programme for the Teenage Pregnancy and Parenthood Partnership 
and are set out in the 'Local Teenage Pregnancy Strategy Self Assessment Toolkit: 
prevention and support - an outcomes-focused self assessment toolkit'.  Due to the 
fact that teenage pregnancy and parenthood cuts across a large number of services 
and agencies it is not easy to maintain the momentum for improvement in each area. 
 
There has been substantial and continued progress in strategy, data, communication 
and supporting school age parents.  There is the opportunity for further improvement 
in SRE, CASH, Targeted, IYSS and Maternal services; and Child Health.  Areas 
where progress is slower, for a wide variety of reasons, include raising aspirations, 
work with parents/carers and supporting teenage parents to achieve better outcomes 
and economic well being. There has also been progress on linking Teenage 
Pregnancy and Parenthood with other relevant strategies, e.g. Infant Mortality.  Work 
is still continuing to ensure better fit with other appropriate strategies, e.g., Housing, 
Parenting. 
 

Page 13



HW-2b - Improve the assessment and care management of children. 
Progress has been made on the timeliness of Core Assessments despite an increase 
in referrals and children becoming looked after.  The Children and Young People's 
Social Care Service has performed well in light of the increase in anxiety from partner 
agencies around the city following the fall-out from the Baby P case in Haringey. The 
Service has worked with staff on developing and now implementing a project to 
improve the quality and processes involved with assessment and care management. 
This project has a high degree of support in all tiers of the service. The capacity to 
improve in the areas of assessment and care management is good. 
 
HW-3a - Improve psychological, mental health and learning disability services 
for those who need it. 
Emotional Health - using ONS data, the needs assessment within Leeds estimates 
that at any one time at least 14,000 children will have some significant emotional 
health difficulty.  Emotional health is 'everybody's business ' and the Strategy has set 
out what services are required to meet the emotional health needs of children and 
young people in Leeds.  In previous years, performance targets have focussed on 
Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services but this is now changing to monitor 
emotional health in a broader sense.  Monitoring this is challenging, new processes 
are being introduced and further national guidance is awaited to enable baselines and 
targets to be established. 
 
Disability - the Disability Strategy is the overarching framework for the next three 
years, outlining required areas of service transformation.  It sets out key strategic 
objectives 2008 to 2011 underpinned by a more detailed work programme.  This is 
closely aligned to the national drivers such as Aiming High for Disabled Children and 
with local strategies on Inclusion and Emotional Health.  In Leeds 19.5% of children 
have been identified as having some special educational need. Work is on-going to 
develop a robust information set and needs assessment for the total population. A key 
achievement has been to increase the availability of Short Break provision.  Further 
detail on work streams is listed in the action tracker.  In previous years there have not 
been specific national performance indicators so a new indicator is being developed 
and initial work has just been completed in 30 pilot sites. 
 
HW-3d - Improve safeguarding arrangements for vulnerable children and adults 
through better information, recognition and response to risk. 
Progress has been made on timeliness of assessments and on initial and review of 
child protection conferences and this impacts positively on this priority.  Looked after 
children numbers have decreased slightly but not in line with the challenging targets 
set. There is a recognition however, that this is a key priority across children's 
services requiring action from all partners and that it will take time to safely reduce the 
numbers. 
 
The indicator alone does not capture the complexity of making progress against this 
priority , which can only be understood in conjunction with the Social Care 
Transformation Programme.    
 
Learning 
 
LN-1c - Improve learning outcomes and skill levels for all 19 year olds. 
There have been steady improvements in the proportion of young people achieving 
level 2 qualifications.  The proportion achieving Level 3 remains a challenge. Initial 
analysis of the national data for 2007/08 published 30/04/09 shows that level 2 
performance has increased to 68% (6218/9110).  This is an increase of 3.8% points 
and is slightly above the national increase of 2.7% however with a national level of 

Page 14



76.7% a significant gap remains. Level 3 in Leeds has increased from 41% to 42% 
(3848/9110) with the gap to the national figure marginally widening, as national 
performance went up 1.7% to 49.8%. Progress to deliver key activities is largely on 
track but this has not yet resulted in step changes to outcomes.  Complex changes to 
the structure of 14-19 provision designed to transform outcomes are currently being 
implemented across the city along with increased personalisation of learning 
pathways and new learning options such as Diplomas. 
 
LN-1d - Increase the proportion of vulnerable groups engaged in education, 
training or employment. 
The baseline for NEET was set in 2007 at 9.1%.   Performance declined to 10% in 
2007/08 however there has been a reduction in the number of young people NEET 
from last year back down to 9.5% (2,246 young people).  This fall has not met the 
annual target of 8.9% (2,104 young people).  However the main Connexions service 
has now been recomissioned and the new provider, Prospects, in place from April 
2009, will make improvements to Connexions delivery leading to improved 
performance by a) working more closely with schools to ensure the right young people 
get the Connexions support at the right time and b) by improving referral processes 
into appropriate education or training for young people who are NEET. Other 
Connexions contracts are being recomissioned.   
 
Whilst a NEET Strategy Group has been established it's leadership and membership 
is being reviewed in the light of performance against this target.   In addition to 
specific risks the overall risks against the achievement of this target are: - the impact 
of the economic recession; budget cutbacks within central and local government; data 
quality and availability and duplication and inefficiencies. 
 
LN-1e - Improve participation and early learning outcomes for all children, with 
a focus on families in deprived areas. 
Confirmed results of outcomes from the 2007/08 academic year are now available, 
Key Stage 2 performance remains in line with previous years and with national 
results.  City-wide results at Key Stage 1 have declined and overall performance has 
remained static in the Early Years Foundation Stage.  A range of strategies are in 
place to ensure sustained improvements in attainment at the Early Years Foundation 
Stage, Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2.     
 
At this point in the year it is not yet possible to provide an update on outcomes for the 
current academic year. The next stage is that pupils will be assessed in the summer 
term, and provisional results will start to become available during the summer break. 
National Strategies have recently undertaken an audit of early years provision, based 
on a self-evaluation, and have judged provision to be amber. 
 
Harmonious Communities 
 
HM-1a - An increased number of local people engaged in activities to meet 
community needs and improve the quality of life for local residents. 
Progress is largely being driven through two complementary processes. At a city wide 
level, the VCFS Partnership Group established by the Narrowing the Gap Board of 
the Leeds Initiative has established a sub-group on Active Citizenship. This Sub-
group has a focus on the NI6 and its work programme is focused on increasing 
volunteering opportunities and improving access to these.  At a local level, Area 
Committees have started to enable a wider range of opportunities for engagement 
and supported a number of community led activities through their use of well-being 
funds.   
 

Page 15



Work to engage young people is being led by Children's Services particularly through 
the Integrated Youth Support Service. Key developments are the introduction of an 
integrated youth activities offer called the Breeze Youth Offer and a new Management 
Information Project designed to capture engagement across the newly integrated 
service which has brought the former Connexions and Youth Services together.  

 
5.0 Recommendation 

5.1 That members of Scrutiny Board note the content of the report and comment on any 
particular performance issues of concern. 

 

Background Papers 

Council Business Plan 2008 - 2011 
Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 - 2011 

Page 16



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
r 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0
8
-0

9

C
o

d
e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r

C
o

d
e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le

D
ir

e
c
to

r
T

P
-2

b
R

e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r

 N
e
il 

E
v
a
n
s

L
N

-1
b

Im
p
ro

v
e
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

k
ill

 l
e
v
e
ls

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

1
6
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
, 
w

it
h
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 n

a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p
.

R
o
s
e
m

a
ry

 A
rc

h
e
r

T
P

-2
e

R
e
d
u
c
e
 b

u
lly

in
g
 a

n
d
 h

a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t

 N
e
il 

E
v
a
n
s

L
N

-1
c

Im
p
ro

v
e
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

k
ill

 l
e
v
e
ls

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

1
9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
.

R
o
s
e
m

a
ry

 A
rc

h
e
r

T
P

-3
b

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
 N

e
il 

E
v
a
n
s

L
N

-1
d

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

R
o
s
e
m

a
ry

 A
rc

h
e
r

T
P

-3
c

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
u
s
in

g
 s

it
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
, 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
, 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 N

e
il 

E
v
a
n

s
L
N

-1
e

Im
p
ro

v
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

a
rl
y
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

c
h
ild

re
n
, 
w

it
h
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 d

e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a

re
a
s
.

R
o
s
e
m

a
ry

 A
rc

h
e
r

C
o

d
e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le

D
ir

e
c
to

r

C
o

d
e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le

D
ir

e
c
to

r

H
M

-1
a

A
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
lo

c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 N
e
il 

E
v
a
n
s

H
W

-1
c

R
e
d
u
c
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 a

n
d
 r

a
is

e
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f
o
r 

a
ll.

S
a
n
d
ie

 K
e
e
n
e

H
W

-2
a

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h

S
a
n
d
ie

 K
e
e
n
e

H
W

-2
b

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

a
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
, 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 a

n
d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s

S
a
n
d
ie

 K
e
e
n
e
 /

R
o
s
e
m

a
ry

 A
rc

h
e
r

H
W

-3
a

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
ic

a
l,
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili

ty
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 n

e
e
d
 i
t.

S
a
n
d
ie

 K
e
e
n
e

H
W

-3
d

Im
p
ro

v
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
u
lt
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 b

e
tt
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
re

c
o
g
n
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 r

is
k

S
a
n
d
ie

 K
e
e
n
e
 /

R
o
s
e
m

a
ry

 A
rc

h
e
r

L
e

e
d

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 P

la
n

L
e
a
rn

in
g

T
h

ri
v
in

g
 P

la
c
e
s

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e
ll

 B
e
in

g

H
a
rm

o
n

io
u

s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Action Tracker Guidance 

Introduction 

The ‘Action Trackers’ are prepared on a half yearly basis and are intended to give an organisational ‘snapshot’ view 

of the progress against the city’s top level priorities as set out in the Leeds Strategic Plan and Council Business Plan.  

They provide a broader range of information and progress than is provided in the performance indicator results alone.  

Each improvement priority within the Leeds Strategic Plan and Council Business Plan has been allocated to a Lead 

Officer whose role is to provide leadership, co-ordinate the activities of contributing officers/partners and evaluate 

the performance information to ensure the delivery of the improvement priority.  An action tracker has been 

completed for every improvement priority by the Lead Officer who has provided an overall evaluation of progress to 

date.  Please see below a brief summary of the information that has been provided in each of the sections of the 

action tracker template. 

 

Overall Progress 

Rating 
The Lead Officer provides an overall traffic light rating on the progress to date based on all 

the information provided in the completed action tracker including the results for the aligned 

performance indicators.  The criteria for this traffic light is as follows: 

Green = Progressing as expected  

Amber = Minor delays or issues to address  

Red = Significant delays or issues to address 
 

Direction of Travel This section will be decided by the Lead Chief Officer. The criteria should be as follows: 

↑ = overall the direction of travel is improving. 

↓ = overall the performance is deteriorating. 

↔ = overall the direction of travel is static. 

Overall assessment of 

progress 
In this section the Lead Officer provides an overall summary analysis of the progress to date 

- taking a view based on all the information provided in the completed action tracker 

including the results for the aligned performance indicators.  This section should provide an 

explanation for the overall traffic light rating. 

Contributory Officers This part of the action tracker sets out who else is contributing to the delivery of the 

improvement priority and where relevant these officers/partners also appear in the main 

body against specific actions/activities. 

Performance Indicator 

Information 
In this section the results for the aligned performance indicators for this improvement priority 

are presented including the target and are traffic lighted both the result itself and for data 

quality. 

NB this only shows the indicators which are directly aligned but additional performance 

information is presented in appendix 2. 

Improvement Priority 

Key Activities  

Progress as at 31st 

March 2009 

Next Steps / Future 

Milestones for Q1 & Q2 

2009/10 

Risk / Challenges 

Timescale 

Contributory officer 

This is the main body of the action tracker and sets out the key actions/activities which are 

underway and contribute to the delivery of the overall improvement priority.  For each 

action/activity a set of information is provided that includes any risks or challenges to delivery, 

the key actions which are due to take place over the next 6 months, who the contributory 

officer/partner is and highlights where any other more detailed information can be found.  

This section could not possibly include all activities and Lead Officers have been asked to 

provide a strategic overview through including the main activities only and signposting further 

sources of information where relevant. 

 

 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



T
P

-3
b

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

a
ti

n
g

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

A
m

b
e
r

P
I 
R

e
f

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 Y

e
a
r 

e
n

d
 R

e
s
u

lt
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li
ty

N
I 
1
1
6

T
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

N
/A

*S
e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 
a
t 
b
o
tt
o
m

 o
f 

ta
b
le

N
/A

N
I 
1
5
3

3
0
.4

%

(2
0
0
7
)

2
9
.8

0
%

2
9
.2

%
2
8
.4

%
2
7
.3

%
 (

Q
tr

 3
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s

N
I 
1
8
7
a

7
.9

0
%

(2
0
0
7
/0

8
) 

(S
A

P
<

3
5
)

N
/A

5
.8

5
%

4
.8

9
%

6
.6

3
%

 (
6
6
5
0
/1

0
0
2
3
6
)

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s

N
I 
1
8
7
b

3
4

.5
9
%

2
0
0
7
/0

8

(S
A

P
>

=
6
5
)

3
5
.7

5
%

3
8
.1

2
%

3
8
.8

5
%

3
5
.7

3
%

 (
3
5
8
3
5
/1

0
0
2
3
6

L
S

P
-T

P
1
E

6
,7

0
0

(J
a
n
 -

 D
e
c
 2

0
0
7
)

6
,7

0
0
 -

 E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
 2

0
0
7
 s

o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
0
8
 i
s
 t
o
 

m
a
in

ta
in

 t
h
is

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

3
,5

0
0

3
,0

0
0

5
,9

7
1

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s

N
I 
9
2

3
8
.2

%
 (

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 A

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 Y

e
a
r)

3
3
.3

%
 (

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r)

3
0
.0

%
 (

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r)

3
1
.3

5
%

 (
0
9
/1

0
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
  

y
e
a
r)

3
9
.7

%
  
(2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s

N
I 
1
0
2
A

2
5
.6

%
N

e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
n
o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
e
t

2
4
 %

 p
o
in

ts
 -

 K
S

2

 (
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r)

2
2
.8

 %
 p

o
in

ts
 

(0
9
/0

1
0
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r)

2
4
.9

%
 p

o
in

ts

(0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s

N
I 
1
0
2
B

3
2
.0

%
N

e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
n
o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
e
t

2
8
 %

 p
o
in

ts
 -

 K
S

4

 (
fo

r 
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r)

2
4
 %

 p
o
in

ts
 

(0
9
/0

1
0
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r)

3
2
.7

 %
 p

o
in

ts
 

(p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
) 

(0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s

N
I 
1
1
8

1
9
.0

%

(2
0
0
5
/0

6
)

R
e
s
u
lt
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

N
I 
1
1
7

9
.1

%

(A
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
N

o
v
, 
D

e
c
 2

0
0
6
 

a
n
d
 J

a
n
 2

0
0
7
)

8
.9

%
7
.8

%
6
.8

%
9
.5

%

(2
2
4
6
)

N
I 
1
5
8

2
2
.8

%
1
5
%

1
0
%

5
%

1
8
.5

0
%

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

u
p
ils

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

fr
e
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 4

T
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
fo

rm
a
l 
c
h
ild

c
a
re

 b
y
 l
o
w

-i
n
c
o
m

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 f
a
m

ili
e
s

 *
 T

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
d
e
fi
n
it
io

n
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 (

M
a
r 

0
9
) 

to
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 o

n
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

. 
H

u
b
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 d
o
e
s
n
't 

g
iv

e
 a

 d
a
te

 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 -
 q

u
e
ry

 r
a
is

e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.

 N
I 
1
0
2
b
 t
h
is

 P
I 
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 i
n
 s

c
o
re

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 g

ro
u
p
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
, 
n
o
t 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 a

 c
e
rt

a
in

 l
e
v
e
l

**
F

o
r 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
1
5
3
 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 b
y
 t
h
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
W

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 P

e
n
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 a

 6
 m

o
n
th

 t
im

e
 l
a
g
. 

A
t 
th

is
 p

o
in

t 
in

 t
im

e
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 D

W
P

 i
s
 Q

tr
 2

 i
n
 2

0
0
7
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

s
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
. 
T

h
e
 d

a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 o

n
 1

s
t 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
. 

1
6
 -

 1
8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 n

o
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
(N

E
E

T
)

D
e
fi

n
it

io
n

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y

%
 n

o
n
-d

e
c
e
n
t 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

h
o
m

e
s

W
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 c
la

im
in

g
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

T
a
c
k
lin

g
 f
u
e
l 
p
o
v
e
rt

y
 -

 %
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 h

o
m

e
s
 w

it
h
 l
o
w

 

e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 r

a
ti
n
g

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
n
e
w

 c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 o
n
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 c

re
d
it
 u

n
io

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

s
a
v
in

g
s
, 

lo
a
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

).

N
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 2

0
%

 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 P

ro
fi
le

 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
t

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

u
p
ils

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

fr
e
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
s
 2

L
e

e
d

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
  

P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 U
p

d
a

te

O
v
e
ra

ll
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 2

0
0
8
/0

9

L
e
e
d
s
' b

id
 f
o
r 

B
e
a
c
o
n
 S

ta
tu

s
 f
o
r 

ta
c
k
lin

g
 c

h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 h

e
lp

e
d
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
th

e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
d
o
p
ti
n
g
 a

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 c

it
y
 w

id
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
lin

g
 t
h
is

 t
o
u
g
h
 i
s
s
u
e
. 
R

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

's
 p

la
n
. 
 A

 C
h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 G

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 T

a
c
k
lin

g
 C

h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
y
 f
ir
s
t 
m

e
t 
in

 m
id

 M
a
y
 2

0
0
9
 a

n
d
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
k
e
t 
o
f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
.

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c

h
il

d
re

n
 i

n
 p

o
v

e
rt

y

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

S
a

ll
y

 T
h

re
lf

a
ll

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 

T
a
c
k
lin

g
 f
u
e
l 
p
o
v
e
rt

y
 -

 %
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 h

o
m

e
s
 w

it
h
 h

ig
h
 

e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 r

a
ti
n
g

L
a

s
t 

U
p

d
a

te
d

 3
0

/0
6

/0
9

Page 21



T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

C
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e
 B

e
a
c
o
n
 b

id
 w

a
s
 u

n
s
u
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 c

h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 i
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 

P
la

n
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
-1

4
 a

s
 a

 t
o
p
 t
e
n
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 i
s
s
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 t
a
c
k
le

d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
th

re
e
 y

e
a
rs

. 
S

e
e
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 b
e
lo

w
 a

b
o
u
t 
h
o
w

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
rw

a
rd

.

R
is

k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

's
 P

la
n

T
h
e
 5

 k
e
y
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
is

 g
ro

u
p
's

 w
o
rk

 a
re

 a
s
 f
o
llo

w
s
:

- 
Im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 R

e
c
e
s
s
io

n
.

- 
B

u
d
g
e
t 
c
u
tb

a
c
k
s
 w

it
h
in

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.

- 
D

u
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
.

- 
D

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 (

e
.g

. 
N

I1
1
6
).

- 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 -

 i
t 
is

 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
c
le

a
r 

w
h
a
t 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
' 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

o
le

 i
n
 t
a
c
k
lin

g
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 w

ill
 b

e
.

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

is
 g

ro
u
p
 s

h
o
u
ld

 l
in

k
 w

it
h
 P

C
T

le
a
d
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 I
n
fa

n
t 

M
o
rt

a
lit

y
. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 s

e
e
k
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 W

o
rk

le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 G

ro
u
p
 t
o
 o

v
e
rs

e
e
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 C

P
 

O
u
tc

o
m

e
 G

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 a

v
o
id

 d
u
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 w
o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 5

 t
h
e
m

e
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n
s
e
n
s
u
s
 w

a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 P

ro
je

c
t 
G

ro
u
p
, 
w

it
h
 b

ri
e
f 
to

 b
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
. 
 T

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 

g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 t
o
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 5

 t
h
e
m

e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

b
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 (
in

 t
h
e
 B

e
a
c
o
n
 b

id
) 

to
 b

e
 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
a
c
k
lin

g
 C

h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y
. 

T
h
e
 f
iv

e
 t
h
e
m

e
s
 w

e
re

 :

- 
T

a
c
k
lin

g
 t
h
e
 e

n
tr

e
n
c
h
e
d
 c

a
u
s
e
s
 o

f 
p
o
v
e
rt

y

- 
T

a
c
k
lin

g
 w

o
rk

le
s
s
n
e
s
s

- 
P

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 w

o
rk

 r
e
a
d
in

e
s
s

- 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

c
lu

s
io

n

-R
a
is

in
g
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 

E
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
w

 a
g
re

e
d
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

C
h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y
 a

n
d
 o

u
r 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 (

a
h
e
a
d
 o

f 
le

g
is

la
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
in

g
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le

 e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

y
).

B
ri
d
g
e
t 
E

m
e
ry

D
o
ro

th
y
 S

m
it
h

D
a
v
e
 R

o
b
e
rt

s

S
te

p
h
e
n
 B

o
y
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

J
a
y
n
e
 J

a
c
k

D
ia

n
a
 T

o
w

le
r

D
ir
e
c
t 
lin

k
: 
 C

Y
P

P
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 6

 (
A

c
ti
o
n
s
 6

.1
, 
6
.3

, 
6
.7

, 
6
.1

0
)

A
P

A
 a

re
a
 o

f 
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
: 
N

o

L
is

a
 M

a
rt

in

G
e
rr

y
 H

u
d
s
o
n

V
a
l 
S

n
o
w

d
e
n

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

L
a

s
t 

U
p

d
a

te
d

 3
0

/0
6

/0
9

Page 22



T
P

-3
c

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

a
ti

n
g

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

A
m

b
e
r

P
I 
R

e
f

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 Y

e
a
r 

e
n

d
 R

e
s
u

lt
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li
ty

N
I 
8
8

4
2
%

(2
0
0
6
/0

7
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r)

7
4
%

(B
y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
)

8
5
%

(B
y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
)

1
0
0
%

(B
y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
)

8
0
%

(2
1
2
/2

6
4
)

(2
0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r)

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

E
n
d
 o

f 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r.

  
R

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
.

E
x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
e
a
m

 

le
d
 b

y
 M

a
rk

 H
o
p
k
in

s
, 

C
lu

s
te

r 
M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

, 
S

c
h
o
o
l 

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 t
e
a
m

s

E
n
d
 o

f 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r.

  
R

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
.

G
e
rr

y
 H

u
d
s
o
n

E
n
d
 o

f 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r.

  
R

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
.

E
x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
e
a
m

, 

w
e
d
g
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
, 
S

IL
C

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

d
v
is

e
rs

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
rs

 2
0
0
9
-1

1

S
e
p
-0

9
M

a
rk

 H
o
p
k
in

s

L
e

e
d

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
  

P
la

n
 T

h
e

m
e

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 U
p

d
a

te
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 e
x

te
n

d
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

u
s

in
g

 s
it

e
s

 a
c

ro
s

s
 t

h
e

 c
it

y
, 

to
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 c
h

il
d

re
n

, 
fa

m
il

ie
s

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

C
h

ri
s

 E
d

w
a

rd
s

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 2

0
0
8
/0

9

8
0
%

 (
2
1
2
/2

6
4
) 

o
f 
a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 n

o
w

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

ll 
5
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 f
u
ll 

c
o
re

 o
ff
e
r 

o
f 
e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
: 
 c

h
ild

c
a
re

; 
a
 v

a
ri

e
d
 m

e
n
u
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
; 
s
w

if
t 
a
n
d
 e

a
s
y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
; 
p
a
re

n
ta

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

; 
a
n
d
, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 u

s
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
. 

 C
le

a
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
o
f 

8
5
%

 o
f 
a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
re

 o
ff
e
r 

b
y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
. 
 E

v
id

e
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 
c
lu

s
te

rs
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 a

re
 m

a
k
in

g
 g

o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 a
n
d
 f
a
m

ily
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 r

a
is

in
g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
 C

lu
s
te

rs
 a

re
 a

t 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
s
ta

g
e
s
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
b
u
t 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
th

e
re

 i
s
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
. 
A

re
a
s
 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 y

o
u
th

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 o

r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
. 
W

o
rk

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 (

e
.g

. 
a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t)

, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e

s
 i
s
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 e
a
c
h
 c

lu
s
te

r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
.

D
e
fi

n
it

io
n

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

D
e
v
o
lv

e
d
, 
fo

rm
u
la

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

c
lu

s
te

rs
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
.

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
fo

rm
u
la

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

c
lu

s
te

rs
 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
0
9
, 
a
ll 

c
lu

s
te

rs
 t
o
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 a

n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 s

h
o
w

in
g
 h

o
w

 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 t
a
k
in

g
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 P

la
n
. 

C
lu

s
te

rs
 a

re
 a

t 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
s
ta

g
e
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 w

ill
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 C

lu
s
te

r 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
.

T
a
rg

e
te

d
 y

o
u
th

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 b
a
s
e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
it
e
s
 i
s
 a

n
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 
a
re

a
 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
  
E

x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 a
n
 i
n
te

g
ra

l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
 t
h
e
 

T
a
rg

e
te

d
 Y

o
u
th

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 g

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 i
s
 m

o
v
in

g
 f
o
rw

a
rd

s
.

P
la

n
n
in

g
 f
o
r 

a
 p

a
th

fi
n
d
e
r/

le
a
rn

in
g
 p

ro
je

c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
g
u
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 
le

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

te
a
m

. 
 E

a
rl
y
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 b
y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

te
rm

. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
T

a
rg

e
te

d
 y

o
u
th

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
. 

A
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
e
a
rl
y
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
, 
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 t
im

in
g
 o

f 
c
it
y
 

w
id

e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 7

2
%

 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

c
o
re

 o
ff
e
r 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 a

 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
7
4
%

. 
T

h
is

 

c
o
m

p
a
re

s
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
(7

4
%

) 
a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

ro
m

a
n
c
e
 (

7
2
%

).
  
C

le
a
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 

a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
o
f 
8
5
%

 b
y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
. 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 c

lu
s
ty

e
rs

 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
re

a
c
h
in

g
 f
u
ll 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 e

le
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

c
o
re

 o
ff
e
r.

E
n
g
a
g
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 

is
m

a
n
a
g
e
a
b
le

 b
u
t 
c
a
re

fu
l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t.

A
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
/o

r 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
re

 o
ff
e
r 

o
f 

E
x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 a

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 u
n
d
e
rd

e
v
e
lo

e
p
d
 a

re
a
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 

 C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 L

e
e
d
s
 I
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
In

 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 g

a
p
s
 f
o
r 

S
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
In

c
lu

s
iv

e
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 C

e
n
tr

e
 c

o
h
o
rt

s
 i
n
 i
n
 S

IL
C

, 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
, 
a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili

ta
ti
n
g
 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 S

IL
C

s
, 
c
lu

s
te

rs
 a

n
d
 w

e
d
g
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
..

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 

a
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

v
is

io
n

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 s

o
m

e
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 i
s
 a

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 u
n
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

re
a
 o

f 
e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
rk

O
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
tw

o
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h
e
 D

C
S

F
 i
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 £

3
.5

 m
ill

io
n
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
  
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

 v
a
ri
e
d
 m

e
n
u
 

o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

u
p
 t
o
 t
w

o
 h

o
u
rs

 p
e
r 

w
e
e
k
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
te

rm
 a

n
d
 u

p
 o

r 
tw

o
 w

e
e
k
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

h
o
lid

a
y
s
. 
 T

h
is

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 a

 f
re

e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
l 

a
n
d
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
to

 a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 c

lu
s
te

rs
 i
n
 e

a
rl
y
 2

0
1
0
.

P
ilo

t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

w
ill

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 c

a
re

fu
l 
c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
a
t 
w

o
rk

s
, 
w

h
a
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
a
n
t 

a
n
d
 w

h
a
t 
th

e
 b

e
s
t 
m

o
d
e
ls

 a
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

it
y
 w

id
e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 y

e
a
r.

Page 23



L
in

k
s
 t

o
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

's
 P

la
n

N
o
 d

ir
e
c
t 
lin

k
 t
o
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

Y
P

P
A

P
A

 a
re

a
 o

f 
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
: 
N

o

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

M
a
rk

 M
ils

o
n

C
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

A
n
n
 P

e
m

b
e
rt

o
n
 J

e
a
n
e
tt
e
 M

o
rr

is
 

B
o
a
m

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
a
ro

ly
n
 W

ri
g
h
t

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

S
a
lly

 T
h
re

lf
a
ll

W
e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 P

o
lic

e

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

C
a
th

e
ri
n
e
 B

la
n
s
h
a
rd

V
C

F
S

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r,

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

L
e
e
d
s
 C

o
lle

g
e
s

Page 24



H
W

-2
a

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

a
ti

n
g

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

A
m

b
e
r

P
I 
R

e
f

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 Y

e
a
r 

e
n

d
 R

e
s
u

lt
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li
ty

N
I 
1
1
2

5
0
.4

(1
9
9
8
)

ra
te

 p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

(P
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
)

4
5
 r

a
te

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

4
2
.7

 r
a
te

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
re

v
ie

w

4
8
.1

 (
6
7
7
) 

fo
r 

2
0
0
7
 

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
c
t-

0
9

S
a
ra

h
 S

in
c
la

ir

O
c
t-

0
9

C
la

re
 H

u
m

p
h
ri
e
s

M
a
r-

1
0

D
a
n
n
i 
B

re
a
rl
e
y

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 U

p
d

a
te

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
e

e
n

a
g

e
 c

o
n

c
e

p
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
 s

e
x

u
a

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

S
a

ra
h

 S
in

c
la

ir
L

e
e

d
s

 C
C

 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 2

0
0
8
/0

9

R
is

k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

T
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
 o

f 
4
.6

%
 f
ro

m
 1

9
9
8
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

4
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 a

lt
h
o
u

g
h
 i
t 
c
a
n
n
o
t 
y
e
t 
b
e
 s

a
id

 t
o
 b

e
 a

 d
o
w

n
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
, 
it
 i
s
 c

o
n
tr

a
ry

 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
re

 C
it
ie

s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
. 
T

h
e
 r

a
te

 f
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 4

8
.1

 (
c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

fe
m

a
le

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 1

5
-1

7
),

 s
ti
ll 

a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ra

te
 o

f 
4
1
.7

.

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 c

e
rt

a
in

 k
e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

a
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 
 I
f 
a
n
y
 a

re
 w

e
a
k
 o

r 
m

is
s
in

g
 t
h
e
n
 i
t 
is

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 m
o
m

e
n
tu

m
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 k

e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

P
a
re

n
th

o
o
d
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 a

re
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 'L

o
c
a
l 
T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 S

e
lf
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
T

o
o
lk

it
: 
p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 -
 a

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
-f

o
c
u
s
e
d
 s

e
lf
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

o
lk

it
'. 

 D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th

a
t 
te

e
n
a
g
e
 P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 P

a
re

n
th

o
o
d
 c

u
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 i
t 
is

 n
o
t 
e
a
s
y
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 

m
o
m

e
n
tu

m
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 e
a
c
h
 a

re
a
.

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 l
in

k
in

g
 T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 P

a
re

n
th

o
o
d
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

re
le

v
a
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
, 
e
.g

. 
In

fa
n
t 
M

o
rt

a
lit

y
. 

 W
o
rk

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 b
e
tt
e
r 

fi
t 
w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
, 
e
.g

.,
 H

o
u
s
in

g
, 
P

a
re

n
ti
n
g
.

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
, 
d
a
ta

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 S
R

E
, 
C

A
S

H
, 
T

a
rg

e
te

d
, 
IY

S
S

 a
n
d
 M

a
te

rn
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
; 
a
n
d
 C

h
ild

 H
e
a
lt
h
. 
 A

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
s
 s

lo
w

e
r,

 f
o
r 

a
 w

id
e
 v

a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 
re

a
s
o
n
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
e
 

ra
is

in
g
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

a
re

n
ts

/c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 w

e
ll 

b
e
in

g
.

D
e
fi

n
it

io
n

U
n
d
e
r 

1
8
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

T
h
e
 T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 P

a
re

n
th

o
o
d
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 r

e
la

u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 U

n
it
 a

s
 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 n

o
te

 s
p
e
a
k
e
r.

  
T

h
is

 

c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
 t
h
e
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
ll 

k
e
y
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 g

ro
w

. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 L

e
a
d
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 W

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 o
n
 

T
e
e
n
a
g
e
 P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 P

a
re

n
th

o
o
d
. 
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 C
h
a
m

p
io

n
 (

M
e
m

b
e
r)

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 p

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 i
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
e
d
g
e
s
. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
w

 t
ig

h
te

r 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
, 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

e
lf
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

O
n
 a

 c
it
y
 w

id
e
 b

a
s
is

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e
e
d

a
) 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
ll 

k
e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 f
o
r 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

b
) 

e
n
s
u
re

 a
 w

o
rk

in
g
 l
in

k
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

k
e
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
, 
e
g
, 
H

o
u
s
in

g
, 
P

a
re

n
ti
n
g
, 
1
4
-1

9

c
) 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 T

P
P

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 i
n
 c

it
y
 w

id
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
s

d
) 

jo
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

In
 t
h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 l
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s

a
) 

lo
c
a
lit

y
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 t
e
a
m

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 w
a
rd

s
 

b
) 

to
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 s

e
n
io

r 
lo

c
a
l 
s
p
o
n
s
o
rs

h
ip

c
) 

e
m

b
e
d
d
in

g
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
s

d
) 

lo
c
a
lit

y
 j
o
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

la
n
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

L
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 l
in

k
in

g
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
s
.

T
ra

n
s
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
to

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

D
a
ta

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 
d
a
ta

 s
e
t,
 

th
is

 h
a
s
 m

e
a
n
t 
le

s
s
 r

e
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
ta

 w
h
ic

h
 o

n
 a

 L
e
e
d
s
 w

id
e
 b

a
s
is

 i
s
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d
 

1
4
 m

o
n
th

s
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 w

a
rd

 d
a
ta

 a
lm

o
s
t 
2
 y

e
a
rs

 l
a
te

r.
 T

h
e
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
d
a
ta

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

m
e
a
n
s
 o

f 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
s
 e

n
a
b
lin

g
 a

 s
p
e
e
d
ie

r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 c

it
y
 t
re

n
d
s
 a

n
d
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
d
a
ta

 w
a
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 

fo
r 

0
9
/1

0
.

D
a
ta

T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
p
e
c
ia

lly

a
) 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y

b
) 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 w

it
h
 e

a
c
h
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

T
P

P
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

c
) 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

a
s
h
b
o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

D
a
ta

 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 r

o
b
u
s
t.
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 s
e
t

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

T
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
 w

e
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 a

 

m
o
re

 c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 
e
g
, 
in

it
ia

lly
 t
a
rg

e
ti
n
g
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 m

e
d
ia

 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 o

v
e
r 

C
h
ri
s
tm

a
s
, 
N

e
w

 Y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 V

a
le

n
ti
n
e
s
 D

a
y
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 f
o
r 

b
u
s
e
s
, 

ra
d
io

 a
n
d
 p

u
b
lic

 t
o
ile

ts
, 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
 h

a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
s
e
 t
im

e
s
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 

b
ig

g
e
s
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
.

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g

a
) 

m
e
d
ia

 c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

t 
C

h
ri
s
tm

a
s
, 
N

e
w

 y
e
a
r,

 V
a
le

n
ti
n
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 u

p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S

u
m

m
e
r 

h
o
lid

a
y
s

b
) 

s
o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 w
a
rd

s
 w

it
h
 h

ig
h
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 a

 w
id

e
r 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

Page 25



T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

R
is

k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0

J
a
n
-1

0
V

ic
k
y
 W

o
m

a
c
k

M
a
r-

1
0

D
o
ro

th
y
 S

m
it
h

M
a
r-

1
0

G
e
o
g
ra

p
h
ic

a
l 
- 

J
e
n
n
y
 M

id
w

in
te

r

L
A

C
 -

 S
a
le

e
m

 T
a
ri
q

J
a
n
-1

0
K

ie
ra

 S
w

if
t

M
a
r-

1
0

J
o
h
n
 P

a
x
to

n

M
a
r-

1
0

J
o
h
n
 F

re
e
m

a
n

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

: 
P

R
E

V
E

N
T

IN
G

 T
E

E
N

A
G

E
 C

O
N

C
E

P
T

IO
N

S

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 S

e
x
u
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

C
A

S
H

)

E
a
s
ily

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ri
e
n
d
ly

 C
A

S
H

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 v

it
a
l 
to

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

te
e
n
a
g
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
. 
A

 Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

s
 S

e
x
u
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 N

e
e
d
s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
w

a
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 w

id
e
r 

S
H

N
A

, 
a
n
d
 a

 S
e
x
u
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 d

ra
ft
e
d
. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 

to
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 u

p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
L
o
n
g
 A

c
ti
n
g
 R

e
v
e
rs

ib
le

 C
o
n
tr

a
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 (

L
A

R
C

) 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

s
 a

 m
o
re

 r
e
lia

b
le

 m
e
th

o
d
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 w

o
m

e
n
.

C
A

S
H

T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

y

a
) 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 F

E
 C

o
lle

g
e
s
 

b
) 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
p

c
) 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

ra
g
e
n
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

a
th

w
a
y

d
) 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 u

p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
L
A

R
C

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

in
g
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

S
tr

o
n
g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 S
e
x
 a

n
d
 R

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 (

S
R

E
)

A
g
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
n
d
 g

o
o
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 S

R
E

 a
re

 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
to

 t
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
te

e
n
a
g
e
 

c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
. 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

u
d
it
in

g
 t
h
e
 

S
R

E
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 q
u
a
lit

y
 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 i
n
 o

u
t 
o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
s
e
tt
in

g
s
, 
e
g
, 
Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
, 
Y

o
u
th

 

O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
, 
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 f
ro

m
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 

IY
S

S
. 
A

ls
o
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 m

u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 g

ro
u
p
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 i
n
 a

n
y
 

s
e
tt
in

g
 s

o
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 s

im
ila

r 
m

e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 w

h
e
re

v
e
r 

th
e
 a

re

S
R

E

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

a
) 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
tr

o
n
g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
S

R
E

 a
n
d
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 (

P
S

H
E

) 
b
o
th

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 o

u
t 
o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
s
e
tt
in

g
s

b
) 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

n
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
o
s
e
 p

u
p
ils

 a
re

 o
f 
h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 o

f 
te

e
n
a
g
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 

c
) 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
n
 F

E
 C

o
lle

g
e
s

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 F

E
 C

o
lle

g
e
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 
b
e
c
o
m

e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
in

g
 t
h
e
ir
 S

R
E

 a
n
d
 P

S
H

E

T
a
rg

e
te

d
 w

o
rk

 b
o
th

 g
e
o
g
ra

p
h
ic

a
lly

 a
n
d
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 g

ro
u
p
s
, 
e
g
, 
L
o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 

a
n
d
 C

a
re

 L
e
a
v
e
rs

G
e
o
g
ra

h
ic

a
l:

T
h
e
 T

P
P

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

  
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 2

 k
e
y
 g

e
o
p
ra

p
h
ic

a
l 
a
re

a
s
 a

s
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

h
ig

h
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
te

e
n
a
g
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o

v
e
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
e
a
rs

, 
th

e
s
e
 a

re
 I
n
n
e
r 

E
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 I
n
n
e
r 

S
o
u
th

, 
a
n
d
 w

it
h
 a

 s
e
c
o
n
d
e
d
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

s
 a

 L
o
c
a
lit

y
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
, 
in

it
la

iit
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

u
d
it
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

. 
If
 

th
e
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
is

 w
o
u
d
 

g
o
 a

 l
o
n
g
 w

a
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
c
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

.

L
A

C
 a

n
d
 C

a
re

 L
e
a
v
e
rs

; 

T
h
is

 g
ro

u
p
 a

re
 a

 v
e
ry

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
 a

t 
h
ig

h
 r

s
ik

 o
f 
s
e
x
u
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 
te

e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
th

o
o
d
 

a
n
d
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
e
x
p
lo

it
a
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 T

P
P

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 a

 S
e
x
u
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 L

A
C

 N
u
rs

e
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
le

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff
 o

n
 r

a
is

in
g
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

o
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
th

a
t 
th

e
 p

o
s
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

e
d
b
y
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

s
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

. 
T

h
e
 u

n
o
ff
o
ic

a
l 
fi
n
d
in

g
 a

re
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
.

T
a
rg

e
te

d
 W

o
rk

G
e
o
g
ra

p
h
ic

a
l:

a
) 

lo
c
a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 
p
la

n
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

b
) 

lo
c
a
lit

y
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

L
A

C
:

a
) 

to
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 L

A
C

 S
e
x
u
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 N

u
rs

e

b
) 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 h

o
w

 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 m

o
re

 o
f 
th

e
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 s
y
s
te

m
 t
h
a
t 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

G
e
o
g
ra

p
h
ic

a
l;

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
jo

in
t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
lit

ie
s

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
c
in

g
 f
o
r 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

L
A

C
:

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t:
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

n
 T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 P

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 S

R
E

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 

m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
:

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

a
s
 l
im

it
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
. 
T

h
e
 m

a
in

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 m

u
lt
i 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
e
a
m

 o
f 
tr

a
in

e
rs

 (
a
s
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

R
E

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
) 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
R

E
 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
n
 

b
o
th

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 n

o
n
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
s
e
tt
in

g
s
. 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t:

a
) 

to
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

u
lt
i 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 S

R
E

 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
e
a
m

b
) 

to
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
S

R
E

 i
s
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
 t
o
 e

m
b
e
d
 S

R
E

 i
n
to

 m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 Y

o
u
th

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

IY
S

S
) 

w
it
h
 a

 c
le

a
r 

re
m

it
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le

 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 p

re
g
n
a
n
c
y

IY
S

S
 w

o
rk

s
 w

it
h
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 h

a
v
e
 a

 k
e
y
 r

o
e
 

to
 p

la
y
 i
n
 t
a
c
k
lin

g
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 p

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
. 
 I
Y

S
S

 a
re

 o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 o
n
 t
h
e
 T

P
P

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 h

a
p
p
e
n
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
je

c
t 
in

 

S
o
u
th

 L
e
e
d
s
. 
T

h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t
h
e
ir
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 w

o
rk

 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

a
re

n
ts

, 
 I
Y

S
S

 h
a
v
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
e
d
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 S

R
E

 

in
 o

u
t 
o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
s
e
tt
in

g
s
, 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 t
ra

in
 t
h
e
ir
 s

e
n
io

r 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 Y
S

H
A

G

IY
S

S

a
) 

to
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 t
ra

in
 s

ta
ff
 o

n
 S

R
E

b
) 

th
e
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
A

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 (

IA
G

) 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 

s
e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 l
in

k
s
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
C

A
S

H
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

c
) 

P
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
te

e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 w
a
rd

s
 

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 t
ra

in
 s

ta
ff

P
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 n

o
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 b

y
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 g

ro
u
p
s

R
a
is

in
g
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 

R
a
is

in
g
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
s
 p

ro
b
a
b
ly

 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
it
a
l 
e
le

m
e
n
t 

in
 t
h
e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
te

e
n
a
g
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

ri
s
k
 t
a
k
in

g
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 b
u
t 
o
n
e
 o

f 

th
e
 m

o
s
t 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
, 
a
s
 i
t 
lin

k
e
d
 t
o
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
 a

n
d
 d

e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
. 
R

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 h

a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 s
e
t 
b
e
fo

re
 t
h
e
y
 r

e
a
c
h
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 

p
o
s
s
ib

ly
 b

y
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 8

 -
 1

0
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

. 
W

o
rk

 h
a
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 w

it
h
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

L
e
e
d
s
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
w

a
y
s
 i
t 
is

 t
h
o
u
g
h
t 
a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 r

a
is

e
d

R
a
is

in
g
 A

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s

a
) 

to
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s

b
) 

lin
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

a
is

in
g
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r

c
) 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 v
ie

w
 o

n
 r

a
is

in
g
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s

T
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 a
n
d
 t
a
k
e
s
 t
im

e
 t
o
 i
n
it
ia

te
 a

n
d
 

e
m

b
e
d
, 
s
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

lo
w

Page 26



T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

R
is

k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0

M
a
r-

1
0

B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
e
w

to
n

M
a
r-

1
0

J
a
n
e
 M

is
c
h
e
n
k
o

M
a
r-

1
0

T
P

P
P

M
a
r-

1
0

T
P

P
P

C
Y

P
P

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 7

7
.1

, 
7
.2

, 
7
.3

, 
7
.5

, 
7
.6

, 
7
.7

, 
7
.8

, 
7
.9

 a
re

 a
ll 

d
ir
e
c
t 
re

a
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

A
P

A
 w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 a

re
a
?
 

Y
e
s

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

a
re

n
ts

/c
a
re

rs
 o

n
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 p

re
g
n
a
n
c
y

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 w
o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 v

e
ry

 l
im

it
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
. 
S

p
e
a
k
e
a
s
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

b
y
 1

5
 t
ra

in
e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

 o
n
 s

p
e
a
k
in

g
 t
o
 y

o
u
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 o

n
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
. 
A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
ra

in
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 r

u
n
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 f
o
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
a
re

n
ts

, 
m

a
in

ly
 i
n
 S

o
u
th

 L
e
e
d
s
.

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 P

a
re

n
ts

/C
a
re

rs

T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
a
lk

in
g
 a

b
o
u
t 
s
e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s

a
) 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 a

s
 t
o
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

S
p
e
a
k
e
a
s
y
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

ro
lle

d
 o

u
t 
(a

s
 i
t 
v
e
ry

 

e
x
p
e
n
s
iv

e
) 

o
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

to
 i
n
v
e
s
t 
in

 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
u
rs

e
 

b
) 

ta
rg

e
t 
p
a
re

n
ts

/c
a
re

rs
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s

c
) 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 t
h
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 
jo

in
t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 S

T
E

P
S

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

R
e
s
o
u
rc

in
g
 S

p
e
a
k
e
a
s
y
 o

r 
s
im

ila
r 

c
o
u
rs

e
 

IM
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

: 
S

U
P

P
O

R
T

IN
G

 T
E

E
N

A
G

E
 M

O
T

H
E

R
S

 A
N

D
  
Y

O
U

N
G

 F
A

T
H

E
R

S

M
a
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 C

h
ild

 H
e
a
lt
h

T
h
is

 w
o
rk

 m
a
in

ly
 c

o
m

e
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

it
h
in

 N
H

S
 L

e
e
d
s
, 

a
s
 i
t 
c
o
v
e
rs

 A
n
te

n
a
ta

l 
C

a
re

, 
S

m
o
k
in

g
, 
A

lc
o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 S

u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 U

s
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 p

re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

in
 t
h
e
 e

a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 
c
h
ild

h
o
o
d
, 
M

a
te

rn
a
l 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 a

n
d
 B

re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
, 
a
n
d
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

te
e
n
a
g
e
 m

o
th

e
r 

a
n
d
 f
a
th

e
rs

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
. 
T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 P

a
re

n
ts

 a
re

 o
v
e
r 

re
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 a

ll 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 n

e
e
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 T

P
P

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

te
e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c

h
ild

re
n

M
a
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 C

h
ild

 H
e
a
lt
h

a
) 

to
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 a

ll 
a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 
m

a
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 c

h
ild

 h
e
a
lt
h
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
la

te
 t
o
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 m

o
th

e
rs

, 

te
e
n
a
g
e
 f
a
th

e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c

h
ild

re
n

T
h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 M

o
th

e
rs

 a
n
d
 T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 F

a
th

e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s

O
v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

th
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 t
re

m
e
n
d
o
u
s
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 C

h
ild

re
n
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
m

 a
n
d
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 

S
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
L
e
a
rn

in
g
 M

e
n
to

rs
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
lo

c
a
te

d
 i
n
to

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 C
h
ild

re
n
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 a
 m

o
re

 s
e
a
m

le
s
s
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
. 
W

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 a

 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 

c
a
re

 p
a
th

w
a
y
 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 c

a
re

 p
a
th

w
a
y
. 
A

ls
o
 t
h
e
 F

a
m

ily
 

N
u
rs

e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 (
F

N
P

) 
w

a
s
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 t
o
 a

n
d
 c

a
s
e
 l
o
a
d
in

g
 b

e
g
a
n
 j
u
s
t 
b
e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 

th
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

  
In

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 T

a
rg

e
te

d
 w

o
rk

 t
h
e
re

 a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
te

e
n
a
g
e
 m

o
th

e
rs

 i
n
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
C

a
re

 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 M

o
th

e
r 

a
n
d
 T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 F

a
th

e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s

a
) 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 C

h
ild

re
n
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
te

e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 w

it
h
 

th
e
m

b
) 

th
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 F

N
P

 t
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s

c
) 

w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 H

e
a
lt
h
 V

is
it
in

g
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
te

e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 i
s
s
u
e
s

d
) 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 
c
a
re

 p
a
th

w
a
y
 f
o
r 

te
e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 

e
) 

M
id

w
iv

e
s
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 V

is
it
o
rs

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
in

 C
h
ild

re
n
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
s

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

n
e
e
d
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s

H
e
lp

in
g
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 m

o
th

e
rs

 a
n
d
 f
a
th

e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

w
e
llb

e
in

g

T
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
te

e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 c
h
ild

c
a
re

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

a
re

 t
o
 L

e
a
rn

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 e

v
e
ry

 y
e
a
r 

b
u
t 
lin

k
s
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 l
e
a
d
. 
T

h
e
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
 m

o
th

e
rs

 a
n
d
 f
a
th

e
rs

 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

a
n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
L
e
a
rn

in
g
 M

e
n
to

rs
 i
n
to

 

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
. 
 C

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 N

E
E

T
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
e
d
 t
h
is

 

y
e
a
r,

 b
u
t 
m

o
re

 w
o
rk

 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
. 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 i
s
 c

ru
c
ia

l 
is

s
u
e
 a

n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
re

 n
o
w

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 T

P
P

P
 B

o
a
rd

 

H
e
lp

in
g
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 m

o
th

e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 f
a
th

e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 w

e
llb

e
in

g

S
o
m

e
 a

re
a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g

a
) 

lin
k
s
 t
o
 1

4
-1

9
 l
e
a
d

b
) 

w
o
rk

 a
ro

u
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 N

E
E

T
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 m

o
th

e
rs

 a
n
d
 f
a
th

e
rs

c
) 

e
m

b
e
d
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

o
u
ti
n
e
 o

f 
a
s
k
in

g
 y

o
u
n
g
 m

e
n
 i
f 
th

e
y
 a

re
 f
a
th

e
rs

 b
y
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
r

c
) 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

ic
tu

re
 o

f 
te

e
n
a
g
e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 b

e
tt
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 d

a
ta

d
) 

a
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

a
re

n
ts

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

th
e
re

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
 w

h
e
n
 y

o
u
n
g
 f
a
th

e
rs

 a
re

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

C
o

n
n

e
c
ti

o
n

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

's
 P

la
n

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

Page 27



H
W

-2
b

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

a
ti

n
g

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

A
m

b
e
r

P
I 
R

e
f

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 d

a
te

D
a
ta

 Q
u

a
li
ty

N
I 
6
3

7
0
.5

%

(D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
)

7
2
%

7
5
%

8
0
%

7
1
.3

%

(3
7
3
/5

2
3
)

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
6
6

6
0
.2

%

(A
p
r-

D
e
c
 2

0
0
7
)

8
0
%

9
0
%

to
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

7
8
.2

%

(9
8
5
/1

2
5
8
)

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
n
g
o
in

g

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

0
9

T
o
n
y
 G

ri
ff
in

S
a
ra

h
 S

in
c
la

ir

J
u
n
-0

9
S

a
le

e
m

 T
a
ri
q

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 U

p
d

a
te

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

ro
v

e
 t

h
e

 a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

a
re

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

c
h

il
d

re
n

.
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r,

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
's

 S
o

c
ia

l 

C
a

re
L

e
e

d
s

 C
C

 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 2

0
0
8
/0

9

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
C

o
re

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 d
e
s
p
it
e
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e

r.
  
T

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 w

e
ll 

in
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
th

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 a

n
x
ie

ty
 f
ro

m
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 f
a
ll-

o
u
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 

B
a
b
y
 P

 c
a
s
e
 i
n
 H

a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 
T

h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff
 o

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

n
d
 n

o
w

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

a
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
h
a
s
 a

 h
ig

h
 d

e
g
re

e
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
 a

ll 
ti
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
T

h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

a
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 g
o
o
d
.

D
e
fi

n
it

io
n

S
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
: 
le

n
g
th

 o
f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

x
p
id

it
e
 c

a
re

 o
rd

e
rs

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

lo
w

 d
u
e
 t
o
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
.

In
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 P

ilo
ti
n
g
 F

a
m

ily
 G

ro
u
p
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
in

g
, 
th

e
 p

ilo
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
 a

s
 

b
e
e
in

g
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l.
  
S

ig
n
-o

ff
 f
ro

m
 I
S

C
B

 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t
h
e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 

F
a
m

ily
 G

ro
u
p
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 c

it
y
.

C
a
re

 O
rd

e
rs

 -
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
le

g
a
l 
s
e
rv

ie
s
, 
th

e
 c

o
u
rt

s
 a

n
d
 C

A
F

C
A

S

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 n

e
e
d
 p

la
n
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 b

e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r

F
a
m

ily
 G

ro
u
p
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 -

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

fa
m

ily
 g

ro
u
p
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
in

g

C
a
re

 O
rd

e
rs

 -
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 a

re
:

1
) 

L
e
g
a
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

in
g
 o

rd
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
u
rt

s

2
) 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u
t 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

m
it
ig

a
ti
n
g
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 o

f 
o
rd

e
rs

3
) 

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

la
n
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 p
re

v
e
n
t 

th
e
m

 n
e
e
d
in

g
 t
o
 b

e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r

F
a
m

ily
 G

ro
u
p
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 -

 t
h
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 a

re
:

1
) 

F
in

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
e
y
 t
o
 r

o
ll 

th
is

 o
u
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

c
it
y

2
) 

R
e
c
ru

it
in

g
 a

 t
e
a
m

 t
o
 d

o
 t
h
is

, 
o
th

e
r 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 r
e
c
ru

it
in

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 n
o
w

T
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
w

a
s
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
In

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

R
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 (
IR

O
's

).
  
A

s
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
d
v
is

e
d
, 
th

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 p

u
tt
in

g
 i
n
 m

o
re

 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 (

tw
o
 m

o
re

 I
R

O
's

)

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
, 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

f 
 I
R

O
's

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 

in
c
lu

d
e
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s

R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 I
R

O
 p

o
s
ts

 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 w
a
y

Page 28



T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

1
6
th

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

J
a
y
n
e
 J

a
c
k

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

a
lly

 T
h
re

lf
a
ll

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

L
e
e
d
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t

S
in

c
e
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
0
9
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
t 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 

a
s
s
e
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 r

e
-d

e
fi
n
in

g
 q

u
a
lit

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
, 
re

d
e
s
ig

n
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
, 
re

-t
ra

in
in

g
, 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

T
h
is

 w
o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
, 
3
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 w

it
h
 f
ro

n
t-

lin
e
 s

ta
ff
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

, 
in

te
rn

a
l 
a
u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

. 
A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a
n
 a

u
d
it
 w

a
s
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 o

n
 a

 s
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

 h
o
w

 g
o
o
d
 t
h
e
y
 w

e
re

. 
T

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 

th
is

 a
u
d
it
 s

h
o
w

e
d
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 
re

s
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
h
a
s
 c

a
p
tu

re
d
 t
h
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 s

o
m

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

T
h
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
 R

e
-e

n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 t
e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 m

a
p
p
e
d
 m

o
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

th
a
t 
o
c
c
u
r 

in
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il.

 T
h
is

 w
o
rk

 h
a
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
ts

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
a
n
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

ill
 f
o
rm

 a
 t
e
a
m

 o
f 
6
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
 

w
h
o
 w

ill
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 s

e
t 
th

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

, 
th

e
y
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 r

e
d
e
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y

T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 a

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
 g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
5
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
a
re

a
s
 o

f 

th
e
 c

it
y
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 s

e
tt
in

g
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 i
n
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
, 
th

is
 g

ro
u
p
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 d
e
s
ig

n
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 

a
n
d
 t
o
o
lk

it
s
 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 o

n
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g

T
h
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
 R

e
-e

n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 T

e
a
m

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m

a
p
 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
. 
T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 w
ill

 h
e
lp

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 I
T

 S
y
s
te

m
. 
O

n
c
e
 t
h
o
s
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
p
p
e
d
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 o
n
e
s
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
 t
h
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
 R

e
-e

n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 T

e
a
m

 a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t
h
e
 o

ld
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 t
o
 

th
e
 n

e
w

 o
n
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
. 

C
Y

P
S

C
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
s
p
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
a
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

d
ri
v
e
n
 I
T

 s
y
s
te

m
 c

a
lle

d
 t
h
e
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 

(I
C

S
).

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
n
te

d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
t 
h
a
d
 

th
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 r

ig
h
t 
fi
rs

t 
b
e
fo

re
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 o
n
 a

 n
e
w

 I
T

 s
y
s
te

m
.

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
is

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
n
e
 r

is
k
 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C

a
re

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
t.
 

F
in

d
in

g
 t
im

e
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 t
ra

in
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
. 
T

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 l
a
c
k
s
 

s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 a

re
 s

k
ill

e
d
 i
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
h
o
 c

a
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 p

u
t 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 e
n
g
a
g
e
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 

s
ta

ff

T
h
e
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 o

f 
m

a
in

ta
in

g
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 w

o
rk

lo
a
d
 m

e
a
n
 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 v

e
ry

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 s

ta
ff
 a

n
d
 

u
s
in

g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
, 
q
u
a
lit

y
 

a
n
d
 s

k
ill

s
.

W
o
rk

 o
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 f
a
m

ily
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 w

o
rk

, 
e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 7

 d
a
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
e
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 p

ilo
t 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 f
re

e
 c

h
ild

c
a
re

 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 2
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

in
te

g
ra

te
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 l
im

it
e
d
 i
f 
b
e
tt
e
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 i
s
 n

o
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
.

L
in

k
s
 t

o
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

's
 P

la
n

D
ir
e
c
tl
y
 l
in

k
e
d
: 
C

Y
P

P
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 9

 -
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
: 
9
.2

, 
9
.3

, 
9
.6

  
  
a
n
d
  
  
  
  
  
 C

Y
P

P
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 8

 -
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
: 
8
.6

, 
8
.9

, 
8
.1

0

R
e
la

te
d
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
: 
A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 1

 (
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

re
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
d
 h

e
re

)

A
P

A
 a

re
a
 o

f 
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
: 
Y

e
s

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

C
h
ri
s
 E

d
w

a
rd

s
C

h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 O

u
tr

a
m

 /
 I
a
n
 C

a
m

e
ro

n

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

L
e
e
d
s
 T

e
a
c
h
in

g
 H

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 T
ru

s
t

M
a
g
g
ie

 B
o
y
le

C
h
ri
s
 B

u
tl
e
r/

M
ik

e
 D

o
y
le

V
C

F
S

 -
 L

e
e
d
s
 V

o
ic

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 F

o
ru

m
E

d
d
ie

 M
a
c
k
/J

e
a
n
e
tt
e
 M

o
rr

is
 B

o
a
m

Page 29



H
W

-3
a

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

a
ti

n
g

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

A
m

b
e
r

P
I 
R

e
f

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 Y

e
a
r 

e
n

d
 R

e
s
u

lt
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li
ty

N
I5

0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 n

e
w

 d
a
ta

 r
e
tu

rn
 -

 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 b

e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d

6
4
.1

0
%

S
o
m

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 

b
e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 d

a
ta

 

q
u
a
lit

y
 -

 t
h
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

re
 

b
e
in

g
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 

b
y
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
te

d

N
I5

8

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 n

e
w

 d
a
ta

 r
e
tu

rn
 -

 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 b

e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d

1
5
 o

u
t 
o
f 
4
0

N
I5

4

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 n

e
w

 d
a
ta

 r
e
tu

rn
 -

 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

n
o
t 
a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

S
o
m

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 

b
e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 d

a
ta

 

q
u
a
lit

y
 -

 t
h
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

re
 

b
e
in

g
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 

b
y
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
te

d

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

S
e
p
-0

9
A

s
h
le

y
 W

y
a
tt

M
a
r-

1
0

A
s
h
le

y
 W

y
a
tt
/A

lu
n
 R

e
e
s

M
a
r-

1
0

A
s
h
le

y
 W

y
a
tt

M
a
r-

1
0

A
s
h
le

y
 W

y
a
tt
/N

e
il 

W
a
rr

e
n

M
a
y
-0

9
M

a
rt

in
 F

o
rd

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 U

p
d

a
te

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

ro
v

e
 p

s
y

c
h

o
lo

g
ic

a
l,

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a

b
il

it
y

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 

fo
r 

th
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 n

e
e

d
 i

t
S

a
ra

h
 S

in
c

la
ir

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 2

0
0
8
/0

9

E
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 -

 u
s
in

g
 O

N
S

 d
a
ta

, 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
in

 L
e
e
d
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
a
t 
a
n
y
 o

n
e
 t
im

e
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
1
4
,0

0
0
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

o
m

e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
e
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
y
. 
 E

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
 'e

v
e
ry

b
o
d
y
's

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 ' 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 

w
h
a
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 e

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
. 
 I
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

, 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 C

h
ild

 a
n
d
 A

d
o
le

s
c
e
n
t 
M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

u
t 
th

is
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

e
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
 a

 b
ro

a
d
e
r 

s
e
n
s
e
. 
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
h
is

 i
s
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
, 
n
e

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

w
a
it
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
.

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 -

 t
h
e
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
th

re
e
 y

e
a
rs

, 
o
u
tl
in

in
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 
 I
t 
s
e
ts

 o
u
t 
k
e
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 2

0
0
8
 t
o
 2

0
1
1
 u

n
d
e
rp

in
n
e
d
 b

y
 a

 m
o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 a
lig

n
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
ri
v
e
rs

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 A

im
in

g
 H

ig
h
 f
o
r 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 o

n
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d
 E

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
. 
 I
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 1

9
.5

%
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 a
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
. 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

e
t 
a
n
d
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 
A

 k
e
y
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
S

h
o
rt

 B
re

a
k
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
.

D
e
fi

n
it

io
n

E
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

T
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
t

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

il 
o
n
 w

o
rk

 s
tr

e
a
m

s
 i
s
 l
is

te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t
ra

c
k
e
r.

  
In

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

o
 a

 n
e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
it
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 j
u
s
t 
b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 3

0
 p

ilo
t 
s
it
e
s
.

E
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n

T
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
t

P
a
re

n
ts

' e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 c

h
ild

re
n

T
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
t

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

E
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 M

a
y
 2

0
0
8
 w

it
h
 a

 f
o
rm

a
l 
la

u
n
c
h
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
. 
 W

o
rk

 o
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
.

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

A
b
ili

ty
 t
o
 r

e
-f

o
c
u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

 t
o
 

b
e
tt
e
r 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 T

ie
r 

1
/2

 n
e
e
d
s

T
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 C

A
M

H
S

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
.

R
e
m

o
d
e
l 
C

A
M

H
S

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

L
o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
fl
e
x
ib

le
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e
 M

u
lt
i-
T

re
a
tm

e
n
t 
F

o
s
te

r 
C

a
re

 (
M

T
F

C
) 

m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
a
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 

g
re

a
te

s
t 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 w

id
e
r 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

L
o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 g

a
p
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

A
M

H
S

 T
ie

r 
4
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

to
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
T

ie
r 

4
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
. 
A

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 G
ro

u
p
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

.

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 T

ie
r 

4
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
w

a
y
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 f
o
r 

re
g
io

n
a
l 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g

R
e
g
io

n
a
l 
C

A
M

H
s
 T

ie
r 

4
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 P
C

T
 

le
d
 h

a
v
e
 m

in
im

a
l 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
L
A

 C
A

M
H

S
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
to

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 
o
f 
jo

in
t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 f
o
r 

C
A

M
H

S
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 

V
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 G
ro

u
p
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

, 
a
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
IS

C
B

.

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

la
n
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
. 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
lig

n
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
/o

r 
p
o
o
lin

g

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
lig

n
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
/o

r 
p
o
o
lin

g

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 C

h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 u

n
d
e
rp

in
n
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 p

la
n
. 
R

e
v
is

e
d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 f
o
r 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a
rd

. 
 R

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

.

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
N

e
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
 c

lo
s
e
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

L
e
e
d
s
 I
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 g

a
p
 f
o
r 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

d
u
e
 t
o
 v

a
c
a
n
c
y

Page 30



T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

O
c
t-

0
9

M
a
rt

in
 F

o
rd

N
o
v
-0

9
M

a
rt

in
 F

o
rd

S
e
p
-0

9
B

a
rb

a
ra

 N
e
w

to
n

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
a
th

e
ri
n
e
 B

la
n
s
h
a
rd

C
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
a
u
l 
L
a
n
g
fo

rd
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

 &
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

S
te

p
h
e
n
 B

o
y
le

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

 &
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
S

h
o
rt

 B
re

a
k
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
; 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y

P
re

p
a
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 r

o
u
n
d
; 
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 m
e
e
ts

 n
e
w

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
; 
m

a
x
im

is
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 j
o
in

t 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g

N
e
e
d
 t
o
 p

re
p
a
re

 f
o
r 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

h
ils

t 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
to

 r
e
v
ie

w
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

th
e
 i
n
te

ra
g
e
n
c
y
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
le

x
 p

a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 o

f 
c
a
re

 f
o
r 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 c

h
ild

re
n
, 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 p

e
n
d
in

g
 n

e
w

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
's

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 c

a
re

.

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
; 
e
x
p
lo

re
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 q

u
a
lit

y

N
e
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

o
s
t 
s
h
if
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

In
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 -

 g
o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 w

e
ll 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 p

a
re

n
t 
fo

ru
m

.

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 f
u
tu

re
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 m

a
p
p
in

g
 o

f 
g
ro

u
p
s
, 
h
o
ld

in
g
 a

 p
a
re

n
t's

 e
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 m

e
th

o
d
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
.

B
ro

a
d
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
p
a
re

n
t's

 

e
v
e
n
t

L
in

k
s
 t

o
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

's
 P

la
n

D
ir
e
c
t 
lin

k
 t
o
: 
C

Y
P

P
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 1

 (
A

c
ti
o
n
 1

.5
)

R
e
la

te
d
 A

c
ti
o
n
: 
C

Y
P

P
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 1

 (
A

c
ti
o
n
 1

.1
0
)

A
P

A
 a

re
a
 o

f 
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 -

 N
O

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r,

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

P
C

T
Ia

n
 C

a
m

e
ro

n
 /
 C

h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 O

u
tr

a
m

L
e
e
d
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t

C
h
ri
s
 B

u
tl
e
r 

/ 
M

ik
e
 D

o
y
le

L
e
e
d
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t

C
h
ri
s
 B

u
tl
e
r 

/ 
M

ik
e
 D

o
y
le

L
e
e
d
s
 C

o
lle

g
e
s

C
a
ro

ly
n
 W

ri
g
h
t

J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s

Ia
n
 H

u
n
te

r

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 &
 E

n
a
b
le

m
e
n
t

C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s

C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s

J
o
h
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d

J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s

Ia
n
 H

u
n
te

r

L
e
e
d
s
 C

o
lle

g
e
s

C
a
ro

ly
n
 W

ri
g
h
t

Page 31



H
W

-3
d

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

a
ti

n
g

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

A
m

b
e
r

P
I 
R

e
f

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 d

a
te

D
a
ta

 Q
u

a
li
ty

L
S

P
-H

W
2
b
(i
)

1
,2

8
1

(8
3
.6

 p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
)

1
,1

5
6

(7
5
.4

 p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
)

1
,0

3
1

(6
7
.3

 p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
)

9
0
6

(5
9
.1

 p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
)

1
2
5
5

(8
2
.1

 p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
)

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

T
o
n
y
 G

ri
ff
in

O
n
g
o
in

g
A

ll 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

7
th

 M
a
y

1
9
th

 J
u
n
e

3
1
s
t 
J
u
ly

7
th

 A
u
g
u
s
t

2
8
th

 A
u
g
u
s
t

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
0

S
a
l 
T

a
ri
q

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8

S
a
l 
T

a
ri
q

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
0

S
a
l 
T

a
ri
q
 &

 L
iz

 S
h
in

g
le

r

A
s
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
3
rd

 

s
e
c
to

r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 i
s
 u

n
k
n
o
w

n
 

it
 i
s
 i
m

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 p

u
t 
a
 

d
a
te

 o
n
 t
h
is

 b
u
t 
it
 i
s
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 w

o
rk

 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

e
ll 

in
to

 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
0

B
ry

a
n
 G

o
e
k
e

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 U

p
d

a
te

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 o

n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 o
n
 t
h
is

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

. 
 L

o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 b

u
t 
n
o
t 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 s
e
t.
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e
c
o
g
n
it
io

n
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 k
e
y
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 a
c
ro

s
s
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
it
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 t
im

e
 t
o
 s

a
fe

ly
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

.

T
h
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
lo

n
e
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
c
a
p
tu

re
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

x
it
y
 o

f 
m

a
k
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 ,
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n
 o

n
ly

 b
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

D
e
fi

n
it

io
n

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

(e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 r
a
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
) 

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 u

n
a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
 

a
s
y
lu

m
 s

e
e
k
e
rs

Im
p

ro
v

e
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 

a
d

u
lt

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 b

e
tt

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

re
c

o
g

n
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
 r

is
k

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

r,
 C

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

's
 S

o
c

ia
l 

C
a

re
L

e
e

d
s

 C
C

 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 2

0
0
8
/0

9

A
 p

ilo
t 
in

 t
h
e
 E

a
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 C

Y
P

S
C

 h
a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

 f
a
s
t-

tr
a
c
k
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

it
h
 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 G
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
 (

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
rt

s
).

  
T

h
is

 a
llo

w
s
 

fo
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
m

 b
e
fo

re
 l
a
u
n
c
h
in

g
 c

o
u
rt

 p
ro

c
e
e
d
in

g
s
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
a
 v

ie
w

 a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 

lik
e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 
d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 b

e
fo

re
 p

ro
c
e
e
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 i
n
it
ia

te
d
. 
T

h
e
 p

ilo
t 
h
a
s
 h

a
d
 

s
o
m

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t.

A
 P

ilo
t 
w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
, 
in

 t
h
e
 E

a
s
t 
a
re

a
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
, 
le

a
d
in

g
 t
o
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r,

 p
la

c
e
d
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
. 
 L

e
s
s
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
is

 P
ilo

t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 l
e
a
rn

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

re
 

n
o
w

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
to

 a
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
is

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

.

S
o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
th

is
 c

it
y
 w

id
e
.

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
re

c
o
g
n
it
io

n
 t
h
a
t 
a
 b

ro
a
d
e
r 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 c
lo

s
e
r 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 e

n
te

ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c

a
re

 s
y
s
te

m
. 
 A

 p
ilo

t 
o
f 

F
a
m

ily
 G

ro
u
p
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
in

g
  
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 o
f 
th

e
 c

it
y
. 
 A

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

L
o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
h
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 t
h
is

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f

fa
m

ili
e
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
in

g
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
in

p
u
t 
a
n
d
/o

r 
re

a
c
h
in

g
 s

u
c
h
 a

 s
ta

g
e
 w

h
e
re

 c
h
ild

re
n
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
m

e
 i
n
to

 c
a
re

. 

(S
o
m

e
 w

o
rk

 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b

e
g
u
n
 o

n
 t
h
is

.)

A
 r

is
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 w

h
e
re

 p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 a

n
d
 d

is
e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
, 
le

a
d
in

g
 

to
 t
h
e
s
e
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 c

o
m

in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
t 
a
 

p
o
in

t 
w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

h
a
rd

 t
o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
 e

n
te

ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c

a
re

 

s
y
s
te

m
.

B
u
ild

 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m

 w
h
o
 a

re
 g

o
in

g
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e

M
a
p
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

s
-i
s

T
ri
a
l 
a
n
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 n

e
w

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
d
e
ls

 a
n
d
 s

e
le

c
t 
th

e
 o

p
ti
m

u
m

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n

D
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 w

ri
te

 a
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

la
n

A
g
re

e
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
-o

ff
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 m
o
d
e
l,
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

la
n

C
h
a
n
g
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 A

s
-i
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 m
o
d
e
l

R
e
v
ie

w
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 a

ft
e
r 

3
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
n
 6

 m
o
n
th

s

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

a
n
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 w

a
n
t 
to

 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s

R
e
c
ru

it
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

ro
le

 t
o
 f
re

e
 u

p
 t
h
e
 t
e
a
m

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

to
 g

o
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
c
e
n
tr

e

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 h

a
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

E
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
.

E
n
s
u
re

 n
e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
.

F
ro

n
tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff
 n

o
t 
b
e
in

g
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
h
o
w

 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 c

o
u
ld

 i
m

p
e
d
e
 g

o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

 d
u
ty

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 w

e
lf
a
re

 o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

1
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 A

c
t 
2
0
0
4
. 
U

n
d
e
r 

th
is

 d
u
ty

 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 h

a
s
 

w
o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 3

rd
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
ir
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

1
. 
T

h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 u

n
it
 a

n
d
 h

is
 t
e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 m

e
t 
w

it
h
 3

0
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 h

a
d
 a

 c
o
n
fe

rn
c
e
 w

it
h
 o

v
e
r 

4
0
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 1

1
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
fo

c
u
s
s
in

g
 o

n
:

1
) 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g

2
) 

a
lle

g
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
s
ta

ff

3
) 

s
a
fe

r 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 h
u
n
d
re

d
s
 o

f 
3
rd

 s
e
c
to

r 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 o

n
 t
h
is

 p
ie

c
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 w

ill
 b

e
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
y
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 m

o
re

 a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

to
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 t
h
o
s
e
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

1
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 A

c
t 
2
0
0
4
.

T
h
e
 b

ig
g
e
s
t 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 
o
n
c
e
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 b

ri
e
fe

d
 a

n
d
 m

a
d
e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 

o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

1
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 t
h
e
 

w
ill

in
g
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
re

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 o
n
 t
im

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 

a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 8

0
%

 t
a
rg

e
t.
 W

h
ils

t 
ti
m

e
lin

e
s
s
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
w

e
 a

re
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
. 
T

ra
in

in
g
 f
o
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
im

e
d
 a

t 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
s
ix

 

m
o
n
th

s
.

A
 f
u
ll 

tr
a
in

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 b

e
fo

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 a

s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 

w
ill

 s
p
e
e
d
 u

p
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

s
 p

e
o
p
le

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 m

o
re

 f
a
m

ili
a
r 

w
it
h
 i
t.

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
is

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
n
e
 r

is
k
 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
. 
F

in
d
in

g
 t
im

e
 a

n
d
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 t
ra

in
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 
th

a
t 
w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
h
ild

re
n
 c

a
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
th

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

t 
th

e
 r

ig
h
t 
ti
m

e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
c
e
n
tr

e
, 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 
a
 P

ID
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 o

n
 d

e
s
ig

n
in

g
 n

e
w

 

p
a
th

w
a
y
s
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
in

n
a
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 a
re

 n
o
t 
s
e
n
t 
to

 C
Y

P
S

C
 b

u
t 
a
re

 s
e
n
t 

to
 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e

Page 32



T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

B
ry

a
n
 G

o
e
k
e

T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 e

v
e
ry

 

6
 m

o
n
th

s

B
ry

a
n
 G

o
e
k
e

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

B
ry

a
n
 G

o
e
k
e

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
0

B
ry

a
n
 G

o
e
k
e

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
0

B
ry

a
n
 G

o
e
k
e

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

V
C

F
S

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

W
e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 P

o
lic

e

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

W
h
ils

t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 

m
a
k
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

w
h
e
n
 w

e
 d

o
 S

C
R

's
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

r 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 i
s
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s

U
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 1

1
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 (

s
e
e
 a

b
o
v
e
) 

th
e
 L

S
C

B
 h

a
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 r

e
-

a
u
d
it
in

g
 (

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

 s
e
lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
) 

k
e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
ir
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 1

1
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
ir
 s

e
lf
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
in

 O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
7
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 t
ra

in
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
y
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 s

in
c
e
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 a

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 p

ic
k
 o

u
t 
a
n
y
 g

a
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
n
't 

b
e
e
n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 

a
n
d
 r

e
-a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
m

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a

g
e
n
c
y

O
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 

a
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 i
n
 b

ri
n
g
in

g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s

T
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 u

p
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 W

e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 I
n
te

r-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 t
h
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

k
e
y
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 i
n

1
) 

in
te

rn
a
l 
tr

a
ff
ic

k
in

g

2
) 

c
h
ild

 s
e
x
u
a
l 
e
x
p
lo

it
a
ti
o
n

3
) 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 m

is
s
in

g

T
h
e
 W

e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 I
n
te

r-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
. 
T

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

d
e
a
d
lin

e
 f
o
r 

u
p
d
a
te

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

0
9
.

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 r

is
k
s
 t
o
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 b

u
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 i
n
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 u

s
in

g
 a

n
d
 o

w
n
in

g
 t
h
o
s
e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s

T
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 p

ro
to

c
o
ls

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 a

d
u
lt
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

in
g
 

w
it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 
o
f 
p
a
re

n
ta

l 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 &

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
s

T
h
e
 p

ro
to

c
o
ls

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

ilo
te

d
 l
a
te

r 
th

is
 y

e
a
r 

in
 O

c
to

b
e
r,

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

T
h
e
 m

a
jo

r 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

ilo
ts

 i
s
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

w
it
h
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
E

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 a

d
h
e
re

d
 

to
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 w

h
y
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
n
't 

b
e
in

g
 

a
d
h
e
re

d
 t
o
 i
s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e

T
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 s

e
t 
u
p
 a

 t
a
s
k
 g

ro
u
p
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

ri
m

in
a
l 

ju
s
ti
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
u
re

 e
s
ta

te
 (

in
c
a
rc

e
ra

ti
o
n
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

).
 T

h
e
 t
a
s
k
 g

ro
u
p
 w

ill
 l
o
o
k
 a

t,
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
:

1
) 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s

2
) 

tr
a
in

in
g
 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff

3
) 

in
ju

ri
e
s
 &

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

a
in

ts

W
e
th

e
rb

y
 Y

o
u
n
g
 O

ff
e
n
d
e
r 

In
s
ti
tu

te
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
-w

ri
tt
e
n
 t
h
e
ir
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 

o
u
r 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 

T
h
e
 t
a
s
k
 g

ro
u
p
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
u
re

 e
s
ta

te
W

h
ils

t 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 r

e
-w

ri
tt
e
n
 i
n
 s

e
c
u
re

 

e
s
ta

te
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

a
n
d
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 i
s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

L
in

k
s
 t

o
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

's
 P

la
n

D
ir
e
c
tl
y
 l
in

k
e
d
: 
A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 8

 (
A

c
ti
o
n
 8

.7
);

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 9

 (
A

c
ti
o
n
 9

.9
);

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 1

 

(A
c
ti
o
n
s
 1

.8
 &

 1
.4

)

R
e
la

te
d
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
: 
A

ll 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 9

 a
n
d
 a

ll 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 8

A
P

A
 a

re
a
 o

f 
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
: 
Y

e
s
 (

ti
m

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
s
 &

 f
o
s
te

ri
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
)

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 S

e
ri
o
u
s
 C

a
s
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 (

S
C

R
)

T
h
e
 L

S
C

B
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 t
h
e
 S

C
R

 s
y
s
te

m
 -

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 m

o
re

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
d
e
c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

w
h
e
n
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 d

o
 S

C
R

's
. 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 w

ri
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 S

C
R

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 b

y
 w

h
ic

h
 S

C
R

's
 a

re
 p

u
lle

d
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

n
 o

v
e
rv

ie
w

 

re
p
o
rt

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 S

C
R

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
3
 m

o
n
th

s

A
 m

a
jo

r 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 i
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
s
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 o

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s

K
e
it
h
 B

u
rt

o
n

A
n
n
 P

e
m

b
e
rt

o
n
/J

e
a
n
e
tt
e
 M

o
rr

is
 B

o
a
m

C
h
ri
s
 E

d
w

a
rd

s

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

L
e
e
d
s
 C

o
lle

g
e
s

C
a
ro

ly
n
 W

ri
g
h
t

S
a
lly

 T
h
re

lf
a
ll

Page 33



L
N

-1
c

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

a
ti

n
g

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

A
m

b
e
r

P
I 
R

e
f

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 Y

e
a
r 

e
n

d
 R

e
s
u

lt
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li
ty

N
I 
7
9

6
5
.0

%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

6
8
.6

%

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

7
1
.6

%

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

7
5
.2

%

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

6
8
%

(6
2
1
8
/9

1
1
0
)

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
8
0

4
1
.0

%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

4
3
.0

%

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

4
7
.0

%

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

4
9
.0

%

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

4
2
%

(3
8
4
8
/9

1
1
0
)

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 &

 2
0
1
0

1
4
-1

9
 P

la
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
 w

it
h
 c

o
re

 g
ro

u
p
 

fr
o
m

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
, 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 Y

o
u
th

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 

a
n
d
 S

k
ill

s
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

O
n
g
o
in

g
1
4
-1

9
 P

la
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
 w

it
h
 c

o
re

 g
ro

u
p
 

fr
o
m

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
, 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 Y

o
u
th

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 

a
n
d
 S

k
ill

s
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

O
n
g
o
in

g
1
4
-1

9
 P

la
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
 w

it
h
 c

o
re

 g
ro

u
p
 

fr
o
m

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
, 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 Y

o
u
th

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 

a
n
d
 S

k
ill

s
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 t
o
 t
h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 U
p

d
a

te
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

ro
v

e
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 a
n

d
 s

k
il

l 
le

v
e

ls
 f

o
r 

a
ll

 1
9

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
.

C
h

ri
s

 E
d

w
a

rd
s

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 2

0
0
8
/0

9

T
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

te
a
d
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
2
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
. 
In

it
ia

l 
a
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 3

0
/0

4
/0

9
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
le

v
e
l 
2
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
o
 6

8
%

 (
6
2
1
8
/9

1
1
0
).

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
3
.8

%
 p

o
in

ts
 a

n
d
 i
s
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
2
.7

%
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
it
h
 a

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
7
6
.7

%
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
g
a
p
 r

e
m

a
in

s
. 
L
e
v
e
l 
3
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 4

1
%

 t
o
 4

2
%

 (
3
8
4
8
/9

1
1
0
) 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fi
g
u
re

 m
a
rg

in
a
lly

 w
id

e
n
in

g
, 
a
s
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

e
n
t 
u
p
 1

.7
%

 t
o
 4

9
.8

%
. 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

k
e
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 o
n
 t
ra

c
k
 b

u
t 
th

is
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
re

s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 s

te
p
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 
 C

o
m

p
le

x
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
1
4
-1

9
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
le

a
rn

in
g
 p

a
th

w
a
y
s
 a

n
d
 

n
e
w

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 D

ip
lo

m
a
s
.

D
e
fi

n
it

io
n

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 L

e
v
e
l 
2
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
1
9
. 
 T

h
e
 D

C
S

F
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

th
a
t 
d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

w
ill

 n
o
t 
b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
.

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
L
e
v
e
l 
3
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
1
9
. 
 T

h
e
 D

C
S

F
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

th
a
t 
d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

w
ill

 n
o
t 
b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

B
y
 2

0
1
3
 1

4
 D

ip
lo

m
a
s
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
3
 l
e
v
e
ls

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

1
4
-1

9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 w
it
h
 a

 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

3
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

1
6
-1

9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
. 
 F

ro
m

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 L

e
e
d
s
 h

a
d
=

s
 b

e
e
n
 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t
o
 a

ro
u
n
d
 1

0
0
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 s

tu
d
y
in

g
 f
o
r 

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 C

re
a
ti
v
e
 

a
n
d
 M

e
d
ia

 d
ip

lo
m

a
s
.

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 a
n
d
 D

ip
lo

m
a
s
 w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 r

a
p
id

ly
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
. 
 T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
is

 f
o
r 

5
0
0
 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 c
h
o
o
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 a

 m
e
n
u
 o

f 
7
 d

ip
lo

m
a
s
. 
 A

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

ill
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
e
 6

 n
e
w

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 d
e
liv

e
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
ip

lo
m

a
s
 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
0
.

T
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
n
fe

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 (

s
e
e
 b

e
lo

w
) 

is
 k

e
y
  
to

 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
1
4
-1

9
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y

D
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
8
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 1

4
-1

9
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

e
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
y
 a

d
d
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 

h
a
v
e
 c

o
h
e
re

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
A

 n
e
w

 c
o
n
fe

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 

e
m

e
rg

e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
s
e
 f
in

d
in

g
s
, 
d
iv

id
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 i
n
to

 5
 a

re
a
 b

a
s
e
d
 w

e
d
g
e
s
 (

N
o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t,
 

N
o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t,
 S

o
u
th

, 
E

a
s
t,
 W

e
s
t)

. 
 E

a
c
h
 c

o
n
fe

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 

F
E

 C
o
lle

g
e
, 
V

C
F

S
, 
W

B
L
P

, 
L
S

C
, 
L
A

 a
n
d
 E

L
. 
T

h
e
 k

e
y
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
fe

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

a
re

 t
o
: 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r

e
b
u
ild

 a
n
d
 r

e
m

o
d
e
l 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 a
n
d
 p

o
s
t-

1
6
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
; 

e
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 h

a
v
e
 t
h
e
 s

k
ill

s
, 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t;
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
u
ty

 t
o
 

m
a
tc

h
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 t
o
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 a

n
d
 p

re
fe

re
n
c
e
s
; 
p
ro

v
id

e
 c

h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 t
o
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
; 
a
n
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 L

e
e
d
s
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 P
la

n
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
.

 W
o
rk

 i
s
 n

o
w

 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 o

n
 t
h
e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 
T

h
e
 c

o
lle

g
e
 

m
e
rg

e
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l.
 A

 g
o
v
e
rn

in
g
 b

o
d
y
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
u
p
 f
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e
 a

n
d
 a

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
. 
 A

ll 
c
o
n
fe

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 

a
g
rr

e
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 N

E
E

T
 i
s
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

.

P
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 o

n
 h

o
w

 

b
e
s
t 
to

 m
o
v
e
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 c
o
n
fe

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 

th
e
 m

a
in

 d
ri
v
e
rs

 a
ro

u
n
d
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 1

4
-1

9
 l
e
a
rn

e
r 

e
n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 u

rg
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

N
E

E
T

 a
t 
w

e
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 

c
lu

s
te

r 
le

v
e
l.

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 b

y
 

IY
S

S
/E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
IA

G
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 m
a
tc

h
e
s
 I
A

G
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
. 
 I
Y

S
S

 a
n
d
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

re
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
IA

G
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

.

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 1

4
-1

9
 r

e
fo

rm
s
 i
s
 d

e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 I
A

G
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
T

h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
IY

S
S

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
P

ro
s
p
e
c
ts

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 n

e
w

 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f
ro

m
 1

s
t 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 a

 s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 o

f 
IA

G
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

e
rs

 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 1

4
-1

9
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

IA
G

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

ro
u
n
d
s
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 w

ill
 e

n
a
b
le

 f
u
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 t
o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
, 
a
n
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 u

s
in

g
 a

 c
o
h
e
re

n
t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 w

id
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 k
e
y
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

. 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 I
A

G
 a

c
ro

s
s
 c

o
n
s
o
rt

ia
; 
to

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 S

k
ill

s
 A

c
t 
2
0
0
8
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

im
p
a
rt

ia
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
a
ll 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 r

o
u
te

s
; 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

th
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

ro
u
n
d
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
tu

to
rs

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 o

n
 b

o
a
rd

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

fo
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g
 D

C
S

F
 I
A

G
 P

o
s
it
io

n
 P

a
p
e
r.

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
  
fo

r 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
e
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 n

e
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 

lo
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
fe

d
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
.

Page 34



T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

A
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 Y

e
a
r 

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 

a
n
d
 o

n
g
o
in

g
.

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e

L
in

k
s
 t
o
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 P

la
n

D
ir
e
c
t 
L
in

k
 t
o
: 
C

Y
P

P
 A

c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 5

 (
A

c
ti
o
n
s
 5

.1
, 
5
.3

, 

5
.7

,5
.1

0
)

A
P

A
 a

re
a
 o

f 
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
: 
Y

e
s

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

 &
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

A
 f
u
ll 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ilo
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o

f 
i-
L
e
e
d
s
- 

th
e
 E

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 I
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
L
e
a
rn

in
g
 P

la
n
- 

is
 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
. 
F

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

w
ill

 i
n
fo

rm
 a

n
y
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
o
ft
w

a
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
w

w
w

.i
-l
e
e
d
s
.n

e
t.
 T

h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
i-
L
e
e
d
s
 i
n
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

ff
-s

it
e
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

ip
lo

m
a
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 w
ill

 b
e
 k

e
y
 t
o
 e

m
b
e
d
d
in

g
 u

s
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 f
o
r 

i-
L
e
e
d
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

. 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 F

E
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
 w

ill
 e

n
a
b
le

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro

to
c
o
ls

 a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 b

e
s
t 

u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
t 
in

 r
a
is

in
g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

le
a
rn

e
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
ta

k
e
 u

p
 i
s
 5

0
%

 o
f 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
.

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 i
n
fo

rm
 a

n
y
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
o
ft
w

a
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
w

w
w

.i
-l
e
e
d
s
.n

e
t.
 T

h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
i-

L
e
e
d
s
 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

ff
-s

it
e
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

ip
lo

m
a
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 w
ill

 b
e
 k

e
y
 t
o
 e

m
b
e
d
d
in

g
 u

s
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 f
o
r 

i-
L
e
e
d
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

. 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 F

E
 

c
o
lle

g
e
s
 w

ill
 e

n
a
b
le

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro

to
c
o
ls

 a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 b

e
s
t 
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
t 
in

 r
a
is

in
g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

le
a
rn

e
rs

.

 T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
ta

k
e
 u

p
 i
s
 5

0
%

 o
f 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 d
u
ri
n
g
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
. 
 R

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(a

n
d
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
) 

 o
f 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
e
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 a
n
d
 d

a
ta

 s
e
ts

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 t
o
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
.

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r,

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

L
e
e
d
s
 C

o
lle

g
e
s

C
a
ro

ly
n
 W

ri
g
h
t

C
a
th

e
ri
n
e
 B

la
n
s
h
a
rd

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 F

a
it
h
 S

e
c
to

r
L
is

a
 W

ri
g
h
t

S
a
lly

 T
h
re

lf
a
ll

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 S

k
ill

s
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
n
n
e
 C

ra
v
e
n

S
te

p
h
e
n
 B

o
y
le

Page 35



L
N

-1
d

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

a
ti

n
g

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

A
m

b
e
r

P
I 
R

e
f

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 Y

e
a
r 

e
n

d
 R

e
s
u

lt
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li
ty

N
I 
1
1
7

9
.1

%

(A
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
N

o
v
, 
D

e
c
, 
a
n
d
 J

a
n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
a
s
 p

e
r 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
)

8
.9

%
7
.8

%
6
.8

0
%

9
.5

%

(2
2
4
6
)

S
o
m

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
4
5

6
8
.2

0
%

7
3
.0

%
7
5
.5

%
7
8
.0

0
%

7
6
.2

4
%

(1
1
7
1
/1

5
3
6
)

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
4
8

7
1
.3

%

(2
0
0
6
/0

7
)

7
6
.6

%
8
1
.7

0
%

8
6
.8

0
%

6
8
.9

%

(9
3
/1

3
5
)

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

1
. 
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
0

2
. 
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0

3
. 
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

4
. 
 S

e
p
t 
2
0
0
9

5
. 
 S

e
p
t 
2
0
0
9

1
. 
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
IY

S
S

2
. 
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
IY

S
S

3
. 
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
1
4
-1

9
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

4
. 
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

5
. 
 L

o
c
a
lit

y
 E

n
a
b
le

rs

A
p
r-

1
0

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
IY

S
S

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
, 
S

e
p
t 
2
0
0
9
 a

n
d
 

S
e
p
t 
2
0
1
0
.

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
IY

S
S

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 U
p

d
a

te
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

In
c

re
a

s
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 g

ro
u

p
s

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 i

n
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 o

r 
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t

S
a

ll
y

 T
h

re
lf

a
ll

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 2

0
0
8
/0

9

T
h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 f
o
r 

N
E

E
T

 w
a
s
 s

e
t 
in

 2
0
0
7
 a

t 
9
.1

%
. 
  
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

e
c
lin

e
d
 t
o
 1

0
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 N
E

E
T

 f
ro

m
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

b
a
c
k
 d

o
w

n
 t
o
 9

.5
%

. 
 T

h
is

 f
a
ll 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
t 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
o
f 
8
.9

%
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e

 m
a
in

 C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 

re
c
o
m

is
s
io

n
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

v
id

e
r,

 P
ro

s
p
e
c
ts

, 
in

 p
la

c
e
 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
, 
w

ill
 m

a
k
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

y
 a

) 
w

o
rk

in
g
 m

o
re

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 g
e
t 
th

e
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
t 

th
e
 r

ig
h
t 
ti
m

e
 a

n
d
 b

) 
b
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
to

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 N

E
E

T
. 
O

th
e
r 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
c
o
m

is
s
io

n
e
d
. 
 W

h
ils

t 
a
 N

E
E

T
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 G

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
t's

 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 t
a
rg

e
t.
  
 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 

ri
s
k
s
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
ri
s
k
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

is
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
re

: 
- 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 r

e
c
e
s
s
io

n
; 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
u
tb

a
c
k
s
 w

it
h
in

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t;
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 d

u
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
.

D
e
fi

n
it

io
n

1
6
 -

 1
8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 n

o
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
(N

E
E

T
)

Y
o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

C
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 N
E

E
T

 h
a
s
 r

is
e
n
 f
ro

m
 9

.1
%

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 (

in
 0

6
/0

7
) 

to
 1

0
%

 

(i
n
 0

7
/0

8
).

  
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 9

.5
%

, 
th

is
 f
a
ll 

is
 n

o
t 

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
to

 m
e
e
t 
in

te
ri
m

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 L

A
A

 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
6
.8

%
.

N
o
n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 i
s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
p
re

d
ic

to
r 

o
f 
la

te
r 

u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
, 
d
e
p
re

s
s
io

n
, 
in

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
in

 c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 p

o
o
r 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
.

T
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

is
s
e
d
 b

y
 0

.6
%

. 
 W

h
ile

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

a
n
d
 t
ra

n
s
is

ti
o
n
a
l 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 h

a
d
 a

 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 N

E
E

T
, 
th

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 r

ig
h
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
r 

is
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 N

E
E

T
 a

n
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 

d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

.

T
h
e
 N

E
E

T
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 G

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
. 
A

 w
o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 w

it
h
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 P

ro
s
p
e
c
ts

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 N
E

E
T

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 (
fo

r 
y
e
a
r 

1
1
 

le
a
v
e
rs

) 
fo

r 
e
a
c
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
to

 b
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
s
. 
 A

 w
o
rk

in
g
 

g
ro

u
p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 w

it
h
 c

o
lle

a
g
e
s
 t
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
' 
ro

le
 i
n
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 

N
E

E
T

. 
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 f
o
r 

Y
r 

1
1
 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
.

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 I
A

G
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
w

a
rd

e
d
 t
o
 P

ro
s
p
e
c
ts

 a
m

o
u
n
ti
n
g
 t
o
 £

1
0
.2

9
5
m

 o
v
e
r 

3
 y

e
a
rs

.

 T
h
e
 £

9
.2

m
 l
o
c
a
lit

y
 b

a
s
e
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
n
d
 c

it
y
 w

id
e
/c

it
y
-c

e
n
tr

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(t

a
rg

e
tt
e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 g

o
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t,
 a

g
a
in

 o
v
e
r 

3
 y

e
a
rs

1
. 
 T

h
e
 N

E
E

T
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 G

ro
u
p
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
it
s
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ro
fi
le

, 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
ri
s
k
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 

N
E

E
T

.

2
. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

o
f 
C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 (

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
w

a
rd

e
d
 t
o
 P

ro
s
p
e
c
ts

 L
td

) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o

th
e
rs

 a
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
A

ll 
n
e
w

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

3
. 
 P

o
s
t 
1
6
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 o

n
 a

 w
e
d
g
e
 b

a
s
is

 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g
 a

ll 
p
o
s
t 
1
6
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 i
n
 u

s
in

g
 d

a
ta

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 o

ff
e
r 

o
f 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 m
e
e
ts

 n
e
e
d
. 

4
. 
 E

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
lil

ty
 o

f 
ro

b
u
s
t 
d
a
ta

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
s
e
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 "

n
o
t 

k
n
o
w

n
".

  
E

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 r
e
c
o
rd

in
g
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
a
ll 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 N

E
E

T
 a

n
d
 

m
a
k
e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

u
s
e
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t
h
e
 m

a
k
e
-u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 N

E
E

T
 

c
o
h
o
rt

 (
in

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
d
e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

 d
a
ta

) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
.

5
. 
  
C

h
ild

re
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 W

e
d
g
e
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 T
e
a
m

s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
ir
 o

w
n
 l
o
c
a
lis

e
d
 d

a
ta

 a
n
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 N

E
E

T
.

6
. 
 C

lo
s
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 C

Y
P

S
C

 a
n
d
 Y

O
S

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
w

id
e
r 

IY
S

S
 t
o
 b

u
ild

 o
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 Y

O
S

.

1
. 
T

h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
IY

S
S

 B
o
a
rd

 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
s
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 e

a
rl
ie

r 

th
a
n
 J

a
n
 2

0
1
0
.

2
. 
 R

is
k
 t
h
a
t 
re

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 

n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 t
o
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

.

3
. 
 L

o
c
a
lis

e
d
 m

o
d
e
ls

 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
p
o
s
t-

1
6
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 d

o
 n

o
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 e
n
o
u
g
h
 o

r 
w

it
h
 e

n
o
u
g
h
 c

o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
n
e
e
d
e
d
.

4
. 
D

a
ta

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
ro

m
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
s
 n

o
t 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 g

iv
e
 c

le
a
r 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

.

5
. 
 A

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 l
o
c
a
l 
d
a
ta

, 
w

ill
in

g
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 r

e
a
lig

n
 w

o
rk

 

re
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
ly

.

T
h
e
 D

C
S

F
 h

a
v
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 T

a
rg

e
te

d
 Y

o
u
th

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f
u
lly

 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

.

T
h
e
 I
Y

S
S

 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e
d
. 
A

 p
ilo

t 
is

 o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
e
s
t 

o
u
t 
th

e
 m

o
d
e
l 
in

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

e
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

it
y
, 
fr

o
m

 t
h
is

 b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

e
d
.

In
te

g
ra

ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

.

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 H
u
b
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 S

o
u
th

 L
e
e
d
s
 H

u
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

s
 a

 

m
a
jo

r 
s
te

p
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
.

T
h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

u
t 
to

 t
e
n
d
e
r 

in
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
w

a
rd

e
d
 b

y
 S

e
p
t 

2
0
0
9
. 
 T

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 m
o
d
e
l 
w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 S

e
p
t 
2
0
1
0
.

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 m
o
d
e
l 
is

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

y
 a

 

P
ro

je
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

w
h
o
s
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
e
n
d
s
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

Page 36



T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

A
p
r-

1
0

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

o
f 
T

a
rg

e
te

d
 

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e

A
p
r-

1
0

IY
S

S
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

M
a
y
-0

9
In

te
ri
m

 C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

C
Y

P
S

C

M
a
y
-0

9
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
Y

O
S

L
in

k
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

's
 P

la
n

D
ir
e
c
t 
L
in

k
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
: 

C
Y

P
P

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 5

 

(A
c
ti
o
n
s
 5

.1
, 
5
.2

, 
5
.4

, 

5
.6

, 
5
.7

 (
1
) 

a
n
d
 (

2
))

A
P

A
 A

re
a
 o

f 
w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
: 
Y

e
s

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

C
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

P
a
u
l 
B

ro
u
g
h
to

n
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

In
 2

0
0
8
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 b

id
 f
o
r 

E
u
ro

p
e
a
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
F

u
n
d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

N
E

E
T

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
 U

p
 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
£
1
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 r

is
e
 t
o
 £

2
.5

m
 o

v
e
r 

3
 

y
e
a
rs

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

7
 V

C
F

S
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 f
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 a

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
 i
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 

b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 d

ra
w

in
g
 d

o
w

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
(u

p
 t
o
) 

£
1
.5

m

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 n

o
t 
a
t 
th

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 t
h
e
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
s

P
ro

s
p
e
c
ts

 h
a
v
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 a

 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 a

im
in

g
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 n
e
w

 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
0
. 
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 c

e
n
tr

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
, 
th

e
re

b
y
 r

e
m

o
v
in

g
 a

 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 r

is
k
 o

f 
m

a
jo

r 
d
is

ru
p
ti
o
n
 

to
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 w

o
rl
d
 c

la
s
s
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 y

o
u
th

 h
u
b
 c

e
n
tr

e
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
s
 a

 r
e
a
lit

y

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 u
n
w

ill
in

g
 o

r 
u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
it
 t
o
 j
o
in

t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 d

o
w

n
tu

rn
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 h

a
s
 f
a
lle

n
. 
 T

h
e
 

re
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 m

e
t.
 T

h
is

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ic

tu
re

 w
it
h
 l
e
s
s
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 i
n
 s

e
c
u
ri
n
g
 

a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

s
. 
T

h
e
 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
a
s
y
lu

m
 s

e
e
k
e
rs

 w
h
o
 a

re
 n

o
n
-

c
o
n
ta

c
ta

b
le

 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 l
o
s
t 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
 n

e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

h
a
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
le

c
te

d
  
w

h
o
 C

Y
P

S
C

 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
.

T
o
 h

e
lp

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
th

e
 t
e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 a

d
d
e
d
 o

n
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
A

d
v
is

e
r,

 

ta
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta

l 
u
p
 t
o
 3

 P
A

s
. 
T

h
e
 t
e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 a

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
p
o
lic

y
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 h

e
a
v
ily

 w
e
ig

h
te

d
 t
o
 

re
w

a
rd

in
g
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 i
n
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 t
o
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 m

a
y
 w

e
ll 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
s
o
u
g
h
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

.

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
  
T

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 u

p
 b

y
 1

2
%

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l,
 R

e
g
io

n
a
l 
a
n
d
 "

F
a
m

ily
 G

ro
u
p
" 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
 T

h
is

 

is
 w

id
e
ly

 s
e
e
n
 a

s
 a

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
s
 f
e
w

 Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 T

e
a
m

s
 r

e
a
c
h
 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t.

T
h
is

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o
u
r 

a
re

a
 t
e
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
n
g
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
w

h
o
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 n

o
t 
b
e
in

g
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
. 
S

ta
ff
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
d
e
v
is

e
 a

 p
la

n
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
.

M
o
re

 a
m

b
it
io

u
s
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
to

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th

is
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r,

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
  
P

lu
s

Ia
n
 H

u
n
te

r

C
h
ri
s
 E

d
w

a
rd

s
L
e
e
d
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t

C
h
ri
s
 B

u
tl
e
r/

M
ik

e
 D

o
y
le

C
a
th

e
ri
n
e
 B

la
n
s
h
a
rd

 
L
e
a
rn

in
g
 S

k
ill

s
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
n
n
e
 C

ra
v
e
n

S
te

p
h
e
n
 B

o
y
le

 
V

C
F

S
  

R
ic

h
a
rd

 N
o
rt

o
n
/R

ic
h
a
rd

 R
o
b
s
o
n

L
e
e
d
s
 C

o
lle

g
e
s

C
a
ro

ly
n
 W

ri
g
h
t

Page 37



L
N

-1
e

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

a
ti

n
g

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

A
m

b
e
r

P
I 
R

e
f

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t 

(P
le

a
s
e
 

n
o

te
 a

ll
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

2
0
0
9
/2

0
1
0
 a

c
a
d

e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r 

a
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 

s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 D

C
S

F
 

a
p

p
ro

v
a
l)

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 Y

e
a
r 

e
n

d
 R

e
s
u

lt
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li
ty

N
I 
7
2

4
7
%

 -
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

4
8
.5

%
 -

 2
0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

5
3
%

 -
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

5
6
%

 -
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r

4
7
.2

%
 -

 2
0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r 

(c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
)

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
7
3

7
1
%

 -
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
re

la
te

s
 t
o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
9
.

7
7
%

 -
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

7
7
%

 -
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r

7
2
%

 -
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r 

(c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
)

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
7
6

3
2
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 -
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
re

la
te

s
 t
o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
9
.

1
1
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 -
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r

1
5
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 -
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

(p
le

a
s
e
 

n
o
te

 f
o
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

th
e
 

D
C

S
F

 h
a
v
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg

e
t 
to

 b
e
 a

 4
0
%

 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

b
e
lo

w
 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
b
y
 2

0
1
1
 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 a

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
a
 5

0
%

 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 

s
u
c
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 2

0
0
7
)

2
8
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 -
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

(c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
)

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
9
2

3
8
%

 -
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

3
3
.3

%
 -

 2
0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

3
0
%

 -
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

3
1
.4

%
 -

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

3
9
.8

%
 -

 2
0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r 

(c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
)

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
9
3

8
3
.9

%
 -

 2
0
0
6
/0

7
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
re

la
te

s
 t
o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
9
.

8
7
%

 -
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

8
9
%

 -
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r

8
3
.9

%
 -

 2
0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r 

(p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l)

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
, 
b
u
t 
p
le

a
s
e
 

n
o
te

 t
h
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 D

C
S

F
 

p
u
b
lis

h
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
.

N
I 
9
4

7
6
.4

%
 -

 2
0
0
6
/0

7
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
re

la
te

s
 t
o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
9
.

8
5
%

 -
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

8
8
%

 -
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r

7
8
%

 -
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r 

(p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l)

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
, 
b
u
t 
p
le

a
s
e
 

n
o
te

 t
h
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 D

C
S

F
 

p
u
b
lis

h
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
.

N
I 
9
9

4
0
%

 -
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
re

la
te

s
 t
o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
9
.

5
6
%

 -
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

4
4
.0

%
 -

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

4
3
%

 -
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r 

(c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
)

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
0
0

3
0
%

 -
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
re

la
te

s
 t
o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
9
.

5
6
%

 -
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

4
6
.7

%
 -

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r

4
1
%

 -
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r 

(c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
)

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 U
p

d
a

te
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

Im
p

ro
v

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 e

a
rl

y
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 c

h
il

d
re

n
, 

w
it

h
 a

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 f

a
m

il
ie

s
 i

n
 d

e
p

ri
v

e
d

 a
re

a
s

.
C

h
ri

s
 E

d
w

a
rd

s
L

e
e

d
s

 C
C

 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 2

0
0
8
/0

9

C
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

a
re

 n
o
w

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

, 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
. 
 C

it
y
-w

id
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 1

 h
a
v
e
 d

e
c
lin

e
d
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 s

ta
ti
c
 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
. 
 A

 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
u
s
ta

in
e
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
a
t 
th

e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
, 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 1

 a
n
d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

. 
  
 A

t 
th

is
 p

o
in

t 
in

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

it
 i
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
s
ta

g
e
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
u
p
ils

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

te
rm

, 
a
n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 w

ill
 s

ta
rt

 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

b
re

a
k
. 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
n

tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

n
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
e
a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
, 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 s
e
lf
-e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 j
u
d
g
e
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 t
o
 b

e
 a

m
b
e
r.

D
e
fi

n
it

io
n

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
7
8
 p

o
in

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 w

it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
6
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 

o
f 
th

e
 s

c
a
le

s
 i
n
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 E

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 
L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 

L
it
e
ra

c
y

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
le

v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
e
re

 f
e
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 6

5
%

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 

E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 

N
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 2

0
%

 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 P

ro
fi
le

 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
t 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 1

 a
n
d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 m

a
th

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 1

 a
n
d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 

L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
a
c
h
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 

L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
a
c
h
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 i
n
 m

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 

Page 38



T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

a
 &

 b
) 

 J
u
ly

 2
0
0
9
 (

b
u
t 
th

e
n
 

s
ta

rt
in

g
 a

g
a
in

 f
ro

m
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
)

c
) 

F
ro

m
 S

e
p
te

rm
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 T

e
a
m

a
) 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

b
) 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0

c
) 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
9

d
) 

A
n
a
ly

s
is

 -
 a

u
tu

m
n
 t
e
rm

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
S

c
h
o
o
l 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
(E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

L
e
e
d
s
 h

o
s
ts

 t
h
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
 E

a
rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs

 O
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 D

u
ty

 o
n
 

b
e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n
 L

e
e
d
s
, 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
S

c
h
o
o
l 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 C
h
a
ir
 o

f 

th
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 O
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

D
u
ty

 B
o
a
rd

)

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

is
s
u
e
s
 e

m
e
rg

in
g
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 1

 a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 w

h
e
re

 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
h
ig

h
 e

n
o
u
g
h
 o

r 
e
v
e
n
 i
n
 d

e
c
lin

e
. 
T

h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

g
e
 (

E
Y

F
S

) 
h
a
s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

n
 a

re
a
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
it
h
 s

o
m

e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 E

Y
F

S
. 
A

 

n
e
w

 j
o
in

t 
a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 p

o
s
t 
o
f 
E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 A
d
v
is

e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
  
L
C

C
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 S
e
rv

ic
e
. 
A

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

re
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
d
 o

n
 m

o
re

 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 t
a
rg

e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

in
g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 n

o
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 g
o
o
d
 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 h

e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 E

Y
F

S
 w

a
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 w

it
h
 h

e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 a

u
tu

m
n
 t
e
rm

. 
A

 s
e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 h

e
ld

 f
o
r 

E
Y

F
S

 c
o
o
rd

in
a
to

rs
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 f
a
m

ili
a
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
E

l
Y

O
t

D
t

T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

re
a
s
 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 d

u
a
l 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 o

f 

ra
is

in
g
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 n

a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
, 
w

it
h
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 u

n
d
e
ra

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 

g
ro

u
p
s
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 c

o
n
s
ti
tu

te
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
h
a
t 
is

 b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r:

• 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 a

n
d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 1

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 

re
v
is

e
d
 m

o
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

h
e
a
d
 t
e
a
c
h
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
to

rs
.

• 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 l
ia

is
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
.

• 
E

n
s
u
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
s
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
 m

o
s
t 
in

 n
e
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 

n
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 a

 g
o
o
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 E

Y
F

S
.

• 
W

o
rk

 w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

m
o
re

 a
b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 1

• 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 t
e
a
c
h
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 i
n
 a

ll 
k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
s

• 
E

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 f
a
m

ili
a
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 f
o
r 

A
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 P

u
p
il 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
le

ra
ti
n
g
 

le
a
rn

in
g

• 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
le

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
t 
a
ll 

le
v
e
ls

 a
n
d
 t
o
 b

u
ild

 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 
le

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 c

it
y
.

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 a

ro
u
n
d
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

, 
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
p
a
y
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
le

a
d
e
rs

 m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
is

in
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 f
o
r 

h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

 m
o
v
in

g
 i
n
to

 a
n
 a

d
v
is

o
ry

 r
o
le

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 m

a
rk

e
t 
s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 a
d
v
is

o
rs

.

T
e
s
ts

 a
n
d
 t
e
a
c
h
e
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 E

a
rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
, 

k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 1

 a
n
d
 k

e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 

2
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

te
rm

 (
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

1
) 

a
n
d
 i
n
it
ia

l 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
. 

A
t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

(e
n
d
 o

f 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
) 

in
it
ia

l 
a
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

ill
 

b
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
ro

u
n
d
 o

f 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

fo
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 f
o
r 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

A
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
s
 1

 a
n
d
 2

 a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 (
a
 

u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
o
ff
e
r 

fo
r 

a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

) 
a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
d
v
is

e
rs

 (
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

c
a
u
s
in

g
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

),
 a

n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
T

h
e
 m

a
in

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

f 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
is

 a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

is
 o

n
 A

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 P

u
p
il 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 (

A
P

P
) 

in
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
, 

re
a
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 w

ri
ti
n
g
. 
A

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r,

 i
t 
is

 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 k

n
o
w

 

a
b
o
u
t 
p
u
p
il-

le
v
e
l 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
s
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
, 
b
u
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l-
le

v
e
l 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

c
a
n
 b

e
 s

e
e
n
 o

n
 a

n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 b

a
s
is

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 O

fs
te

d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
D

u
ri
n
g
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 3
 a

n
d
 4

 

n
o
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
e
n
t 
in

to
 a

n
 O

fs
te

d
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

 a
n
d
 o

n
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
a
m

e
 o

u
t 
o
f 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
. 
T

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
in

 a
n
 O

fs
te

d
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

 h
a
v
e
 a

ll 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
a
v
o
u
ra

b
le

 r
e
p
o
rt

s
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 H

M
I 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 v

is
it
s
 a

n
d
 a

re
 j
u
d
g
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 

m
a
k
in

g
 g

o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
.

F
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
, 
th

e
 D

C
S

F
 h

a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

ta
c
k
lin

g
 p

e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 (

P
A

).
 T

h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
is

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 p

e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
2
.4

%
. 
9
1
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
it
 t
h
is

 c
ri
te

ri
a
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
. 
S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
s
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 T

e
a
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 l
in

k
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 A

d
v
is

e
rs

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 A

re
a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
a
rd

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

p
e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
o
 p

re
s
e
n
t 
a
re

a
 a

n
d
 c

lu
s
te

r 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 r
e
p
o
rt

s
. 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h
v
k
e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
, 
w

it
h
 a

n
 

e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 c

lu
s
te

r 
d
e
liv

e
ry

, 
c
o
m

m
o
n
 p

o
lic

y
, 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

, 
lo

c
a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
, 
g
re

a
te

r 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 d

a
ta

. 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

re
a
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

re
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

T
e
a
m

.

a
) 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
'T

h
e
 

S
k
y
's

 t
h
e
 L

im
it
,'
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
P

A
 p

u
p
ils

 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 P

A
, 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

ro
lle

d
 o

u
t 
to

 4
0
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 
L
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

th
is

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 l
e
d
 t
o
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 5

.5
%

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 p
u
p
il 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 3

1
8
 p

u
p
ils

 c
o
m

in
g
 o

u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 P

A
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

.

b
) 

P
e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s

u
b
m

it
 d

a
ta

 r
e
tu

rn
s
 o

n
 a

 h
a
lf
-t

e
rm

ly
 b

a
s
is

 w
it
h
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
p
o
n
s
e
s
. 

c
) 

T
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
ta

rg
e
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

w
ill

 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
.

T
o
 d

a
te

 o
u
r 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
p
e
rs

is
te

n
t 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

 f
o
r 

b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 a

 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
o
w

e
re

d
 y

e
a
r-

o
n
-y

e
a
r,

 

m
e
a
n
in

g
 t
h
a
t 
e
v
e
n
 a

s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 m
a
k
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 p

e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
, 
m

o
re

 o
f 
th

e
m

 t
h
e
n
 f
a
ll 

in
to

 t
h
e
 

th
re

s
h
o
ld

. 
T

h
is

 m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
te

a
m

s
 w

h
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 L

e
e
d
s
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 o
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 h

a
v
e
 m

o
re

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
. 
T

h
e
 n

e
w

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 p
e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
c
e
n
c
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 t
h
is

 

p
re

s
s
u
re

. 
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 e
ff
o
rt

s
 a

re
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 

th
ro

u
g
h
 m

o
re

 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

a
u
s
e
s
 o

f 

a
b
s
c
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
n
g
h
te

n
in

g
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
le

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
b
o
th

 s
c
h
o
o
l,
 c

lu
s
te

r 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
lit

y
 l
e
v
e
l.

T
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 O
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 D

u
ty

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 f
iv

e
 k

e
y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 o

n
 a

n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 b

a
s
is

 b
y
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 O
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 D

u
ty

 B
o
a
rd

. 
 A

re
a
s
 o

f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
tw

o
 t
e
rm

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
:

 T
h
e
 t
e
a
m

 o
f 
m

o
d
e
ra

to
rs

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

, 
le

a
d
in

g
 t
e
a
c
h
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 s

k
ill

s
 t
e
a
c
h
e
rs

. 
T

h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 i
n
 m

o
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
c
u
re

 E
Y

F
S

P
 j
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
ts

.T
h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
E

Y
F

S
P

 d
a
ta

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
.T

h
e
 E

Y
F

S
P

 d
a
ta

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
e
d
 u

s
in

g
 i
n
d
e
x
 o

f 
m

u
lt
ip

le
 

d
e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 (

IM
D

) 
d
a
ta

 a
n
d
 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 m

o
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 v

is
it
s
.

 S
c
o
p
in

g
 h

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
C

h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 

a
 n

e
w

 r
o
le

 f
o
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 c
e
n
tr

e
s

U
p
c
o
m

in
g
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 O
u
tc

o
m

e
 D

u
ty

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
:

a
) 

U
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 E

Y
F

S
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
'P

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

a
tt
e
rs

' g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

re
p
a
ri
n
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 a

u
tu

m
n
 t
e
rm

.

b
) 

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 r
o
le

 o
f 
C

h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

a
rt

n
e
r,

 u
s
in

g
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

a
rt

n
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

c
) 

A
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

e
a
d
s
 o

f 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

.

d
) 

 U
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
a
n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
E

Y
F

S
P

 d
a
ta

 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

a
t 
fo

r 
d
a
ta

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 

fo
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
.

e
) 

T
e
a
m

 o
f 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
9
. 

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

s
e
tt
in

g
s
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 E

Y
F

S
, 
T

h
e
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

a
n
d
 p

a
rt

-t
im

e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 p

o
s
ts

 h
a
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 a

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 

w
it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 p
la

n
n
in

g
. 
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
is

 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 

in
 t
h
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

te
rm

 f
o
r 

a
 t
e
a
m

 o
f 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

.

Page 39



L
in

k
 t

o
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

's
 P

la
n

 

C
Y

P
P

 A
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 a

 

d
ir
e
c
t 
lin

k
: 
C

Y
P

P
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 3

 (
A

c
ti
o
n
s
: 

3
.2

, 
3
,3

, 
3
,4

)

C
Y

P
P

 r
e
la

te
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
: 
A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 6

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

Page 40



H
M

-1
a

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

a
ti

n
g

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

A
m

b
e
r

P
I 
R

e
f

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 Y

e
a
r 

e
n

d
 R

e
s
u

lt
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li
ty

N
I 
1
1
0

6
5
.9

%

(2
0
0
8
)

7
0
%

6
5
.9

0
%

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
6

N
/A

1
9
.9

%

(p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l)

A
s
 p

e
r 

P
la

c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

M
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

S
e
e
 N

e
x
t 
S

te
p
s
 c

o
lu

m
n

B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
e
w

to
n

S
e
e
 N

e
x
t 
S

te
p
s
 c

o
lu

m
n

S
u
e
 W

y
n
n
e
, 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

H
a

rm
o

n
io

u
s

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 U

p
d

a
te

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

A
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
d

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

lo
c

a
l 

p
e

o
p

le
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 i
n

 a
c

ti
v

it
ie

s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 n
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

li
fe

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
S

te
p

h
e

n
 B

o
y

le
L

e
e

d
s

 C
C

 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 2

0
0
8
/0

9

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 b
e
in

g
 d

ri
v
e
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
w

o
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
A

t 
a
 c

it
y
 w

id
e
 l
e
v
e
l,
 t
h
e
 V

C
F

S
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 G
ro

u
p
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 N

a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 G

a
p
 B

o
a
rd

 o
f 
th

e
 L

e
e
d
s
 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 h

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

 s
u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 o

n
 A

c
ti
v
e
 C

it
iz

e
n
s
h
ip

. 
T

h
is

 S
u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 N

I6
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 w
o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 

fo
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
s
e
. 
 A

t 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 
le

v
e
l,
 A

re
a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 a
 w

id
e
r 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 l
e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 u

s
e
 o

f 
w

e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 f
u
n
d
s
. 
 W

o
rk

 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

is
 b

e
in

g
 l
e
d
 b

y
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 Y

o
u
th

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
. 
K

e
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 y

o
u
th

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

ff
e
r 

c
a
lle

d
 t
h
e
 B

re
e
z
e
 Y

o
u
th

 O
ff
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

 n
e
w

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
je

c
t 
d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 c

a
p
tu

re
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

ly
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 
th

e
 f
o
rm

e
r 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r.

 T
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
p
la

c
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
r 

N
I6

 g
iv

e
s
 u

s
 a

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
1
9
.9

%
. 
 I
t 
is

 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
c
le

a
r 

h
o
w

 t
h
is

 c
o
m

p
a
re

s
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

a
re

a
s
 b

u
t 
th

e
 f
in

a
l 
fi
g
u
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 s

e
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
ta

rg
e
ts

.

D
e
fi

n
it

io
n

Y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

's
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g

B
a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
to

 b
e
 s

e
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 P

la
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

Y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 a
 k

e
y
 t
a
rg

e
t 
g
ro

u
p
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 Y

o
u
th

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 a

n
 

e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
A

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

P
ro

je
c
t 
is

 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 c

o
lla

te
 d

a
ta

 o
n
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
c
tr

o
s
s
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

ly
 

c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
A

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

ls
o
 o

ff
e
rs

 a
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 a

 y
o
u
th

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
it
ie

s
 f
u
n
d
 

w
h
ic

h
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 c
a
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
. 
S

p
e
c
if
ic

 A
rt

s
 a

n
d
 

S
p
o
rt

s
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

re
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 l
e
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 c

u
lt
u
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il.

 

T
h
e
 F

ir
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

 Y
o
u
n
g
 F

ir
e
fi
g
h
te

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 o

ff
e
rs

 a
 2

 y
e
a
r 

c
o
u
rs

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 e

q
u
ip

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 f
ir
e
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 
A

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
V

C
F

S
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 e

n
g
a
g
in

g
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
e
s
. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 'v

-i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
' s

c
h
e
m

e
 h

a
s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 

d
a
te

. 
B

M
E

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 a

c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 f
ie

ld
 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
e
 M

u
s
lim

 C
u
lt
u
ra

l 
S

o
c
ie

ty
's

 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f
a
c
ili

ty
 p

ro
je

c
t 
ru

n
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b

y
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 P

a
k
is

ta
n
i 

C
o
m

u
n
it
y
 i
n
 H

a
re

h
ill

s
.

A
g
re

e
 s

c
o
p
e
 a

n
d
 f
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 o

f 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 y

o
u
th

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
e
c
to

rs
 b

y
 Q

1
. 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 I
Y

S
S

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
In

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 P

ro
je

c
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
h
e
 S

tr
o
n
g
e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 G

ro
u
p
 i
n
 Q

2
.

T
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

's
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 w

ill
 p

re
s
e
n
t 
a
 m

a
jo

r 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
lla

ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
a
ta

. 
T

h
e
 l
ik

e
ly

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
s
e
c
to

rs
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
c
e
s
s
io

n
 w

ill
 p

u
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

t 
ri
s
k
.

T
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 V

C
F

S
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 G
ro

u
p
 h

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

 s
u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 A

c
ti
v
e
 C

it
iz

e
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 r

e
g
u
la

r 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
. 
A

n
 o

u
tl
in

e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

ra
ft
e
d
. 
M

o
s
t 
V

C
F

S
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 d

e
p
e
n
d
 o

n
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 d

a
y
 t
o
 d

a
y
 r

u
n
n
in

g
. 
IN

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 r

u
n
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
. 
B

C
T

V
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
 2

0
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
w

a
lk

s
 a

 

w
e
e
k
 u

s
in

g
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

le
a
d
e
rs

. 
H

o
m

e
s
ta

r 
h
a
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 2

0
0
 v

io
lu

n
te

e
rs

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

s
tr

u
g
g
lin

g
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
C

a
n
o
p
y
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 i
s
 a

 v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

s
e
lf
 b

u
ild

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
. 
L
e
e
d
s
 J

e
w

is
h
 C

a
re

 h
a
s
 o

v
e
r 

3
0
0
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 i
ts

 w
o
rk

. 
L
e
e
d
s
 

A
h
e
a
d
 i
s
 a

 k
e
y
 S

o
c
ia

l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
s
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
h
u
n
d
re

d
 v

o
ln

te
e
rs

 f
o
rm

 L
e
e
d
s
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 p
ro

je
c
ts

. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 d
ir
e
c
to

ry
 o

f 
c
iv

ic
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
Q

2

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 f
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 w
o
rk

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 n

e
w

 c
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

b
u
re

a
u
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 Q
2

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

p
a
c
t 
fo

r 
L
e
e
d
s
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
t 
is

 f
it
 f
o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 Q

2

T
h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 o
n
 V

C
F

S
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 m
e
a
n
in

g
fu

l 
v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
a
n
d
 g

ro
w

in
g
 j
o
b
 l
o
s
s
e
s
.

Page 41



T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

S
e
e
 N

e
x
t 
S

te
p
s
 c

o
lu

m
n

M
a
u
ra

 B
ro

o
k
s
, 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

S
e
e
 N

e
x
t 
S

te
p
s
 c

o
lu

m
n

A
re

a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

, 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

C
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

C
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
&

 N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

L
e
e
d
s
 C

o
lle

g
e
s

C
a
ro

ly
n
 W

ri
g
h
t

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

W
e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 F

ir
e
 &

 R
e
s
c
u
e

M
ic

k
 S

m
it
h

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

o
c
ia

l 
R

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 

b
y
 L

e
e
d
s
 A

h
e
a
d
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
in

 2
0
0
9
-1

0

V
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
. 
F

ir
s
t 
re

p
o
rt

 t
o
 S

C
O

G
 Q

2
.

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
re

c
e
s
s
io

n
 w

ill
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

w
id

e
 s

ta
ff
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 p

re
s
e
n
t 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 g

iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 s

iz
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

x
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
.

A
re

a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 W

e
ll 

B
e
in

g
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

s
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
V

C
F

S
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 

th
e
ir
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

. 
P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
to

ry
 B

u
d
g
e
ti
n
g
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
s
 (

s
e
e
 H

M
 1

b
) 

h
a
v
e
 d

ir
e
c
te

d
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 
P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

w
h
ic

h
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 A

re
a
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
A

re
a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
.

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 A

re
a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

re
a
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
a
n
 A

re
a
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

. 
R

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
A

re
a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 W

e
ll 

B
e
in

g
 F

u
n
d
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 Q

1

N
o
t 
a
ll 

re
q
u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 

fu
n
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
g
ro

u
p
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 A

re
a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
. 
P

ri
o
ri
ti
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
A

re
a
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 a

 k
e
y
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
. 
T

h
is

 a
p
p
lie

s
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t
o
 n

e
w

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 c
o
m

p
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 e

x
is

it
n
g
 m

o
re

 

lo
n
g
e
r 

s
ta

n
d
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

M
a
rk

 A
llm

a
n

C
a
th

e
ri
n
e
 B

la
n
s
h
a
rd

V
C

F
S

A
n
n
 P

e
m

b
e
rt

o
n
/J

e
a
n
e
tt
e
 M

o
rr

is
 B

o
a
m

S
im

o
n
 W

h
it
e
h
e
a
d

A
rt

s
 C

o
u
n
c
il

P
e
te

 M
a
s
s
e
y

J
u
lie

 H
a
n
n
a
n

J
o
h
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d

C
h
ri
s
 E

d
w

a
rd

s

B
a
rb

a
ra

 N
e
w

to
n
 (

B
N

)
S

p
o
rt

 E
n
g
la

n
d

Page 42



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
6
9

C
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 b

u
lly

in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

F
a
ll

4
3
%

N
.A

.
3
0
%

4
3
.3

0
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
7
8

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
e
re

 

fe
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 3

0
%

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 5

 o
r 

m
o
re

 A
*-

 C
 g

ra
d
e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 a

n
d
 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 G

C
S

E
s
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 

a
n
d
 M

a
th

s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

b
e
r

F
a
ll

1
3

N
.A

.
7

6
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
7
9

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

it
h
 l
e
v
e
l 

2
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
6
5
%

(2
0
0
6
/0

7
)

N
/A

6
8
.6

0
%

6
8
.3

%

(6
2
1
8
/9

1
1
0
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
1
2

U
n
d
e
r 

1
8
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

A
n
n
u
a
lly

F
a
ll

5
0
.4

N
.A

.
4
5

4
8
.1

 p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0

(6
7
7
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

4

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 T

e
ll 

U
s
 S

u
rv

e
y
. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
a
rg

e
t,
 t
h
e
 m

e
th

o
d
 f
o
r 

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
n
g
 t
h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 w
e
re

 s
e
t 
(a

n
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 

m
e
th

o
d
 w

a
s
 o

n
ly

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 D

C
S

F
 i
n
 J

a
n
 2

0
0
9
).

 T
h
is

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 h

a
s
 h

a
d
 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
b
u
lly

in
g
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
F

o
r 

th
is

 r
e
a
s
o
n
 

c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
0
8
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
 2

0
0
7
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
, 
o
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
8
 t
a
rg

e
t,
 i
s
 n

o
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
D

e
s
p
it
e
 t
h
is

 c
h
a
n
g
e
, 
th

e
 L

e
e
d
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
in

 t
h
e
 Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 r

e
g
io

n
, 
is

 a
lm

o
s
t 
5
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 a

n
d
 i
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

. 
N

e
w

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

e
t 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

 n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 i
s
 k

n
o
w

n
. 

T
a
rg

e
t-

s
e
tt
in

g
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 f
a
c
to

r 
in

 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th

a
t 
w

e
 e

x
p
e
c
t 
o
u
r 

fi
g
u
re

s
 t
o
 r

is
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 a

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
, 
a
s
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 h
a
v
e
 g

re
a
te

r 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 b

u
lly

in
g
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
 i
s
 a

 4
.6

%
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 1

9
9
8
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
, 
th

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

ll 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
o
 

a
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
p
p
ly

in
g
 a

 r
e
a
l 
fo

c
u
s
 t
o
 t
h
is

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 T

h
is

 f
o
c
u
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 e

v
e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 
a
im

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
, 
a
n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
lo

n
g
 a

c
ti
n
g
 r

e
v
e
rs

ib
le

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 (

L
A

R
C

) 
 i
n
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 w
a
rd

s
 (

S
e
a
c
ro

ft
, 
R

ic
h
m

o
n
d
 H

ill
, 
C

it
y
 a

n
d
 H

o
lb

e
c
k
, 
H

u
n
s
le

t,
 M

id
d
le

to
n
 a

n
d
 H

a
re

h
ill

s
) 

th
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 

th
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
te

e
n
a
g
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

.

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 s

in
g
le

 e
le

m
e
n
t 
th

a
t 
h
a
s
 s

o
le

ly
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
, 
th

e
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
a
ll 

th
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
  
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 v

it
a
l 
in

 a
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t
h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
.

A
 w

id
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 a

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 a

m
b
a
s
s
a
d
o
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
; 
a
 p

ilo
t 
w

it
h
 R

a
lp

h
 T

h
o
re

s
b
y
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 f
e
e
d
e
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

; 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 d

a
y
s
; 
tr

a
in

in
g
; 
a
n
d
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 
to

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
re

la
te

d
 t
o
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 
b

u
lly

in
g
. 
T

h
e
 a

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 a

lli
a
n
c
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

D
C

S
F

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 a

 m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 
g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
.

T
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
A

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
e
v
e
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
e
re

 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
is

 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 2

0
0
7
's

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
1
3
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

h
a
lle

n
g
e
; 
tr

a
in

e
d
 a

d
v
is

e
rs

 w
ill

 t
a
k
e
 o

n
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

n
d
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
. 
E

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 b
e
lo

w
 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
in

 2
0
0
7
 

a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
re

c
o
rd

e
d
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 i
n
 2

0
0
8
 a

re
 R

o
d
ill

ia
n
 (

u
p
 f
ro

m
 1

9
%

 t
o
 3

5
%

) 
a
n
d
 W

e
s
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 (

u
p
 f

ro
m

  
2
5
%

 t
o
 3

4
%

).
 S

tr
o
n
g
 g

a
in

s
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 m

a
d
e
 

in
 n

o
n
-n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 L

a
w

n
s
w

o
o
d
, 
B

ri
g
s
h
a
w

, 
a
n
d
 M

o
rl
e
y
.

T
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

te
a
d
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
2
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
 s

h
o

w
s
 t
h
a
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 t
o
 c

lo
s
e
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 o

n
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 R

A
G

 r
a
te

d
 g

re
e
n
.T

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 w

a
s
 2

.7
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
, 
w

h
e
re

a
s
 t

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 w

a
s
 3

.8
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 

L
e
v
e
l 
2
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
1
9
 b

u
ild

s
 o

n
 L

e
v
e
l 
2
 (

5
 A

*-
C

/e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
a
g
e
 1

6
, 
o
u
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 a
t 
1
6
 o

v
e
r 

re
c
e
n
t 
y
e
a
rs

 w
ill

 h
a
v
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

c
lo

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
.

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

A
g
re

e
d

1

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

A
g
re

e
d

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

A
g
re

e
d

2 3

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

A
g
re

e
d

Page 43



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
1
1
7

1
6
 t
o
 1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 n

o
t 
in

 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

(N
E

E
T

).

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

F
a
ll

9
.1

0
%

1
0
%

8
.9

0
%

9
.5

%

(2
2
4
6
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
8
0

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
1
9

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
4
1
%

4
1
%

4
3
%

4
2
.2

%

(3
8
4
8
/9

1
1
0
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

L
S

P
-H

W
2
B

(I
)

A

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

(N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l)

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

F
a
ll

1
,2

8
1

1
,3

6
4

1
,1

5
6

1
,2

5
5

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

L
S

P
-H

W
2
B

(I
)

B

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
n
d
 r

a
te

 

p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
. 
 T

h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 e
x
c
lu

d
e
s
 

u
n
a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
 a

s
y
lu

m
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 c

h
ild

re
n
. 

(R
a
te

)

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

b
e
r

F
a
ll

8
3
.8

N
.A

.
7
5
.6

8
2
.1

 

p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
6
6

L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
6
6
.3

0
%

N
.A

.
8
0
%

7
8
.2

%

(9
8
5
/1

2
5
8
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

5 6 7 8

D
a
ta

 o
n
 N

E
E

T
 w

a
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
th

e
re

fo
re

 a
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

. 
T

h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 s
a
m

p
le

 f
ro

m
  
N

o
v
, 
D

e
c
 a

n
d
 J

a
n
 

0
6
/0

7
.

T
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

is
s
e
d
 b

y
 0

.6
. 
 T

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 r

ig
h
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
r 

is
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 N

E
E

T
 a

n
d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 f
o
r 

Y
r 

1
1
 l
e
a
v
e
rs

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
  
th

e
re

 a
re

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
ta

in
e
d

 i
n
 c

o
lle

g
e
/6

th
 f
o
rm

. 
W

o
rk

 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
lle

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 6

th
 

fo
rm

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 0

9
/1

0
.

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 h

ig
h
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 b

o
th

 s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 

0
7
/0

8
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 m

e
t.

T
h
e
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le

 t
h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 a

s
 a

 j
o
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 U

n
it
. 
 W

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 w

h
a
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

m
o
d
e
ls

 a
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
. 
T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 w
ill

 e
n
c
o
m

p
a
s
s
 d

ri
v
e
rs

 f
o
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
 c

le
a
r,

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

re
n
a
 o

f 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

T
h
e
 A

c
ti
n
g
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

fo
r 

C
Y

P
S

C
 i
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 h

e
r 

s
e
n
io

r 
le

a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 t
e
a
m

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 o
n

ly
 t
h
o
s
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

b
y
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

, 
a
n
d
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
re

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir

 f
a
m

ily
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 w

h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
.

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r,

 b
u
t 
th

e
 g

a
p
 t
o
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 s

lig
h
tl
y
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

k
e
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 o
n
 t
ra

c
k
 b

u
t 
th

is
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
re

s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 s

te
p
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 
C

o
m

p
le

x
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
1
4
-1

9
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
le

a
rn

in
g
 p

a
th

w
a
y
s
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 D

ip
lo

m
a
s
.

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 m

e
t 
b
u
t 
th

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 d

o
e
s
 s

h
o
w

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

  
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 r
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 l
o
o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
 s

ti
ll 

p
o
s
e
s
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 f
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s
. 
T

h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
c
o
m

p
a
re

 w
e
ll 

to
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
.

T
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 t
w

o
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
R

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

p
o
s
ts

 d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

o
s
ts

 h
a

v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d
. 
 O

n
c
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
h
e
y
 w

ill
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 e

n
a
b
le

 m
o
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

o
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 t
re

n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

A
g
re

e
d

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

A
g
re

e
d

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

A
g
re

e
d

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

A
g
re

e
d

Page 44



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

A
g
re

e
d

N
I 
6
3

S
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
: 
le

n
g
th

 o
f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
7
0
.5

0
%

N
.A

.
7
2
%

7
1
.3

%

(3
7
3
/5

2
3
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
4
8

C
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
7
0
.8

%
N

.A
.

7
6
.6

%
6
8
.9

%

(9
3
/1

3
5
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
5
8

E
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
ra

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o

f 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

b
e
r

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
1
5
 o

u
t 
o
f 
4
0

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
8
8

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
4
2
%

N
.A

.
7
4
%

8
0
%

(2
1
2
/2

6
4
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
1
0

Y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

's
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

6
5
.9

0
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

9 1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 a

 f
a
ll 

b
a
c
k
 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 0

7
/0

8
 d

a
ta

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

th
e
n
 t
h
a
n
 o

u
r 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
s
.

T
h
is

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ic

tu
re

 w
it
h
 l
e
s
s
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 i
n
 s

e
c
u
ri
n
g
 a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

s
. 
T

h
e

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
a
s
y
lu

m
 s

e
e
k
e
rs

 w
h
o
 

a
re

 n
o
n
-c

o
n
ta

c
ta

b
le

 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 l
o
s
t 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

a
 n

e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

h
a
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
le

c
te

d
  
w

h
o

 C
Y

P
S

C
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
.

T
o
 h

e
lp

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
th

e
 t
e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 a

d
d
e
d
 o

n
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
A

d
v
is

e
r,

 t
a
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta

l 
u
p
 t
o
 3

 a
d
v
is

o
rs

. 
T

h
e
 t
e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 a

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
p
o
lic

y
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
w

a
rd

s
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 e

n
te

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

n
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 t
o
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 w

o
u
ld

n
't 

h
a
v
e
 s

o
u
g
h
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

.

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 T

e
llu

s
 3

 y
e
a
r 

1
0
 s

u
rv

e
y
, 
th

e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
ill

 s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

is
 w

it
h
 y

e
a
r 

1
1
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n

a
ir
e
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 C

C
IS

. 

T
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
re

s
u
lt
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 s

h
o
w

 a
 s

tr
o
n
g
 r

a
te

 o
f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
m

p
a
re

s
 m

o
s
t 
fa

v
o
u
ra

b
ly

 w
it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
rs

. 
O

u
r 

re
g
u
la

r 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 b

y
 T

D
A

 o
ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
s
 t
o
ld

 

u
s
 t
h
a
t,
 f
o
r 

a
 l
a
rg

e
 m

e
tr

o
p
o
lit

a
n
 c

it
y
, 
w

e
 a

re
 d

o
in

g
 e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 w
e
ll.

 A
ll 

3
3
 c

lu
s
te

rs
 a

c
ro

s
s
 f
iv

e
 w

e
d
g
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 s

tr
o
n
g
 c

lu
s
te

r 
c
o
o

rd
in

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 
M

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 t
h
re

e
 i
n
 f
o
u
r 

o
f 
o
u
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 

a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 f
u
lly

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
In

 J
u
ly

 2
0
0
7
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 f
ig

u
re

s
 w

e
re

 4
0
%

 o
f 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 6

4
%

 o
f 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 T

D
A

 a
s
 e

x
c
e
lle

n
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
.

T
h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

o
f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.
  
D

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 m

o
re

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

 c
o
h
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

.

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 
q
u
it
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
b
u
t 
th

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
  
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t

o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 0

7
/0

8
 d

a
ta

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

s
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h
 b

o
th

 s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
.

P
la

n
s
 f
o
r 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 b

e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 b

e
tt
e
r 

d
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
e
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
 W

o
rk

 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C

Y
P

S
C

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 b

o
th

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y .

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

A
g
re

e
d

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

A
g
re

e
d

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

A
g
re

e
d

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

A
g
re

e
d

Page 45



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
9
9

C
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 r
e
a
c
h
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 i
n
 

E
n
g
lis

h
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 

C
a
re

/E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
4
0
%

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

4
3
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
0
0

C
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 r
e
a
c
h
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 i
n
 

m
a
th

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 

C
a
re

/E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
3
0
%

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

4
1
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
0
1

C
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

C
 

G
C

S
E

s
 (

o
r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 a
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 4

 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
)

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 

C
a
re

/E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
5
%

4
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
7
2

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
7
8
 p

o
in

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 w

it
h
 a

t 

le
a
s
t 
6
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
a
le

s
 i
n
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 

S
o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 E

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 
L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 L

it
e
ra

c
y

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

b
e
r

R
is

e
4
7
.1

0
%

N
.A

.
4
8
.5

0
%

4
7
.2

0
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
4

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 D

C
S

F

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 D

C
S

F

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
0
.1

%
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
, 
a
 s

lo
w

in
g
 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

. 
T

h
is

 m
a
y
 b

e
 a

n
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 a
re

 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 r

e
fi
n
e
 t
h
e
 a

c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 (
h
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 s

tr
a
n
d
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
lly

 h
a
v
e
 h

a
d
 h

ig
h
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
),

 b
u
t 
a
re

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
's

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

 k
e
y
 a

re
a
s
.

F
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 E

x
te

n
d
e
d
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
/P

M
IT

 p
u
p
il 

le
v
e
l 
F

is
h
e
r 

F
a
m

ily
 T

ru
s
t 
ta

rg
e
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 s

ti
m

u
la

te
d
 a

 d
ia

lo
g
u
e
 w

it
h
 H

e
a
d
 T

e
a
c
h
e
rs

, 
ra

is
e
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
d
 u

n
d
e

r 
e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
. 
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 w
ill

 c
o
m

p
a
re

 p
u
p
il 

le
v
e
l 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 g

iv
e
 a

 v
a
lu

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 j
u
d
g
m

e
n
t 
to

 i
n
fo

rm
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

s
 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

.

T
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
in

 E
n
g
lis

h
 &

 M
a
th

s
 a

t 
K

S
2
 i
s
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 L

E
X

S
 s

ti
ll 

p
la

n
s
 t
o
 i
n
v
e
s
t 
in

 c
o
re

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

.

 W
h
ile

 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 4
%

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 5

%
 t
a
rg

e
t 
it
 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
to

 n
o
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

o
h
o
rt

 s
iz

e
 i
s
 1

2
6
, 
s
o
 a

 s
in

g
le

 s
tu

d
e
n
t 

c
a
n
 s

h
if
t 
th

e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
lm

o
s
t 
1
%

 e
it
h
e
r 

w
a
y
. 
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 5

 Y
e
a
r 

1
1
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 w
h
o
s
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 y

e
t 
to

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 D

a
v
id

 Y
o
u
n
g
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
to

 c
h
a
n
g
e
. 
D

u
ri
n
g
 i
ts

 f
ir
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

o
f 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 
th

e
 L

e
e
d
s
 E

x
te

n
d
e
d
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
fo

r 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 (

L
E

X
S

) 
h
a
s
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 a
g
e
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 i
t 
is

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
to

 n
o
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 5

A
*-

C
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
) 

E
n
g
lis

h
 &

 

M
a
th

s
 h

a
s
 s

h
if
te

d
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
: 
fr

o
m

 8
%

 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

to
 1

3
%

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

  
T

h
a
t 
s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
m

 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 u
s
in

g
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 L

E
X

S
/P

M
IT

 i
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 e

ff
e
c
t.

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 n
o
w

 i
n
fo

rm
in

g
 L

E
X

S
 d

e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
it
s
 I
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 G

ra
n
t 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 c
lo

s
e
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

A
*-

C
 (

In
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 M
a
th

s
) 

a
s
 i
t 
s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 t
h
o
s
e
 c

o
re

 s
u
b
je

c
ts

 e
v
e
n
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
u
rs

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 f
o
llo

w
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

.

F
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 E

x
te

n
d
e
d
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
/P

M
IT

 p
u
p
il 

le
v
e
l 
F

is
h
e
r 

F
a
m

ily
 T

ru
s
t 
ta

rg
e
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 s

ti
m

u
la

te
d
 a

 d
ia

lo
g
u
e
 w

it
h
 H

e
a
d
 T

e
a
c
h
e
rs

, 
ra

is
e
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
d
 u

n
d
e

r 
e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
. 
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 w
ill

 c
o
m

p
a
re

 p
u
p
il 

le
v
e
l 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 g

iv
e
 a

 v
a
lu

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 j
u
d
g
m

e
n
t 
to

 i
n
fo

rm
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

s
 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 

T
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
in

 E
n
g
lis

h
 &

 M
a
th

s
 a

t 
K

S
2
 i
s
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 L

E
X

S
 s

ti
ll 

p
la

n
s
 t
o
 i
n
v
e
s
t 
in

 c
o
re

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

.

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 D

C
S

F

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 D

C
S

F

Page 46



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
7
3

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
L
e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 

E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 

(T
h
re

s
h
o
ld

)

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
7
1
%

(2
0
0
6
/0

7
)

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

7
2
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
7
4

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
le

v
e
l 
5
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 

E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

6
5
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
7
5

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 

fi
v
e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
s
 A

* 
- 

C
 o

r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t,
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 M

a
th

s
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
lis

h

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
4
2
.1

%
4
2
.1

0
%

4
8
%

4
6
.4

0
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
8
3

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
L
e
v
e
l 
5
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 

S
c
ie

n
c
e
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
6
9
%

6
9
%

7
5
%

6
8
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
8
7

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 

ra
te

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

F
a
ll

9
.8

0
%

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

7
.9

%

(3
2
2
1
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
9
2

N
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 2

0
%

 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 P

ro
fi
le

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
t

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

F
a
ll

3
8
%

3
8
.2

0
%

3
3
.3

0
%

3
9
.7

0
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

1
9

2
0

1
8

2
1

2
2

2
3

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 D

C
S

F

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 D

C
S

F

T
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
T

h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A

u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0
7
 r

o
u
n
d
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
ta

rg
e
t-

s
e
tt
in

g
, 
w

h
ic

h
 m

e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

ill
 f
ir
s
t 
c
o
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff
e
c
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 c
o
h
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 h

a
s
 r

is
e
n
 

s
lig

h
tl
y
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 a

t 
a
 s

lo
w

e
r 

ra
te

 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 s

e
e
n
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

. 
T

h
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 l
o
w

 

re
s
u
lt
s
, 
a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 s
e
le

c
te

d
 f
o
r 

th
is

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
ir
 p

u
p
ils

' r
e
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
.

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
8
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 o

n
 1

6
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

ta
ti
c
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
0
7
, 
b
o
th

 w
it
h
in

 L
e
e

d
s
 a

n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

. 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 

d
e
le

te
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e
t,
 s

o
 t
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

g
a
in

, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 l
o
c
a
lly

 f
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 

K
e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

.

T
h
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
A

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o

 r
a
is

e
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
in

 t
h
is

 a
re

a
. 
T

h
e
 g

a
p
 t
o
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 j
u
s
t 
o
v
e
r 

o
n
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

t.
 L

e
e
d
s
' p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 4

.3
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
0
7
, 
w

h
e
re

a
s
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 i
s
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 o

n
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

t,
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 b

y
 L

e
e
d
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

.

T
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
In

 2
0
0
8
 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
1
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

e
d
ia

n
 s

c
o
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
ll 

c
o
h
o
rt

 a
n
d
 a

 d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
2
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

e
a
n
 s

c
o
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

o
tt
o
m

 2
0
%

. 
 T

h
is

 h
a
s
 

re
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 w
id

e
n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 g

a
p
 b

y
 1

.5
%

. 
 T

h
is

 m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
s
e
e
n
 i
n
 2

0
0
7
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
o
s
t 
th

is
 y

e
a
r,

 a
lt
h
o

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

s
m

a
lle

r 
th

a
n
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
e
n
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
. 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
A

n
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 A
d
v
is

o
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 s
e
rv

ic
e
,

a
n
d
 f
iv

e
 n

e
w

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

.

T
h
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 f
ir
s
t 
c
o
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff
e
c
t 

in
 t
h
e
 0

8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 c
o
h
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
p
e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 (

P
A

) 
in

 L
e
e
d
s
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 f
ro

m
 9

.8
%

 2
0
0
5
/0

6
 t
o
 7

.9
%

 2
0
0
7
/0

8
. 
1
8
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
d

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 r

e
g
u
la

r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

ta
rg

e
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
Y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

lo
w

e
ri
n
g
 o

f 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
th

re
s
h
o
ld

s
 f
o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 (
fr

o
m

 

8
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 t
o
 7

%
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
) 

h
a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

to
 2

2
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
8
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 o

n
 1

6
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
lin

e
d
 b

y
 o

n
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

t 
s
in

c
e
 2

0
0
7
, 
w

h
e
re

a
s
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 

d
ro

p
 o

f 
tw

o
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 d

e
le

te
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e
t,
 s

o
 t
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

g
a
in

, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 l
o
c
a
lly

 f
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

.

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 D

C
S

F

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 D

C
S

F

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 D

C
S

F

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 D

C
S

F

Page 47



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
9
3

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 1

 a
n
d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
8
4
%

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

8
3
.6

0
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
9
4

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 m

a
th

s
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 1

 a
n
d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
7
6
.5

%
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
7
8
.8

0
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
9
5

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 a
n
d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
9
6

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 m

a
th

s
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 a
n
d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

2
7

2
4

2
5

2
6

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 D

C
S

F

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 D

C
S

F

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 D

C
S

F

R
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 S

u
s
p
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 D

C
S

F
 d

u
e
 t
o
 e

rr
o
rs

 i
n
 m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
.

T
h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

  
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 f
ir
s
t 
c
o
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff
e
c
t 
in

 t
h
e
 0

8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

  
R

e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 c
o
h
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 r

a
te

s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
is

 a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r,

 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
e
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 M

a
tt
e
rs

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 l
o
w

e
r 

c
o
n
te

x
tu

a
l 
v
a
lu

e
-a

d
d
e
d
 

(C
V

A
) 

re
s
u
lt
s
. 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 n

o
w

 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

Y
e
a
r 

4
 p

u
p
ils

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
e
re

 p
u
p
ils

 a
re

 f
a
ili

n
g
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 p

a
rt

-w
a
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 

2
, 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
-b

a
s
e
d
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 t
h
e
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 M

a
tt
e
rs

 a
n
d
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 a

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
in

 E
n
g
lis

h
.

R
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 S

u
s
p
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 D

C
S

F
 d

u
e
 t
o
 e

rr
o
rs

 i
n
 m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
.

T
h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

  
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 f
ir
s
t 
c
o
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff
e
c
t 
in

 t
h
e
 0

8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 c
o
h
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 

R
a
te

s
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 i
n
 m

a
th

s
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
0
7
 a

n
d
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 r

a
te

s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
is

 a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r,

 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
e
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 M

a
tt
e
rs

 

p
ro

je
c
t 
ta

rg
e
ts

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 l
o
w

e
r 

c
o
n
te

x
tu

a
l 
v
a
lu

e
-a

d
d
e
d
 (

C
V

A
) 

re
s
u
lt
s
. 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 n

o
w

 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
d
a

ta
 f
o
r 

Y
e
a
r 

4
 p

u
p
ils

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
e
re

 p
u
p
ils

 

a
re

 f
a
ili

n
g
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 p

a
rt

-w
a
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

, 
s
o
 t
h
a
t 
e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
-b

a
s
e
d
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

a
n
d
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 t
h
e
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 M

a
tt
e
rs

 a
n
d
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 a

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

tr
a

te
g
ie

s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
in

 m
a
th

s
.

T
h
e
 D

C
S

F
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

-l
e
v
e
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

a
n
y
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 F
o
r 

2
0
0

8
/0

9
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
, 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 t
e
s
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
le

te
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e
t.

T
h
e
 D

C
S

F
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

-l
e
v
e
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

a
n
y
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 F
o
r 

2
0
0

8
/0

9
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
, 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 t
e
s
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
le

te
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e
t.

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 D

C
S

F

Page 48



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
9
7

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 a
n
d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 4

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

5
8
.2

0
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
9
8

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 m

a
th

s
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 a
n
d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 4

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

2
2
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

C
Y

P
-P

O
C

5
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fi
x
e
d
 t
e
rm

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

fr
o
m

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

u
p
ils

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
6
0
.1

5
2
5

5
3
.8

 

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0

(5
7
8
0
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

C
Y

P
-P

O
C

6
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

fr
o
m

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
6
5

4
0

5
1
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

L
A

A
-C

Y
P

8
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 a

ll 

L
e
e
d
s
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 

a
n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 P

L
A

S
C

 

re
tu

rn
s
.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
9
2
.2

0
%

9
1
.6

6
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

3
2

3
0

3
1

2
8

2
9

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 L

P
S

A
2
 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 D

C
S

F

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 D

C
S

F

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 L

P
S

A
2
 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 L

P
S

A
2
 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fi
x
e
d
-t

e
rm

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 h

a
s
 a

g
a
in

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n

o
t 
to

 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
L
A

A
 t
a
rg

e
t 
le

v
e
l 
fo

r 
th

is
 r

e
a
s
o
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 R

A
G

 r
a
te

d
 a

m
b
e
r.

 W
o
rk

 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 o

n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r,
 a

n
d
 t
e
rm

ly
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 a

ll 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 t
e
a
m

s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
. 
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 

re
m

a
in

s
 a

t 
th

a
t 
s
e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
L
P

S
A

2
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t,
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 o
u
r 

a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
.

T
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 f
ir
s
t 
c
o
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff
e
c
t 
in

 t
h
e
 0

8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 c
o
h
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 d
o
n
e
 b

y
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 i
s
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 t
o
 s

c
h

o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 l
o
w

e
r 

C
V

A
. 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
ls

o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 
S

ta
te

's
 a

n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 
K

S
3
 t
e
s
ts

 w
ill

 n
o
t 
ta

k
e
 p

la
c
e
 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
9
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
, 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
le

te
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e
t,
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
in

 L
e
e
d
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 v

ia
 t
e
a
c
h
e
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

.

T
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 f
ir
s
t 
c
o
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff
e
c
t 
in

 t
h
e
 0

8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 c
o
h
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 

In
c
re

a
s
in

g
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 d
o
n
e
 b

y
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 i
s
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 t
o
 s

c
h

o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 l
o
w

e
r 

C
V

A
. 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
ls

o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 
S

ta
te

's
 a

n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 
K

S
3
 t
e
s
ts

 w
ill

 n
o
t 
ta

k
e
 p

la
c
e
 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
9
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
, 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
le

te
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e
t,
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
in

 L
e
e
d
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 v

ia
 t
e
a
c
h
e
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

.

T
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
O

v
e
ra

ll 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 0

7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 T

e
a
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 L

in
k
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

A
d
v
is

e
rs

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 A

re
a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
a
rd

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
o
 p

re
s
e
n
t 
a
re

a
 a

n
d
 c

lu
s
te

r 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 r
e
p
o
rt

s
. 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h
 A

M
B

s
/C

h
ild

re
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
, 
w

it
h
 a

n
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 c

lu
s
te

r 
d
e
liv

e
ry

, 
c
o
m

m
o
n
 p

o
lic

y
, 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

, 

lo
c
a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
, 
g
re

a
te

r 
o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 d

a
ta

. 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

re
a
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

re
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 T

e
a
m

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 h

a
s
 a

g
a
in

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n

o
t 
to

 t
a
rg

e
t,
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

 f
o
r 

th
e
 L

A
A

 r
e
w

a
rd

 G
ra

n
t.
  
F

o
r 

th
e
s
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 R

A
G

 r
a
te

d
 a

m
b
e
r.

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 N

I 
1
1
4
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
L
IL

S
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 3

. 
E

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

re
 r

ig
o
ro

u
s
ly

 m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
d
. 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

 s
e
ts

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n

t 
e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
.

Page 49



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

L
A

A
-C

Y
P

9
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n
 

u
n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
fr

e
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
l 
q
u
a
rt

ile
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

m
e
d
ia

n
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
u
c
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 

a
n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 P

L
A

S
C

 

re
tu

rn
s
.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
 P

o
in

ts

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
3
.7

0
 %

 

P
o
in

ts

2
 %

 P
o
in

ts
2
.9

 %
 P

o
in

ts
N

o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

L
S

P
-T

P
2
B

(I
)

A
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 c

o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fi
rs

t 

ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 y

o
u
th

 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

 A
p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 y

e
a
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
.

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
1
,6

8
9

1
,9

5
3

1
5
3
0
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

L
S

P
-T

P
2
B

(I
I)

A
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 c

o
u
n
t 
o
f 
o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 

b
y
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 r
e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 a

 b
a
il 

o
r 

re
m

a
n
d
 e

p
is

o
d
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 

y
e
a
r.

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

5
9
6

4
0
3

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
0
9

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
S

u
re

 S
ta

rt
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
s

C
h
ild

c
a
re

 a
n
d
 E

a
rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
8
3
%

N
.A

.
8
3
%

8
3
%

(4
9
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

3
4

3
5

3
6

3
3

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 L

P
S

A
2
 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 L

P
S

A
2
 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 D

C
S

F
 s

ta
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 s
h
o
u
ld

 a
im

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 n

o
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 m

e
d
ia

n
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 

e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

fr
e
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

. 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
L
e
e
d
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
tt
o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d

e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r,

 w
it
h
 a

ro
u
n
d
 a

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 t
h
is

 

q
u
a
rt

ile
. 
A

lm
o
s
t 
tw

o
 t
h
ir
d
s
 o

f 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 n
o
w

 h
a
v
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 m

e
d
ia

n
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
fr

e
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
l 
e
lig

ib
ili

ty
.

F
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 p

o
lic

e
 d

a
ta

. 
T

h
e
 Y

J
B

 a
n
d
 N

I 
s
e
t 
a
re

 u
ti
lis

in
g
 a

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

a
ta

 s
e
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

o
m

p
u
te

r 
(P

N
C

) 
to

 

th
e
 D

C
S

F
. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 Y

O
S

 i
n
te

n
d
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
o
lic

e
 d

a
ta

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

 t
h
e
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 D

C
S

F
 

d
a
ta

 s
e
t 
w

h
e
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
n
 M

a
y
 2

0
0
9
.

 T
h
e
 Y

O
S

 h
a
s
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

d
y
, 
a
n
d
 a

s
 a

 p
re

-c
u
rs

o
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

t 
s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

t 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 c

u
s
to

d
y
. 
O

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

m
a
in

 f
o
c
u
s
e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

e
n
a
lt
ie

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 B

a
il 

S
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 T

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
is

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 f
e
e
d
in

g
 b

a
c
k
 t
o
 

s
e
n
te

n
c
e
rs

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 B

a
il 

te
rm

s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 

T
h
e
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 B

a
il 

S
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 T
e
a
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 m

e
a
n
in

g
fu

l 
in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
s
, 
b
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 s

e
n
te

n
c
e
rs

 a
t 
c
o
u
rt

 a
n
d
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 

o
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 -

 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 g
e
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
 t
u
rn

 p
re

v
e
n
ts

 o
ff
e
n
d
in

g
. 
 I
t 
is

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
s
e
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
s
 i
t 

is
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
lly

 m
o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 f
o
r 

a
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
n
te

n
c
e
d
 t
o
 c

u
s
to

d
y
 a

ft
e
r 

a
 p

e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
u
n
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 b

a
il 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
r 

w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
rv

e
d
 t
h
is

 t
im

e
 i
n
 

c
u
s
to

d
ia

l 
re

m
a
n
d
.

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 a

s
 o

ff
e
n
c
e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 
to

 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 q

u
a
rt

e
r.

In
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
ta

rg
e
ts

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 p

h
a
s
e
 1

 a
n
d
 2

 o
f 
th

e
 S

u
re

 S
ta

rt
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 C

h
ild

re
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 

a
re

a
s
. 
W

it
h
 4

9
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 n

o
w

 d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
in

 L
e
e
d
s
. 
 P

h
a
s
e
 3

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 s

e
e
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

1
0
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e
d
s
 w

it
h
 a

ll 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 c
h
ild

re
n
's

 c
e
n
tr

e
 b

y
 2

0
1
0
. 

L
e
e
d
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 a

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

3
,5

0
0
 S

u
re

 S
ta

rt
 C

h
ild

re
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 (

o
n
e
 f
o
r 

e
v
e
ry

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
) 

b
y
 2

0
1
0
.

L
e
e
d
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 L

P
S

A
2
 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

Page 50



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
1
1
8

T
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
fo

rm
a
l 
c
h
ild

c
a
re

 b
y
 l
o
w

-

in
c
o
m

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 f
a
m

ili
e
s

C
h
ild

c
a
re

 a
n
d
 E

a
rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
1
9
.0

%
 

(0
5
/0

6
)

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
4
7

C
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 i
n
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
9
4
.2

0
%

9
4
.2

0
%

9
5
%

9
2
.6

%

(1
2
5
/1

3
5
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
5
9

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

it
ia

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 

7
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
l

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
7
9
.9

0
%

7
9
.9

0
%

8
3
%

7
6
.5

%

(3
6
1
9
/4

7
3
2
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
6
0

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C

o
re

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

th
a
t 
w

e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 3
5
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

d
a
y
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
7
7
.4

0
%

7
7
.4

0
%

8
0
%

8
3
.3

%

(8
4
5
/1

0
1
4
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
6
1

T
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 f
o
r 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

n
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

h
ild

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

la
c
e
d
 

fo
r 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
8
1
.4

0
%

N
.A

.
8
5
%

8
7
.3

%

(6
2
/7

1
)

C
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 

d
a
ta

N
I 
6
2

S
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
: 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 

h
a
d
 t
h
re

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

F
a
ll

9
.5

0
%

N
.A

.
9
.5

0
%

9
.2

%

(1
2
3
/1

3
3
8
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

4
2

3
8

3
9

4
0

3
7

4
1

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 a

 f
a
ll 

b
a
c
k
 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 0

7
/0

8
 d

a
ta

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 b

e
tt
e
r 

th
e
n
 t
h
a
n
 o

u
r 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
s
.

T
h
e
 P

o
s
t 
1
8
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

, 
re

la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 f
o
rm

e
r 

fo
s
te

r 
c
a
re

rs
, 
is

 n
o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 w

h
a
t 
is

 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 g

o
o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
, 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
 s

h
o
w

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

. 
T

h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 l
e
n
g
th

y
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 
b
u
t 
it
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 u
s
 t
o
 d

ic
ta

te
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

s
k
in

g
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o
 t
e
n
d
e
r 

fo
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 
d
e
ta

il 
w

h
a
t 
w

e
 b

e
lie

v
e
 a

re
 t
h
e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
e
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
.

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 t
h
e
 4

th
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
  
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

s
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
 B

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 0

7
/0

8
 P

A
F

 b
a
n
d
in

g
 t
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
c
o
re

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 b

y
 p

u
tt
in

g
 Q

A
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 
 I
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 
th

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
 R

e
-e

n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 (

B
P

R
) 

te
a
m

 i
s
 m

a
p
p
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 f
ro

m
 e

n
d
 t
o
 e

n
d
 w

it
h
 a

 d
e
s
ir
e
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
.

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
. 
B

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 0

7
/0

8
 d

a
ta

 t
h
is

 c
o
m

p
a
re

s
 w

e
ll 

to
 o

th
e
rs

 a
n
d
 i
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P

A
F

 t
o
p
 b

a
n
d
in

g
.

B
e
tt
e
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 d

a
ta

 a
n
d
 h

ig
h
e
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C

Y
P

S
C

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 b

o
th

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 w

it
h
 b

e
tt
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

ig
h
t 
d
e
te

ri
o
ra

te
.

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 0

7
/0

8
 d

a
ta

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 c

o
m

p
a
re

s
 v

e
ry

 w
e
ll 

to
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 a
n
d
 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
.

T
h
is

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 a

 c
a
re

 p
la

n
 f
o
r 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 b

u
t 

a
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 a

d
o
p
te

rs
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 f
a
lle

n
 b

a
c
k
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 f
e
ll 

s
h
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t.
  
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 (

0
7
/0

8
) 

a
n
d
 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
 A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

&
Y

P
S

C
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 
a
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 s

c
re

e
n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

c
h
ild

re
n
's

 n
e
e
d
s
 a

re
 h

a
n
d
le

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a

t 
th

e
 r

ig
h
t 
ti
m

e
. 
 T

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 a
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 s

p
e
n
d
 m

o
re

 t
im

e
 o

n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 t
h
a
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
's

 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

s
.

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

D
a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 D

a
ta

 H
u
b
. 
A

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

.

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

Page 51



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
6
4

C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
s
 l
a
s
ti
n
g
 2

 y
e
a
rs

 o
r 

m
o
re

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

F
a
ll

7
.8

0
%

N
.A

.
8
%

7
.6

%

(3
1
/4

0
6
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
6
5

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 t
h
e
 

s
u
b
je

c
t 
o
f 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

a
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 o

r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
ti
m

e

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

N
e
it
h
e
r

1
7
.5

0
%

N
.A

.
1
2
.5

0
%

8
.9

%

(3
5
/3

9
4
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
6
7

%
 o

f 
c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
9
8
.4

0
%

N
.A

.
1
0
0
%

9
9
%

(2
9
6
/2

9
9
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
6
8

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 g
o
in

g
 o

n
 t
o
 i
n
it
ia

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

N
e
it
h
e
r

5
6
.8

0
%

N
.A

.
5
6
%

5
4
.6

%

(4
7
3
2
/8

6
6
7
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
0
2
A

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

u
p
ils

 e
lig

ib
le

 

fo
r 

fr
e
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
t 
K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
s
 2

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
 p

o
in

ts

F
a
ll

2
4
%

 p
o
in

ts
 

(0
6
/0

7
)

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

2
4
.9

%
 p

o
in

ts
N

o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
0
2
B

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

u
p
ils

 e
lig

ib
le

 

fo
r 

fr
e
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
t 
K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
 4

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
 p

o
in

ts

F
a
ll

3
1
.5

 %
 p

o
in

ts
 

(0
6
/0

7
)

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

3
2
.7

%
 p

o
in

ts
N

o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

4
4

4
5

4
6

4
8

4
7

4
3

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

T
h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 D

C
S

F
 p

u
b
lis

h
 t
h
e
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 
re

s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
  
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 f
ir
s
t 
c
o
m

e
 

in
to

 e
ff
e
c
t 
in

 t
h
e
 0

8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 c
o
h
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 F

S
M

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p
 h

a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 5

 A
*-

C
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

, 
in

 2
0
0
8
 i
t 
h
a
s
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 b
e

e
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 

F
S

M
 p

u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

C
, 
fo

r 

p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

G
, 
a
n
d
 f
o
r 

p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 a

n
y
 p

a
s
s
e
s
. 
N

a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
tt
e
r 

tw
o
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 g
o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

s
 t

h
e
s
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 a

re
a
s
 

o
f 
d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
. 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 a

 h
ig

h
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
F

S
M

 p
u
p
ils

.

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 b
e
ll 

s
h
a
p
e
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

it
h
 v

e
ry

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
a
lli

n
g
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
1
0
 -

 1
5
 p

e
rc

e
n
t.
  
C

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 f
a
lls

 j
u
s
t 
o
u
ts

id
e
 t
h
is

 r
a
n
g
e
 b

u
t 
is

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 P

A
F

 

b
a
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
"g

o
o
d
".

  
T

h
is

 y
e
a
rs

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 m

u
c
h
 c

lo
s
e
r 

to
 t
h
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 i
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
rs

 r
e
s
u
lt
 w

h
ic

h
 f
e
ll 

in
to

 t
h
e
 "

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

" 
P

A
F

 b
a
n
d
in

g
. 
 T

h
is

 

re
s
u
lt
 h

a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
a
lly

 u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 w

h
y
 t
h
is

 i
s
 o

c
c
u
rr

in
g
.

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 b
e
ll 

s
h
a
p
e
d
 P

I 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o

p
ti
m

u
m

 r
a
n
g
e
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 4

9
%

 a
n
d
 6

3
%

. 
 L

e
e
d
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
a
lls

 w
e
ll 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
is

 o
p
ti
m

u
m

 r
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 i
s
 b

ro
a
d
ly

 c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 w
it
h
 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
.

A
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
c
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 s

c
re

e
n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
h
ild

re
n
's

 n
e
e
d
s
 a

re
 h

a
n
d
le

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a

t 
th

e
 r

ig
h
t 
ti
m

e
. 
 T

h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 a
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 s

p
e
n
d
 m

o
re

 t
im

e
 o

n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 t
h
a
t 
m

e
e
t 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
's

 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

s
.

T
h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 f
ir
s
t 
c
o
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff
e
c
t 
in

 t
h
e
 0

8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 c
o
h
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 

T
h
e
 g

a
p
 h

a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 2

0
0
7
's

 r
e
s
u
lt
s
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
 t
a
rg

e
t 
re

m
a
in

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
a
b
le

. 
T

h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 w
it
h
 f
re

e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
l 
e
lig

ib
ili

ty
, 
s
o
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 c

o
h
o
rt

s
.

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r,

 b
u
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t
o
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
s
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

to
o
 h

ig
h
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

o
e
s
 f
a
ll 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 P

A
F

 b
a
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
g
o
o
d
. 
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 1

0
0
%

 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 m

e
t,
 0

8
/0

9
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
o
f 
0
7
/0

8
. 
 T

h
e
 u

n
d
e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
th

re
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
. 
 H

ig
h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 

a
re

a
 i
s
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 d
u
e
 t
o
 h

a
v
in

g
 r

o
b
u
s
t 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
a
s
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 o

n
 t
im

e
. 
T

h
re

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
 o

n
 t

im
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

lig
h
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r.

Page 52



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
1
0
3
A

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N

e
e
d
s
 -

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

is
s
u
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
6
 w

e
e
k
s

-A
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
fi
n
a
l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
6
 

w
e
e
k
s
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

s
 a

 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
u
c
h
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

in
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
1
0
0
%

9
1
.8

%

(1
0
1
/1

1
0
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
0
3
B

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N

e
e
d
s
 -

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

is
s
u
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
6
 w

e
e
k
s
 

B
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
fi
n
a
l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
6
 

w
e
e
k
s
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
u
c
h
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
9
0
%

8
5
.7

%

(2
1
0
/2

4
5
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
0
4

T
h
e
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N

e
e
d
s
 

(S
E

N
)/

n
o
n
-S

E
N

 g
a
p
 -

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
 P

o
in

ts

F
a
ll

5
0
.9

 %
 

P
o
in

ts

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

5
0
.0

%
 P

o
in

ts
N

o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
0
5

T
h
e
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N

e
e
d
s
 

(S
E

N
)/

n
o
n
-S

E
N

 g
a
p
-a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

 C
 

G
C

S
E

 i
n
c
. 
E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
 P

o
in

ts

F
a
ll

3
9
 %

 P
o
in

ts
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
4
4
.4

 %
 P

o
in

ts
N

o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

5
1

4
9

5
0

5
2

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

T
h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

  
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 f
ir
s
t 
c
o
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff
e
c
t 
in

 t
h
e
 0

8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 c
o
h
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 a

 s
lig

h
t 
n
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 g

a
p
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 2

0
0
7
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 v
e
ry

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
to

 m
a
k
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t,
 a

s
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

S
E

N
 p

u
p
ils

 a
re

 g
ro

u
p
e
d
 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

in
 t
h
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
, 
w

h
e
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
n
e
e
d
 c

a
n
 v

a
ry

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
te

d
 p

u
p
ils

 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 o

n
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

lu
s
. 
R

a
w

 a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
a
c
tu

a
lly

 r
o
s
e
 i
n

2
0
0
8
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

S
E

N
 p

u
p
ils

 i
n
 b

o
th

 s
u
b
je

c
ts

, 
b
u
t 
th

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

m
o
n
g
 n

o
n
-S

E
N

 p
u
p
ils

 w
a
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
a
n
d
 s

o
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 w

id
e
n
e
d
. 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
 w

e
re

 s
e
t 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 F

F
T

 D
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
, 

w
h
e
re

a
s
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 p

u
p
il-

le
v
e
l 
e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
, 
a
n
d
 a

re
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 m
o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 r

e
a
l 
p
u
p
il 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 m

e
a
s
u
re

. 
W

h
e
re

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 d
e
a
d
lin

e
, 
th

e
s
e

 a
re

 m
a
in

ly
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 c

a
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 
a
 b

a
c
k
lo

g
 f
ro

m
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

h
ic

h
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
n
 1

8
 w

e
e
k
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

.

T
h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 D

C
S

F
 p

u
b
lis

h
 t
h
e
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 
re

s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
  
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 c

o
m

e
 f
ir
s
t 

in
to

 e
ff
e
c
t 
in

 t
h
e
 0

8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

  
R

e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 c
o
h
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 R

A
G

 r
a
te

d
 a

s
 r

e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 h

a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
. 

P
u
p
ils

 o
n
 t
h
e
 S

E
N

 r
e
g
is

te
r 

h
a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 4

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 
re

fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
s
 i
t 
c
o
u
n
ts

 t
h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 a

t 

5
 A

*-
C

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 t
h
e
 h

a
rd

e
s
t 
le

v
e
l 
fo

r 
S

E
N

 p
u
p
ils

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
. 
A

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
d
id

 r
is

e
 f
o
r 

S
E

N
 p

u
p
ils

 i
n
 2

0
0
8
, 
b
u
t 
n
o
t 
a
t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 r

a
te

 a
s
 f
o
r 

n
o
n
-S

E
N

 p
u
p
ils

. 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
A

c
ti
o
n
 p

u
p
ils

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

n
 a

b
o
v
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 5
 A

*-
C

, 
5
 A

*-
G

 a
n
d
 n

o
 p

a
s
s
e
s
, 
w

h
ils

t 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
A

c
ti
o
n
 P

lu
s
 p

u
p

ils
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

ll 
th

re
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
, 

b
u
t 
th

e
 5

+
A

*-
C

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

a
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
. 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
te

d
 p

u
p
ils

 a
ls

o
 m

a
d
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t
h
e

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 l
e
a
v
in

g
 w

it
h
 n

o
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

fe
ll 

b
y
 1

7
.4

%
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 s

te
a
d
ily

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 m

e
a
s
u
re

, 
a
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e

d
s
 t
e
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 N

H
S

 s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 a

re
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

g
iv

e
 m

e
d
ic

a
l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 b

e
fo

re
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 b

e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

h
ic

h
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
n
 1

8
 w

e
e
k
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

.

Page 53



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
1
0
7

K
e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
B

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 

m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
6
3
.8

%

(0
6
/0

7
)

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

6
6
.7

%

(9
1
8
/1

3
7
6
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
0
8

K
e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 4

 a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
B

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 

m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

3
7
.1

%

(4
1
4
/1

1
1
7
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
1
4

R
a
te

 o
f 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 

s
c
h
o
o
l

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

F
a
ll

0
.0

6
%

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

0
.0

5
%

(5
1
/1

0
7
3
4
6
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
5
2
A

T
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
lu

n
c
h
e
s
 -

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 S

IL
C

s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

4
3
.5

%

(2
0
5
0
1
/4

7
1
5
6
)

N
.A

.

N
I 
5
2
B

T
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
lu

n
c
h
e
s
 (

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

)

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

3
0
%

(9
1
1
9
/3

0
4
1
2
)

N
.A

.

N
I 
7
6

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
e
re

 

fe
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 5

5
%

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 

o
r 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 

K
S

2

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

b
e
r

F
a
ll

3
2

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

2
8
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

5
8

5
4

5
3

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

5
5

5
6

5
7

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 %

 o
f 
B

M
E

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

c
h
e
iv

in
g
 5

 o
r 

m
o
re

 G
C

S
E

s
 g

ra
d
e
 A

*-
 C

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 
k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 4

.T
h
is

 d
a
ta

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 D

C
S

F
 

p
u
b
lis

h
 t
h
e
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 
re

s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 T

h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A

u
tu

m
n
 2

0
0
7
 r

o
u
n
d
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

ta
rg

e
t-

s
e
tt
in

g
, 
w

h
ic

h
 m

e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

ill
 f
ir
s
t 
c
o
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff
e
c
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 c
o
h
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 B
M

E
 p

u
p
ils

. 
A

 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

' b
la

c
k
 p

u
p
ils

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 f
o
rm

e
d
 t
o
 

le
a
d
 o

n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
.

T
h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
, 
a
n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 y

e
a
r.

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
ta

rg
e
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

e
t 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e
a
rs

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 

is
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
, 
b
u
t 
a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 b

o
o
s
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
l 
ta

k
e
-u

p
. 
A

 t
o
o
lk

it
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
  
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 f
re

e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
l 
ta

k
e
-u

p
, 
w

h
ic

h
 b

u
ild

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 o

f 
a
 t
w

o
-y

e
a
r 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 T

h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
-

la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 p

a
c
k
e
d
 l
u
n
c
h
 p

o
lic

y
 a

ls
o
 a

im
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 u

p
ta

k
e
 b

y
 s

h
if
ti
n
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 f
ro

m
 p

a
c
k
e
d
 l
u
n
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 i
n
 b

o
th

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 b
u
t 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 m

o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

.

T
h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
, 
a
n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 y

e
a
r.

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
ta

rg
e
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

e
t 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e
a
rs

. 
A

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 b

o
o
s
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
l 
ta

k
e
-u

p
. 
A

 t
o
o
lk

it
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
  
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 f
re

e
 s

c
h
o
o

l 
m

e
a
l 
ta

k
e
-u

p
, 
w

h
ic

h
 b

u
ild

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 o

f 
a
 t
w

o
-

y
e
a
r 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 O

b
ta

in
in

g
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
e
re

 c
a
te

ri
n
g
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 P

F
I 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
e
d
 p

ro
b
le

m
a
ti
c
, 
th

is
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 b

y
 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g
 P

F
I 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s

ta
ff
 i
n
 d

a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
.

T
h
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

is
 t
h
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r.
 T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 s
lig

h
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 R

A
G

 r
a
te

d
 a

m
b
e
r.

 T
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 o
n
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
lo

w
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

re
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 s

ta
rt

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t.
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 b
e
lo

w
 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
d
v
is

o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 

th
in

g
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

, 
s
e
lf
-e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
n
in

g
.

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 %

 o
f 
B

M
E

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

c
h
e
iv

in
g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 a

t 
k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 2

. 
T

h
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
A

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 s

in
g
le

 t
e
a
m

 

fo
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 e

th
n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
g
y
p
s
y
 r

o
m

a
 t
ra

v
e
lle

r 
p
u
p
ils

 w
ill

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
h
a
rp

e
r 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 u

n
d
e
r-

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 
In

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
th

is
 y

e
a
r 

a
 n

e
w

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
o
r 

k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 1

 a
n
d
 2

 a
im

e
d
 a

t 
P

a
k
is

ta
n
i 
p
u
p
ils

, 
s
h
a
p
e
d
 b

y
 a

 g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
h
e
a
d
te

a
c
h
e
rs

.

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 h

a
s
 a

g
a
in

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
L
IL

S
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 3

. 
E

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

re
 r

ig
o
ro

u
s
ly

 m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
d
. 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

 s
e
ts

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
.

Page 54



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
7
7

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
e
re

 

fe
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 5

0
%

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
5
 

o
r 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 

K
S

3
.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

b
e
r

F
a
ll

1
1

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
8
1

In
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 g

a
p
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 

L
e
v
e
l 
3
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
1
9

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%
 P

o
in

ts

F
a
ll

2
8
 %

 P
o
in

ts
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
2
7
.7

 %
 P

o
in

ts
N

o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
8
2

In
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 g

a
p
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 

L
e
v
e
l 
2
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
1
9

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
4
3
%

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

4
6
.8

0
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
8
4

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
2
 o

r 
m

o
re

 A
*-

 C
 g

ra
d
e
s
 

in
 S

c
ie

n
c
e
 G

C
S

E
s
 o

r 
e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
4
1
.2

0
%

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

4
4
.2

0
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
8
5
A

P
o
s
t-

1
6
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
s
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 

(A
 L

e
v
e
l 
P

h
y
s
ic

s
)

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

b
e
r

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

1
8
5
 p

u
p
ils

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
8
5
B

P
o
s
t-

1
6
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
s
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 

(A
 L

e
v
e
l 
C

h
e
m

is
tr

y
)

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

b
e
r

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

3
7
5
 p

u
p
ils

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
8
5
C

P
o
s
t-

1
6
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
s
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 

(A
 L

e
v
e
l 
M

a
th

s
)

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

b
e
r

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

4
8
8
 p

u
p
ils

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

6
3

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

6
2

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

5
9

6
0

6
1

6
4

6
5

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 i
s
 a

 c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
a
ll 

p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 F

E
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
 i
n

 L
e
e
d
s
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 e
n
te

re
d
 f
o
r 

A
-l
e
v
e
l 
p
h
y
s
ic

s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 

s
im

p
le

 c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
p
u
p
il 

e
n
tr

ie
s
, 
ra

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 p

u
p
ils

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 g

a
in

in
g
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t-

s
e
tt
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
u
b
je

c
t-

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 A
-L

e
v
e
l 
ro

u
te

s
 a

b
o
v
e
 o

th
e
r 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 r

u
n
s
 c

o
u
n
te

r 
to

 o
th

e
r 

s
tr

a
n
d
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 o
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 h

ig
h
-q

u
a
lit

y
, 
im

p
a
rt

ia
l 
IA

G
; 
a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 b
ro

a
d
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
h
ig

h
-q

u
a
lit

y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 v

o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 a

p
p
lie

d
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
.

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 i
s
 a

 c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
a
ll 

p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 F

E
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
 i
n

 L
e
e
d
s
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 e
n
te

re
d
 f
o
r 

A
-l
e
v
e
l 
m

a
th

s
. 
T

h
is

 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 a
 c

o
u
n
t 
o
f 
p
u
p
il 

e
n
tr

ie
s
, 
ra

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 p

u
p
ils

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 g

a
in

in
g
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t-

s
e
tt
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
u
b
je

c
t-

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 A
-L

e
v
e
l 
ro

u
te

s
 a

b
o
v
e
 o

th
e
r 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 r

u
n
s
 c

o
u
n
te

r 
to

 o
th

e
r 

s
tr

a
n
d
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 o
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 h

ig
h
-q

u
a
lit

y
, 
im

p
a
rt

ia
l 
IA

G
; 
a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 b
ro

a
d
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
h
ig

h
-q

u
a
lit

y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 v

o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 a

p
p
lie

d
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
.

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 s

h
o
w

s
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 R

A
G

 r
a
te

d
 a

s
 g

re
e
n
. 
 T

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

s
lig

h
tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 a

t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

le
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 f
o
r 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 d

ip
lo

m
a
s
 w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
 w

id
e
r 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
v
o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
w

is
h
 t
o
 p

u
rs

u
e
 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
G

C
S

E
s
 a

n
d
 A

-l
e
v
e
ls

, 
w

ill
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 r
e
a
c
h
in

g
 t
h
e
 L

e
v
e
l 
2
 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

.

T
h
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

is
 t
h
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r.
 T

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 s

h
o
w

s
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 R

A
G

 r
a
te

d
 a

s
 

g
re

e
n
. 
T

h
e
 g

a
p
 t
o
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 b

y
 3

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
, 
a
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 w

h
ile

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 s

ta
ti
c
.

T
h
e
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
g
a
p
 a

t 
1
9
 f
o
r 

F
S

M
 p

u
p
ils

 h
a
s
 n

a
rr

o
w

e
d
 b

y
 0

.9
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r,

 w
h
e
re

a
s
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
g
a
p
 h

a
s
 o

n
ly

 n
a
rr

o
w

e
d
 b

y
 0

.4
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

p
o
in

ts
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 R

A
G

 r
a
te

d
 g

re
e
n
. 
 I
n
 a

d
d
it
o
n
, 
th

e
 g

a
p
 h

a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

, 
s
o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 i
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

t 
a
 f
a
s
te

r 
ra

te
 t
h
a
n
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 a
n
d
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

T
h
e
 D

C
S

F
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

-l
e
v
e
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

a
n
y
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 F
o
r 

2
0
0

8
/0

9
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
, 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 t
e
s
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
le

te
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e
t.

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 i
s
 a

 c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
a
ll 

p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 F

E
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
 i
n

 L
e
e
d
s
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 e
n
te

re
d
 f
o
r 

A
-l
e
v
e
l 
c
h
e
m

is
tr

y
. 
T

h
is

 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 a
 c

o
u
n
t 
o
f 
p
u
p
il 

e
n
tr

ie
s
, 
ra

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 p

u
p
ils

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 g

a
in

in
g
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t-

s
e
tt
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
u
b
je

c
t-

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 A
-L

e
v
e
l 
ro

u
te

s
 a

b
o
v
e
 o

th
e
r 

p
o
s
t-

1
6
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 r

u
n
s
 c

o
u
n
te

r 
to

 o
th

e
r 

s
tr

a
n
d
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 o
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 h

ig
h
-q

u
a
lit

y
, 
im

p
a
rt

ia
l 
IA

G
; 
a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 b
ro

a
d
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
h
ig

h
-q

u
a
lit

y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 v

o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 a

p
p
lie

d
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
.

Page 55



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
8
6

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 j
u
d
g
e
d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 

g
o
o
d
 o

r 
o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
6
0
.4

5
%

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

6
3
.2

%

(2
4
/3

8
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
8
9
A

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 j
u
d
g
e
d
 

a
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
in

g
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

b
e
r

F
a
ll

4
N

.A
.

0
4
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
8
9
B

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 c

o
m

e
 o

u
t 

o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

b
e
r

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
2
0
 M

o
n
th

s
N

o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
9
0

T
a
k
e
-u

p
 o

f 
1
4
-1

9
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

ip
lo

m
a
s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

b
e
r

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

1
2
9
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
9
1

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
7
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
1
3

P
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
C

h
la

m
y
d
ia

 i
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

2
5
 

y
e
a
r 

o
ld

s

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
1
7
%

N
.A

.
N

o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
1
5

S
u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 b

y
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
1
4
.5

0
%

N
o
 C

h
e
c
k
lis

t

N
I 
1
2
6

E
a
rl
y
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

W
o
m

e
n
 t
o
 M

a
te

rn
it
y
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
8
5
%

8
0
.2

%

(2
2
7
1
/2

8
3
8
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

6
8

6
9

7
1

6
7

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

7
0

7
3

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

7
2

6
6

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 R

A
G

 r
a
te

d
 a

s
 a

m
b
e
r 

a
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 s

ta
y
e
d
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

s
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
.

O
n
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
c
a
m

e
 o

u
t 
o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r,

 w
h
ile

 a
n
o
th

e
r 

b
e
c
a
m

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 i
t.
 T

h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 c
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e

o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
, 
a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 b

y
 O

fs
te

d
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

.

T
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 t
h
is

 c
a
te

g
o
ry

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 S
in

c
e
 t
h
is

 t
im

e
, 
o
n
e
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
s
 c

o
m

e
 o

u
t 
o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
; 
A

lle
rt

o
n
 B

y
w

a
te

r 
h
a
s
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 g

o
o
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 v

is
it
s
 a

n
d
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 o

u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

 a
t 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
; 
th

e
re

 a
re

 s
tr

o
n
g
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

a
t 
th

e
 B

E
S

D
 S

IL
C

 w
ill

 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 t
h
is

 c
e
n
tr

e
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

 b
y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

is
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r;

 a
n
d
 S

o
u
th

 L
e
e
d
s
 H

ig
h
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
w

ill
 c

lo
s
e
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

is
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

to
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

n
 a

c
a
d
e
m

y
.

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
in

 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 s
in

c
e
 t
h
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 i
s
 a

 s
n
a
p
s
h
o
t 
o
f 
a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 a

 

v
a
lid

 O
fs

te
d
 j
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 3

1
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
. 
S

in
c
e
 t
h
is

 p
o
in

t 
M

o
rl
e
y
 H

ig
h
 S

c
h
o
o
l's

 b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

ju
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 G

o
o
d
 t
o

 O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

ju
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 

C
it
y
 o

f 
L
e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 S

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 t
o
 G

o
o
d
, 
s
o
 t
h
e
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
is

 o
n
e
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 m

e
a
s
u
re

.

D
a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r

1
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
(G

ri
m

e
s
 D

y
k
e
) 

c
a
m

e
 o

u
t 
o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 t
h
re

e
 o

th
e
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n

 s
p
e
c
ia

l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 l
o
n
g
 e

n
o
u
g
h
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rg

o
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ll 
re

c
e
iv

e
d
 g

o
o
d
 o

r 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 v

is
it
s
.

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
t 
o
f 
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 e

n
ro

lle
d
 o

n
 d

ip
lo

m
a
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
. 
P

le
a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h
is

 i
s
 a

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 a

s
 t
h
e
 o

w
n
e

r 
o
f 
th

e
 d

a
ta

-s
e
t 
is

 t
h
e
 D

ip
lo

m
a
 A

g
g
re

g
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
, 
w

h
o
 

w
ill

 p
u
b
lis

h
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
c
ti
v
e
 d

ip
lo

m
a
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 
W

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
k
n
o
w

 w
h
e
n
 t
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 H

u
b
 i
s
 n

o
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 p

u
b
lis

h
 t
h
is

 d
a
ta

 u
n
ti
l 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
. 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 h
ig

h
 t
a
k
e
-u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
tw

o
 d

ip
lo

m
a
s
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
. 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 v

is
it
e
d
 L

e
e
d
s
 C

o
lle

g
e
 o

f 
A

rt
 &

 D
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 

L
e
e
d
s
 C

o
lle

g
e
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g
 t
o
 s

e
e
 t
h
e
 D

ip
lo

m
a
s
 f
ir
s
t 
h
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
v
is

it
 w

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 P

ri
m

e
 M

in
is

te
r'
s
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 U
n
it
 a

n
d
 D

C
S

F
, 
to

 l
e
a
rn

 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

D
ip

lo
m

a
 r

o
ll-

o
u
t 
a
n
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 p

h
a
s
e
 t
w

o
 r

o
ll-

o
u
t 
th

is
 y

e
a
r.

 A
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fi
v
e
 d

ip
lo

m
a
s
 w

ill
 s

ta
rt

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e

r 
2
0
0
9
.

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 T

e
ll 

U
s
 S

u
rv

e
y
.

T
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
o
f 
8
0
%

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
o
f 
8
5
%

, 
s
e
t 
p
ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e
n
 m

e
t.
 B

u
t 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 0

9
/1

0
.T

h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 l
o
o
k
s
 a

t 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
w

o
m

e
n
 w

h
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 l
a
te

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h
 w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d
 s

o
c
ia

lly
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 

g
ro

u
p
s
.

Page 56



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
5
0

E
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

6
4
.1

0
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
5
1

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

 a
n
d
 a

d
o
le

s
c
e
n
t 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 (

C
A

M
H

S
) 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

b
e
r

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
1
2
 o

u
t 
o
f 
1
2

1
2
 o

u
t 
o
f 
1
2

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
5
3
A

P
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
b
re

a
s
t-

fe
e
d
in

g
 a

t 
6
-8

 w
k
s
 

fr
o
m

 b
ir
th

 (
B

re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
)

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
4
0
.6

0
%

4
1
%

(1
0
9
2
/2

6
9
1
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
5
3
B

C
o
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
b
re

a
s
t-

fe
e
d
in

g
 a

t 
6
-8

 w
k
s
 

fr
o
m

 b
ir
th

 (
B

re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
 c

o
v
e
ra

g
e
)

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
8
5
.2

0
%

8
8
.9

6
%

(2
3
8
4
/2

6
9
1
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
5
5
A

C
o
v
e
ra

g
e
 O

b
e
s
it
y
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 R

e
c
e
p
ti
o
n

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
9
1
.6

9
%

N
.A

.
9
1
.8

8
%

9
4
%

(7
2
0
1
/7

6
7
3
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
5
5
B

P
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 O

b
e
s
it
y
 /
 o

v
e
rw

e
ig

h
t 
a
m

o
n
g
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
p
ti
o
n
.

re
tu

rn
 t
o
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
le

v
e
ls

 o
f 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
0
0
.

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

9
.2

0
%

8
.4

7
%

(6
1
0
/7

2
0
1
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
5
6
A

C
o
v
e
ra

g
e
 O

b
e
s
it
y
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 Y

e
a
r 

6

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
9
8
.1

0
%

N
.A

.
9
8
.3

1
%

9
8
.6

%

(7
3
3
0
/7

4
3
1
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

8
0

7
6

7
7

7
8

7
9

7
4

7
5

 T
h
e
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

re
s
u
lt
 e

x
c
e
e
d
s
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
y
 2

%
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
  
a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 a

n
d
 i
s
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 a

s
 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
. 
T

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
o
v
e
rw

e
ig

h
t 
a
n
d
 o

b
e
s
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 2

0
0
0
 l
e
v
e
ls

. 
It
  
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 

o
b
e
s
e
 a

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

h
ild

 M
e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

N
C

M
P

).
 P

C
T

s
 a

re
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

 w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 w

e
ig

h
 a

n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 a
ll 

e
lig

ib
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

6
 a

n
d
 

re
c
e
p
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e
 0

8
/0

9
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
o
p
e
n
in

g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 b

re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
 c

a
fe

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 
b
re

a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
. 
 W

o
rk

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 (

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

fa
n
ts

 b
e
in

g
 b

re
a
s
tf
e
d
 a

t 
6
-8

 w
e
e
k
s
).

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

th
e
 d

u
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
re

a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
, 
th

e
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 i
n
 l
a
te

r 
lif

e
. 
 B

re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 i
n
fa

n
t 
m

o
rt

a
lit

y
, 
c
h
ild

h
o
o
d
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
.

T
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
 h

a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t.
  
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 b

re
a
s
tf

e
e
d
in

g
 s

ta
tu

s
. 
 H

e
a
lt
h
 V

is
it
o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 g

re
a
tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

th
e
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

h
a
v
e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t.

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 T

e
ll 

U
s
 S

u
rv

e
y
.

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 h

o
w

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

e
e
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
 T

h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 i
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 b

y
a
n
s
w

e
ri
n
g
 a

 s
e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
fo

u
r 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
. 
 D

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

y
e
a
r 

th
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 a
lt
e
re

d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

ls
o
 m

e
a
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
re

s
u
lt
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

a
s
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 1

6
 t
o
 1

2
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 w

h
y
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
 d

if
fe

rs
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

th
re

e
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 r
e
s
u
lt
s
.

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 m

o
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 f
u
ll 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
C

A
M

H
S

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
, 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 a

g
e
 a

n
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
m

a
tu

ri
ty

 a
n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

n
d
 a

 s
lig

h
t 
d
ro

p
 i
n
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 b

u
t 
w

it
h
 o

n
ly

 t
w

o
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 
re

s
u
lt
s
 i
t 
is

 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 d

is
c
e
rn

 t
re

n
d
s
. 
S

e
e
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
N

I 
5
5
a
 f
o
r 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
s
 f
o
r 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 a

n
d
 i
s
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 a

s
 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
.

T
h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
o
v
e
rw

e
ig

h
t 
a
n
d
 o

b
e
s
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 2

0
0
0
 l
e
v
e
ls

. 
It
  
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

6
 w

h
o
 a

re
 o

b
e
s
e
 a

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 b

y
 

th
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

h
ild

 M
e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

N
C

M
P

).
 P

C
T

's
 a

re
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

 w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 w

e
ig

h
 a

n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 a
ll 

e
lig

ib
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

6
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
e
p
ti
o
n
.

Page 57



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
5
6
B

P
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 O

b
e
s
it
y
 i
n
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 Y

e
a
r 

6
.

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

1
7
.7

2
%

1
9
.3

4
%

(1
4
1
7
/7

3
3
0
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
7
0

R
e
d
u
c
e
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

c
a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 d

e
lib

e
ra

te
 

in
ju

ri
e
s
 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

b
e
r

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

C
o
n
c
e
rn

s

N
I 
4
8

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 k

ill
e
d
 o

r 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
ly

 i
n
ju

re
d
 i
n
 r

o
a
d
 

tr
a
ff
ic

 a
c
c
id

e
n
ts

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 3
 y

e
a
r 

ro
lli

n
g
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 P
o
lic

y
A

n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
4
3

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

2
.9

%
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

(3
5
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

K
S

I 
2
0
0
8
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
1
1

F
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 

S
y
s
te

m
 a

g
e
d
 1

0
-1

7

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

b
e
r

F
a
ll

2
,0

7
6

1
,6

9
8

1
,8

7
7

1
5
3
0
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
9

R
a
te

 o
f 
p
ro

v
e
n
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 b

y
 y

o
u
n
g
 

o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

b
e
r

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

1
5
0

1
1
5

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 c
a
lc

u
la

te
d
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 c
a
le

n
d
a
r 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 u

s
e
s
 a

 3
 y

e
a
r 

ro
lli

n
g
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t
o
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 k

ill
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
ly

 i
n
ju

re
d
. 
T

h
e
 

2
.9

%
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 K

S
I 
is

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
e
 2

0
0
8
 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 
3
5
 i
s
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
c
h
ild

 K
S

I 
fi
g
u
re

 s
o
 f
a
r 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 s

in
c
e
 t
h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 
w

a
s
 f
o
rm

e
d
 i
n
 1

9
7
4
, 

a
n
d
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 1

8
.6

%
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
K

S
I 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
7
. 
T

h
is

 c
a
n
 b

e
 a

tt
ri
b
u
te

d
 t
o
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
: 
p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

u
d
it
s
 o

n
 1

0
0
%

 o
f 
n
e
w

 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 w

e
 m

e
e
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 s
e
t 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
, 
a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 r

a
is

in
g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l,
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
a
n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
ro

a
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
. 

F
u
tu

re
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
is

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

8
3

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

In
d
ic

a
to

r

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

8
5

8
1

8
2

8
4

T
h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 a
im

s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 r

a
te

 o
f 
fi
rs

t-
ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

ri
m

in
a
l 
ju

s
ti
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

g
e
d
 1

0
-1

7
. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 

ra
n
g
e
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 p

o
lic

e
 d

a
ta

. 
T

h
is

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 o

n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
ro

m
  
W

e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 L

e
e
d
s
 Y

O
S

 t
o
 t
h
e
 Y

J
B

 a
s
 a

 p
ro

x
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
N

I 
1
1
1
. 

T
h
e
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 
N

I 
1
1
1
 f
ig

u
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 B

o
a
rd

 o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
d
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

o
u
rc

e
d
 

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

o
m

p
u
te

r 
(P

N
C

).
 I
t 
is

 e
x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
fi
g
u
re

s
 w

ill
 c

h
a
n
g
e
. 
T

h
e
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d
 a

t 
6
 m

o
n
th

ly
 i
n
te

rv
a
ls

 a
n
d
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
y
 2

0
0
9
. 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 b

y
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
T

h
e
 c

o
h
o
rt

  
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 a

ll 
th

o
s
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 r

e
p
ri

m
a
n
d
 o

r 
fi
n
a
l 
w

a
rn

in
g
, 
c
o
u
rt

 d
is

p
o
s
a
l,
 o

r 
th

o
s
e
 w

h
o
 

a
re

 r
e
le

a
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 c

u
s
to

d
y
.

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
. 

T
h
e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

is
 d

a
ta

 r
e
lie

s
 u

p
o
n
 o

ff
e
n
c
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 b

e
in

g
 'b

ro
u
g
h
t 
to

 j
u
s
ti
c
e
' t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
rt

s
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
y
 c

a
n
 b

e
 c

o
u
n
te

d
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 c

o
h
o
rt

 w
h
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 t
h
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
1
8
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

e
ri
o
d
 h

a
v
e
 t
o
 b

e
 t
ra

c
k
e
d
 t
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

o
m

p
u
te

r 
a
s
 o

p
p
o
s
e

d
 t
o
 Y

o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 R

e
c
o
rd

s
. 
T

h
is

 d
e
la

y
s
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 a

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
fi
g
u
re

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 B

o
a
rd

 d
o
 n

o
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
 t
h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 3

1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
9
 w

h
e
n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
, 
if
 n

o
t 
a
ll 

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 

ru
n
 t
h
e
ir
 c

o
u
rs

e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 y

o
u
th

 c
o
u
rt

s
. 
A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 t
h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
is

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
. 
H

is
to

ri
c
a
lly

 t
h
is

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o

rd
e
r 

o
f 
a
 

4
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 o

ff
e
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

. 
E

v
e
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
is

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fi
g
u
re

, 
th

e
 Y

O
S

 a
re

 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

ill
 m

e
t.

D
a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 D

a
ta

 H
u
b
. 
A

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

.

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 w

it
h
 o

n
ly

 t
w

o
 y

e
a
r'
s
 d

a
ta

 i
t 
is

 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 d

is
c
e
rn

 i
f 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 t
re

n
d
. 
S

e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
N

I 
5
6
a
 f
o
r 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 

Page 58



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
4
3

Y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 

S
y
s
te

m
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 c
o
n
v
ic

ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

o
u
rt

 

w
h
o
 a

re
 s

e
n
te

n
c
e
d
 t
o
 c

u
s
to

d
y

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

F
a
ll

1
0
.6

0
%

N
.A

.
6
.8

0
%

1
1
.3

%

(2
1
0
/1

8
4
7
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
4
4

E
th

n
ic

 c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 o
n
 Y

o
u
th

 

J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S

y
s
te

m
 d

is
p
o
s
a
ls

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

4
.1

%
4
.1

%

(1
3
3
/2

5
2
2
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
4
5

Y
o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

' 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
6
8
.2

0
%

N
.A

.
7
3
%

7
6
.2

4
%

(1
1
7
1
/1

5
3
6
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
4
6

Y
o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

' 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
9
1
.5

0
%

N
.A

.
9
5
.9

0
%

9
3
.2

%

(1
5
5
7
/1

6
7
9
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

B
V

-3
8

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 f
iv

e
 o

r 

m
o
re

 G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
s
 A

*-
C

 o
r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

5
5
.9

0
%

5
9
.5

0
%

6
2
.4

0
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

rs

8
9

9
0

8
6

8
7

8
8

L
e
e
d
s
 Y

O
S

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

e
s
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 Y

O
T

s
  
in

 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 o

f 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 T

ra
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 
T

h
is

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 c
o
m

p
a
re

s
 t
o
 a

 Y
o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 &

 H
u
m

b
e
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 

6
8
.8

%
 a

n
d
 a

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
7
2
.2

%
. 
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
, 
a
n
d
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
1
6
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 a

n
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 E

T
E

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t
o
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 t
a
rg

e
t.

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
im

s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 y

o
u
th

 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 d

is
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

B
la

c
k
 a

n
d
 M

in
o
ri
ty

 E
th

n
ic

 (
B

M
E

) 
g
ro

u
p
s
. 

O
v
e
r 

th
e
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
Y

e
a
r 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
, 
5
.9

%
 o

f 
th

e
 y

o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 c
a
m

e
 f
ro

m
 a

 B
la

c
k
/ 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w

it
h
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 f
o
r 

th
is

 E
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
1
.8

%
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
o
v
e
rr

e
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 g

ro
u
p
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 f
ig

u
re

 w
a
s
 4

.6
%

 o
v
e
rr

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 f
ig

u
re

 w
a
s
 

4
.3

%
.

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
9
.2

%
 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
e
n
 t
o
 b

e
 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
re

c
o
rd

e
d
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 h

a
d
 m

in
im

a
l 
im

p
a

c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

(2
0
0
8
/0

9
) 

o
u
tp

u
t.
  
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 d
u
e
 

to
 a

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 p

ic
tu

re
 o

f 
fa

lli
n
g
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
, 
o
ff
e
n
c
e
 t
y
p
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
n
te

n
c
in

g
 c

u
lt
u
re

 w
h
ic

h
 v

a
ri
e
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 r

e
g
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
re

 c
it
ie

s
. 
H

is
to

ri
c
a
lly

 I
n
 L

e
e
d
s
, 
m

a
g
is

tr
a
te

s
 h

a
v
e
 

ta
k
e
n
 a

 m
o
re

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 

T
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
  
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

ri
v
e
n
 b

y
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 9

 m
o
n
th

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
e
rs

, 
e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 m

a
g
is

tr
a
te

s
 a

n
d
 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
T

h
e
 Y

O
S

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
ll 

c
u
s
to

d
y
 c

a
s
e
s
 b

y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

 l
o
c
a
l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 t
o
o
l 
w

h
ic

h
 

d
e
liv

e
rs

 f
o
rt

n
ig

h
tl
y
 u

p
d
a
te

s
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 c

u
s
to

d
y
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 d
ri
v
e
 o

n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

d
ia

l 
s
e
n
te

n
c
e
s
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

n
d
 1

0
/1

1
.

T
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

g
a
in

, 
to

 b
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
b
o
th

 t
h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
e
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
L
A

A
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 T

h
e
 g

a
p
 t
o
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 h
a
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 b

y
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

3
.2

. 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

th
a
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
, 

it
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 N

I 
7
5
 (

5
 A

*-
C

 G
C

S
E

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

s
 G

C
S

E
s
) 

s
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
e
ff
o
rt

s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
.

T
a
k
e
n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
lly

, 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 
2
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 o
f 
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 h

a
v
e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 a

 p
o
o
r 

s
ta

rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
a
lli

n
g
 

s
h
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 T

h
e
 t
u
rn

in
g
 p

o
in

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
3
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

Page 59



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

B
V

-3
9

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 f
iv

e
 o

r 

m
o
re

 G
C

S
E

s
 o

r 
e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
a
t 
g
ra

d
e
s
 A

*-

G
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

8
5
.8

0
%

8
9
%

8
8
.9

0
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

B
V

-4
0

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s

te
s
t.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

7
7
.0

0
%

8
2
%

7
7
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

B
V

-4
1

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 

th
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 E
n
g
lis

h
 t
e
s
t.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

8
1
.0

0
%

8
4
%

8
1
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

B
V

-4
5

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
a
lf
 d

a
y
s
 m

is
s
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 

to
ta

l 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
9
.1

0
%

7
.7

0
%

8
.3

4
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

B
V

-4
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
a
lf
 d

a
y
s
 m

is
s
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 

to
ta

l 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
5
.2

0
%

4
.6

0
%

5
.3

3
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

9
3

9
4

9
5

9
1

9
2

T
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
O

v
e
ra

ll 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 0

7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 T

e
a
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 L

in
k
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

A
d
v
is

e
rs

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 A

re
a
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
a
rd

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
o
 p

re
s
e
n
t 
a
re

a
 a

n
d
 c

lu
s
te

r 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 r
e
p
o
rt

s
. 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h
 A

M
B

s
/C

h
ild

re
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
, 
w

it
h
 a

n
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 c

lu
s
te

r 
d
e
liv

e
ry

, 
c
o
m

m
o
n
 p

o
lic

y
, 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

, 

lo
c
a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
, 
g
re

a
te

r 
o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 d

a
ta

. 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

re
a
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

re
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 T

e
a
m

.

T
h
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 s

e
e
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 L

e
e
d
s
 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
h
e
a
d
 o

f 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 

m
e
a
s
u
re

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

th
a
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
, 
it
 i
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
in

g
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 a

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r.

T
h
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 s

ta
ti
c
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 2

0
0
7
 l
e
v
e
ls

 w
h
ile

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
2
%

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

b
o
v
e
 2

0
0
6
 l
e
v
e
ls

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

th
a
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
, 
it
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 N

I 
7
3
  
(a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 b
o
th

 m
a
th

s
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

t 
L
e
v
e
l 
2
) 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 

fo
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 r

a
is

in
g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.

T
h
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
c
e
n
s
u
s
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 h

a
lf
-t

e
rm

s
 1

 t
o
 5

. 
T

h
e
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 T

e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 s

e
e
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

in
 p

e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
m

, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 `

R
e
a
c
h
 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

ta
rs

' i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
. 
A

 D
V

D
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 t
e
a
m

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 

a
n
d
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 a

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

a
c
k
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
d
e
liv

e
ry

. 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r.

T
h
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
L
e
e
d
s
' 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

b
o
v
e
 2

0
0
6
 l
e
v
e
ls

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

th
a
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
, 
it
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 N

I 
7
3
 (

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 b
o
th

 m
a
th

s
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

t 
L
e
v
e
l 
2
) 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 r

a
is

in
g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 n

e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.

Page 60



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

B
V

-1
8
1
A

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
4
-y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
5
 o

r 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 t
e
s
t 
in

  
E

n
g
lis

h

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

7
1
%

7
9
%

N
.A

.
N

o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

B
V

-1
8
1
B

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
4
-y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
5
 o

r 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 t
e
s
t 
in

 

M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

7
3
%

7
8
%

N
.A

.
N

o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

B
V

-1
8
1
D

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
4
-y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
5
 o

r 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 t
e
s
t 
in

 I
C

T

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

7
0
.2

0
%

7
4
%

N
.A

.
N

o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

C
Y

P
-E

N
A

1
1
C

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 

o
r 

m
o
re

 G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 A

* 
- 

G
 o

r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

8
8
.0

0
%

9
3
%

9
0
.6

0
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

C
Y

P
-E

N
A

1
1
D

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 

a
n
y
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 

4
.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

9
6
.3

0
%

9
7
%

9
7
.7

0
%

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

9
7

9
8

9
9

1
0
0

9
6

T
h
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 s

e
e
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 f
a
ll 

o
f 
2
5
%

 f
e
w

e
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 w

it
h
 

n
o
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 e

x
c
e
lle

n
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 a

n
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
th

a
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 
p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
is

 m
a
rg

in
. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 n
o
t 
b
e
in

g
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 a

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r,
 i
t 

re
m

a
in

s
 a

 k
e
y
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
.

T
h
e
 D

C
S

F
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

-l
e
v
e
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

a
n
y
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 F
o
r 

2
0
0

8
/0

9
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
, 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 t
e
s
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
le

te
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e
t.

T
h
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 a

 s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
is

 m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
s
e

e
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 o

v
e
r 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

. 
T

h
is

 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

fa
lls

 i
n
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
h
is

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 h

a
d
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 C

V
A

 f
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 5

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 
T

h
e
 g

a
p
 t
o
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 o
n
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

t.
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 n
o
t 
b
e
in

g
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 

a
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r,
 i
t 
re

m
a
in

s
 a

 k
e
y
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

4
-1

9
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
.

T
h
e
 D

C
S

F
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

-l
e
v
e
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

a
n
y
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 F
o
r 

2
0
0

8
/0

9
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
, 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 t
e
s
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
le

te
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e
t.

T
h
e
 D

C
S

F
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

-l
e
v
e
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

a
n
y
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 F
o
r 

2
0
0

8
/0

9
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
, 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 t
e
s
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
le

te
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e
t.

Page 61



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

L
A

A
-C

Y
P

1
R

a
is

e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
, 
M

a
th

s
 a

n
d
 

S
c
ie

n
c
e
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 

b
y
 2

0
0
8
, 
in

 a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 l
o
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

d
is

tr
ic

ts
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
N

R
F

, 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
5
0
%

 

o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
5
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 

e
a
c
h
 E

n
g
lis

h
, 
M

a
th

s
 a

n
d
 S

c
ie

n
c
e
 (

a
t 
K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
 3

)

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
1
2

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

L
A

A
-C

Y
P

1
2

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
ll 

L
e
e
d
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
5
0
%

8
0
%

(2
1
7
/2

7
2
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

L
A

A
-C

Y
P

5
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 a

 K
S

4
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 

p
o
in

ts
 s

c
o
re

 o
f 
le

s
s
 t
h
a
n
 2

6
0
.

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

e
ri
c
a
l

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
4

0
1
 S

c
h
o
o
l

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

L
A

A
-C

Y
P

1
0

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 n
o
t 

a
tt
a
in

in
g
 2

0
0
8
 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

 a
t 
K

S
4
 (

3
0
%

 

o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 o
r 

m
o
re

 G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 

g
ra

d
e
s
 A

*-
C

).

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

A
n
n
u
a
lly

N
u
m

b
e
r

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

0
1
 S

c
h
o
o
l

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

B
V

-1
6
3

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 c

e
a
s
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 a

 

re
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ra
n
ti
n
g
 o

f 
a
n
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

r 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 o
rd

e
r,

 a
s
 a

 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
t 
3
1
s
t 
M

a
rc

h
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

u
n
a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
 a

s
y
lu

m
 s

e
e
k
e
rs

) 
w

h
o
 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

fo
r 

6
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

r 

m
o
re

 o
n
 t
h
a
t 
d
a
y
.

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

7
.9

0
%

8
%

9
.2

%

(9
9
/1

0
8
1
)

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

L
K

I-
IY

S
S

1
T

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
in

to
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 
1
3
-

1
9
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
2
5
%

2
5
%

2
5
%

3
0
.4

1
%

(2
2
0
2
5
)

S
o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 

d
a
ta

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
1
0
6

1
0
1

1
0
2

1
0
3

1
0
5

1
0
4

T
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 N

I 
7
8
 (

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 
3
0
%

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

C
 G

C
S

E
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

s
).

 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
in

d
ic

a
to

r;
 t
h
e
 t
ra

je
c
to

ry
 i
s
 o

n
 c

o
u
rs

e
 f
o
r 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 b
e
lo

w
 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
a
n
d

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 s

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
e
v
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
 4

.

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
. 
T

h
is

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 o
rd

e
rs

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
e
s
s
io

n
a
l 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

A
s
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
 a

t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 h

a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 2

5
%

 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
y
 9

%
, 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 r
e
tu

rn
s
 a

re
, 
in

 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 a
tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

a
n
d
 m

o
re

 r
ig

o
ro

u
s
 

u
ti
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

y
s
te

m
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
h
ils

t 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t
ri
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
e
s
te

d
 d

a
ta

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 c

a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 r

u
le

d
 o

u
t.

A
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 2

1
7
 L

e
e
d
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 h

a
v
e
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

. 
T

h
e
 m

a
in

 f
o
c
u
s
e
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

th
is

 a
c
a
d
e

m
ic

 y
e
a
r 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
o
 

d
o
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
a
k
e
-u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 E

C
M

 s
u
rv

e
y
. 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
o
w

a
rd

 t
h
e
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 t
a
rg

e
t 
is

 o
n
 t
ra

c
k
.

T
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 
A

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
3
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 f
ro

m
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

is
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t,
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 6

0
%

 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

 f
o
r 

L
A

A
 r

e
w

a
rd

 

g
ra

n
t.

T
h
e
 D

C
S

F
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

-l
e
v
e
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

a
n
y
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 F
o
r 

2
0
0

8
/0

9
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
, 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 t
e
s
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
le

te
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e
t.

Page 62



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

4
 2

0
0

8
/0

9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

L
K

I-
IY

S
S

2
T

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
in

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

re
s
id

e
n
t 
1
3
-1

9
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
1
1
%

1
1
%

1
5
%

2
4
.3

1
%

(1
7
,6

0
1
)

S
o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 

d
a
ta

L
K

I-
IY

S
S

3
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d
 

1
3
-1

9
 g

a
in

in
g
 a

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
.

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
9
%

9
.9

%

(7
,2

3
7
)

S
o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 

d
a
ta

L
K

I-
IY

S
S

4
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d
 

1
3
-1

9
 g

a
in

in
g
 a

n
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
 

(b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

 3
0
%

 o
f 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

).

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
1
1
%

N
.A

.
4
.5

0
%

2
.8

%

(2
,0

6
4
)

S
o
m

e

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 

d
a
ta

L
K

I-
IY

S
S

6
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

in
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

T
a
rg

e
t 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

T
A

P
)

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

b
e
r

R
is

e
N

.A
.

2
,0

7
8

N
.A

.
3
8
2
6
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

L
K

I-
IY

S
S

8
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 

B
re

e
z
e
 c

a
rd

 h
o
ld

e
rs

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

.

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

b
e
r

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
4
0
0
,0

0
0

4
2
3
1
7
4
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s

S
o
m

e

C
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 

d
a
ta

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs

1
1
0

1
1
1

1
0
7

1
0
8

1
0
9

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
c
e
e
d
s
 b

y
 2

3
,1

7
4
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
d
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 B

re
e
z
e
, 
le

is
u
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
, 
s
p
o
rt

s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 a

n
d
 l
ib

ra
ri
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
B

re
e
z
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 

te
n
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
. 
 A

s
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 c

o
v
e
rs

 t
h
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

h
o
lid

a
y
s
 w

h
e
n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
v
e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
, 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 u

s
u
a
lly

 a
tt
a
in

s
 t
h
e
 

h
ig

h
e
s
t 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 f
ig

u
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

  
 T

h
is

 y
e
a
r 

(0
8
/0

9
) 

w
ill

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
. 
 N

e
x
t 
y
e
a
r,

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

a
n
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
.

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
1
5
%

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 b

y
 9

%
, 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 r
e
tu

rn
s
 a

re
, 
in

 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 a
tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

a
n

d
 m

o
re

 r
ig

o
ro

u
s
 u

ti
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

y
s
te

m
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
h
ils

t 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t
ri
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
e
s
te

d
 d

a
ta

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 c

a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 r

u
le

d
 o

u
t.

T
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
9
.9

%
 e

x
c
e
e
d
s
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
y
 0

.9
%

 ,
 t
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 r
e
a
c
h
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 s

e
e
n

 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
fi
rm

s
 t
h
e
 b

e
lie

f 
th

a
t 
lo

w
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 

w
e
re

 a
tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 l
o
w

 u
p
ta

k
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 M

I 
s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 s

ta
ff
. 

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t
ri
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
e
s
te

d
 d

a
ta

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 c

a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 r

u
le

d
 o

u
t.

A
c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 r

e
la

te
d
 t
o
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
is

 a
re

a
 i
s
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
m

p
lic

a
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 
c
o
s
t 
is

s
u
e
s
, 
ti
m

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 e

tc
. 

T
h
e
 h

o
m

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 L

e
e
d
s
 A

w
a
rd

 w
a
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 L

e
e
d
s
 A

w
a
rd

 a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 D

u
k
e

 o
f 
E

d
in

b
u
rg

h
 A

w
a
rd

 s
a
w

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
. 

T
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
4
.5

%
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 f
o
llo

w
 t
h
e
 t
re

n
d
 s

e
e
n
 i
n
 r

e
a
c
h
, 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

s
 t
h
e
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
M

I 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 i
s
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
  
a
n
d
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
/F

a
it
h
 S

e
c
to

r.

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t
ri
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
e
s
te

d
 d

a
ta

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 c

a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 r

u
le

d
 o

u
t.

A
t 
th

e
 c

lo
s
e
 o

f 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

fo
u
r,

 3
8
2
6
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

h
ic

h
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

re
s
u
lt
 b

y
 1

8
2
6
. 
  
T

h
e
 l
a
rg

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 u

ti
lis

in
g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
P

A
Y

P
 P

lu
s
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
 a

n
d
 a

s
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

3
 m

o
s
t 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 c
a
u
g
h
t 
u
p
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 d
u
ri
n
g
 Q

4
 a

n
d
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 f
o
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 
ra

n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) 
 
Date: 9 July 2009 
 
Subject: Scrutiny Inquiry – 14-19 Education Review 
 

        
 
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The 14-19 education review was one of the Scrutiny Board’s areas of inquiry for the 

2008/09 year, and has been carried forward to this year to complete. A copy of the 
original terms of reference for the inquiry is attached. 

1.2 Given the length of time that has elapsed since the beginning of this inquiry, the 
attached report provides the Board with an update on progress with the 14-19 review. 

1.3 As part of the inquiry the Board agreed that a number of working group activities and 
visits would take place. Members met with a number of providers from schools, 
colleges and the voluntary sector, to discuss their role in the future provision of 14-19 
education in Leeds. In addition, a number of members visited Sheffield to hear about 
their approach to 14-19 provision, for which the council was awarded beacon status 
last year, and to visit a number of providers. There is one further working group 
activity to be organized, with employers’ representatives. 

1.4 Following discussion of the update report at today’s meeting, the Board is asked to 
consider whether there is any further information that is required in order to complete 
this inquiry, and if so to consider updating the terms of reference to reflect any change 
in the scope of the inquiry.  

 

 

 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Kate Arscott 
 

Tel: 247 4189 

Agenda Item 9

Page 65



2.0 Recommendation 
 

2.1 That the Board considers the information provided and determines whether any 
further information is required to complete this inquiry. 

 
 
Background papers 
 
None 

Page 66



Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) Inquiry 
 

14-19 education review  
 

Terms of reference 
 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 In setting its work programme and priorities for 2008/09, the Children’s 
Services Scrutiny Board decided that one of its key priorities for the 
coming year would be to continue its focus on 14-19 education1. 

1.2 This inquiry builds on work done by the Scrutiny Board over a number 
of years, most recently last year, when young people at risk of 
becoming NEET (not in education, employment or training) were the 
focus of the board’s work. 

1.3 In order to decide on an appropriate and manageable focus for the 
inquiry, the board commissioned a working group from amongst its 
membership to scope the inquiry. The working group met with officers 
from Education Leeds on 3rd September 2008. 

 
1.4 The working group were concerned to identify areas where the Scrutiny 

Board’s input could add value to work already underway to improve 
education standards in Leeds, having regard to the proposed timescale 
for the inquiry. 

 
1.5 There are significant national and local changes taking place in the 

learning landscape for this age group. These include changes to the 
curriculum and the introduction of diplomas; the increase in 
apprenticeships; the raising of the leaving age; the transfer of funding 
from the Learning and Skills Council to local authorities; new 
information, advice and guidance (IAG) requirements; the local review 
of college provision; and the ongoing development of trusts and 
academies. 

1.6 The working group was given a brief introduction to the proposed 
confederation approach to future 14-19 partnership working across 
Leeds. Members also discussed a number of key questions that 
needed to be addressed to ensure that future models of delivery in 
Leeds will produce improved choice and outcomes for individual 
learners. 

1.7 The inquiry ties in to priorities in the Leeds Strategic Plan, the Local 
Area Agreement and the Children and Young People’s Plan, as well as 
the recommendations of the Joint Area Review. 

 
 

                                            
1
 All references to the 14-19 age group should be taken to extend to the age of 25 for young 
people with learning difficulties and disabilities. 

Page 67



2.0 Scope of the inquiry 
 
2.1 The purpose of the Inquiry is to make an assessment of and, where 

appropriate, make recommendations on how 14-19 provision in Leeds 
needs to develop in order to sustain the accelerated improvement in 
attainment in the medium term.  

 
The inquiry will focus on how a new partnership approach to 14-19 
provision will: 

 

• Meet the needs and aspirations of all learners 

• Meet the needs of society and the economy 

• Improve the quality and efficiency of provision 

• Deliver coherence, integration and impact in localities 
 
2.2 The Board hopes that its findings will provide a timely and positive 

contribution to the management of change, as part of the longer term 
14-19 review project. 

 
3.0 Comments of the relevant director and executive member 
 
3.1 Comments received have been reflected in the terms of reference. 
 
4.0 Timetable for the inquiry 
 
4.1 The inquiry will take place between November 2008 and February 

2009, with a view to issuing a final report in summer 2009.  
 
4.2 The inquiry will conclude with the publication of a formal report setting 

out the board’s conclusions and recommendations. 
 
4.3 It is planned that the inquiry will include a range of visits to service 

providers and meetings with stakeholders to complement the evidence 
gathered in formal sessions. 

 
5.0 Submission of evidence 
 
5.1 The following evidence will be considered by the Board 
 
5.2 Session One – Scrutiny Board meeting - 13th November 2008  

 
To consider background information from Education Leeds on the 
national and local policy context in terms of the drivers for change in 
the provision of 14-19 learning, including 
 

• New learning and training opportunities; 

• Wider participation and personalisation; 

• The proposed confederation model of partnership working 

• Examples of successful partnership working both locally and 
nationally 

Page 68



5.3 Working Group activities 
 

• Visit to one or more other local authorities to discuss their approach 
to 14-19 collaboration – 1st May 2009 

 

• Working group meetings with representatives of 
partners/stakeholders to discuss their roles in the future delivery of 
14-19 education and training in Leeds: 
Ø Employers 
Ø Providers 
Ø Young people 

 
  
5.4 Session Two – Scrutiny Board meeting - 7th May 2009 

 
 To consider any outstanding issues arising from session one and the 
working group activities  
 
To consider any updated information on developments since session 
one 
 
To consider members’ findings and to discuss issues arising with 
officers  
 
To consider the board’s emerging conclusions and recommendations 
to inform the production of the final inquiry report 

 
6.0 Witnesses 
 
6.1 The following witnesses have been identified as possible contributors 

to the Inquiry: 

• Education Leeds  

• School representatives 

• College representatives 

• Learning and Skills Council 

• Work-based learning providers 

• Employer representatives 

• Relevant council services – eg Regeneration, Jobs and Skills and 
Human Resources 

• Other local authorities 

• Integrated Youth Support Services 

• Governors 

• Young people 

• Providers of relevant support services including council services, 
other statutory providers and voluntary agencies 

 
 

Page 69



7.0 Monitoring Arrangements 
 
7.1 Following the completion of the scrutiny inquiry and the publication of 

the final inquiry report and recommendations, the implementation of the 
agreed recommendations will be monitored.   

 
7.2 The final inquiry report will include information on the detailed 

arrangements for monitoring the implementation of recommendations. 
 
8.0 Measures of success 
 
8.1 It is important to consider how the Board will deem whether its inquiry 

has been successful in making a difference to local people. Some 
measures of success may be obvious at the initial stages of an inquiry 
and can be included in these terms of reference. Other measures of 
success may become apparent as the inquiry progresses and 
discussions take place. 

 
8.2 The Board will look to publish practical recommendations. 

Page 70



Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) Inquiry 
 

14-19 education review 
 
1.0 Introduction 

1.1 There are significant national and local changes taking place in the learning 
landscape for the 14-19 age-group. These include changes to the curriculum and the 
introduction of diplomas; the increase in apprenticeships; the raising of the leaving 
age; the transfer of funding from the Learning and Skills Council to local authorities; 
new information, advice and guidance (IAG) requirements; the local review of college 
provision; and the ongoing development of trusts and academies. 

1.2 In September 2008, the Scrutiny Board agreed to undertake an inquiry assess and 
make recommendations on how 14-19 provision in Leeds needed to develop, with a 
particular focus on the proposed ‘confederation’ approach to future 14-19 partnership 
working across Leeds which aims to develop effective area partnerships between 
schools, colleges, work-based learning and other providers which can help them 
collaborate and plan together to: 

  

• Meet the needs and aspirations of all learners 

• Meet the needs of society and the economy 

• Improve the quality and efficiency of provision 

• Deliver coherence, integration and impact in localities 
 
1.3 The Scrutiny Board considered background information from Education Leeds on the 

national and local policy context in terms of the drivers for change in the provision of 
14-19 learning, visited another local authority to discuss their approach to 14-19 
collaboration, and met with representatives of providers and other stakeholders to 
discuss their roles in the future delivery of 14-19 education and training in Leeds. 

 
2.0  The 14+ Review 
 
2.1  There is general recognition that significant elements of the new 14-19 curriculum 

(which will be a statutory entitlement to all learners by 2013) cannot be offered by all 
post-14 providers as single institutions. This is particularly true of the 17 Diplomas, 
which include the provision of applied learning in a work-related sector and further 
study to enhance breadth or depth according to the learner’s interest. By September 
2009 there will be around 700 learners on diploma courses in Leeds, and an 
anticipated 5,000 by 2013. The Foundation Learning Tier offers qualifications at entry 
level and level 1 within the QCF (Qualifications and Credit Framework) needs to be in 
place in all local authorities by September 2010. Here too, each pathway will include 
vocational knowledge, skills and understanding where again there will be 
opportunities for stronger partnership provision and planning. A further incentive to 
stronger collaboration is the need to ensure learners have the widest possible choice 
of high quality courses. This is particularly the case for learners in many school sixth 
forms which would otherwise find difficulty in sustaining more specialist Level 3 A-
Level courses at a time of reductions in post 16 funding. 

 
2.2 A confederation or partnership model has been developed, similar to approaches 

which have emerged elsewhere in the country. These partnerships include secondary 
schools, specialist inclusive learning centres (SILCS), further education, training 
providers, employers, the voluntary, community and faith sector (VCFS) and higher 
education (HEI). The partners have agreed to work together to plan and deliver 

Page 71



aspects of 14+ provision within clear city-wide strategic protocols, and building on the 
already successful ‘local delivery partnerships’.  

 

2.3 A similar and complementary area-based approach is being developed to ensure the 
provision of comprehensive, accessible information advice and guidance (IAG) linked 
to Connexions and other functions of the Integrated Youth Support Service. 

 
2.4  A confederation or partnership approach to 14+ provision also has the potential to 

align well over the longer term in helping to focus learning and training opportunities 
alongside major regeneration projects as well as the wider functions of services and 
provision for children, young people, families and their communities. The 
development of this 14+ partnership approach thus links to a wider local authority 
agenda which aims to align service delivery at a more localised level through 
Children’s Trust arrangements. It will help ensure we have a more joined up approach 
to tackling key issues such as the young people who are not engaged in education, 
employment or training (NEET). 
 

3.0  Key developments 
 

3.1 A series of events have been held across the five area partnerships where most 
key partners have been involved in discussing improved collaborative arrangements 
around the 14-19 agenda. Also, we recently held a successful 14-19 Conference 
focused on collaboration and good practice that was well attended by representatives 
from all key stakeholder groups across the city. 

 
3.2 Broad terms of reference for the confederations or partnerships have been discussed 

and agreed.  Each area has developed an action plan for 2009-10 based on area 
needs, informed by city-wide priorities.  

 
3.3 A wide range of activities for providers and other stakeholders, parents and 

learners have been organised by the 14-19 Team to raise awareness of 14-19 issues 
and particularly the new curriculum offer.  

 
3.4 The transfer of staff from the LSC to the local authority is being handled sensitively 

and progressing well. A report has been to Executive Board outlining the new 
arrangements following the Machinery of Government changes transferring these 
powers from the LSC to the local authority and further reports will be submitted in due 
course. 

 
3.5 To deliver a coherent strategy and clear accountability for all key activity across the 

14-19 phase, is has been proposed that the IYSS Strategic Plan will be integrated 
with the 14-19 Plan in order to develop a 13-19 (25) Learning and Support Plan.   

 
3.6 Agreement has been reached on representation, remit and terms of reference for a 

city-wide partnership group reporting to the 14-19 Strategy Group to help plan 
provision and act to promote high quality learning opportunities and more consistent, 
impartial advice, guidance and support for learners with learning difficulties and/or 
disabilities LLDD aged 14-25. 

 
4.0  Next steps 
 

4.1 Agree appropriate leadership, co-ordination and accountability arrangements for the 
area partnerships. 

 

Page 72



4.2 Ensure that elected members through the Area Committee structures are consulted 
and involved in helping to shape and influence the implementation of area priorities 
in the 14-19 Plan. 

 
4.3 The new integrated approach to planning will be reflected in the key groups that direct 

and monitor planning in future. Elected members will be consulted as part of the 
review of the 14-19 Strategy Group, IYSS Strategic Board and their sub-groups to 
ensure structures reflect a collaborative approach to planning and delivery and are 
appropriately connected to area partnership arrangements.   

 
 
4.4 Develop a city-wide approach to support the needs of vulnerable learners and those 

with learning difficulties and/or disabilities 14-25. 
 
5.0  Recommendations 
 
5.1 It is proposed that a report is submitted to Scrutiny Board in 12 months time to update 

members on the effectiveness of the new collaborative approach to planning, funding 
and delivery. 

 
 
 
 

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
Report of the Director of Children’s Services 
 
Meeting: Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) 
 
Date:  9th July 2009 
 
Subject:  Youth Service user and non-user surveys 2009 
 

        
 
 
1.0   Background 

1.1 The Youth Service carries out an annual user consultation with young people to canvass their 
thoughts on a range of things from what causes them concern to the quality of their local 
provision. The requirement to carry out this activity was first established in the government 
policy Transforming Youth Work in 2002, and remains a useful tool for ensuring that young 
people contribute to the planning of provision. 

1.2 In addition the Youth Service commissions a separate consultation carried out with young 
people known to be ex-users or non-users of direct Youth Service provision. The purpose of 
this is to identify whether there are any responses the Service needs to consider in respect of 
the views of these young people. 

2.0 Methodology 

2.1 The user consultation was carried out through the use of questionnaires. These were provided 
to young people during youth work sessions being delivered by Youth Service staff. A total of 
1726 questionnaires were returned from across the city. The number of returns were broadly 
commensurate to local wedge populations, although some wedges exceeded their target 
number of returns. 

2.2 The number of respondents marks a significant increase on the 864 questionnaires received 
during last year’s consultation. 

2.3 Given the challenges of consulting with young people and the diversity of provision offered by 
the Youth Service, there are a small number of anomalies in the presentation of the findings. 
These anomalies arise from such things as some projects being specifically designed to attract 
young people from across the city. However, data analysis has been geared to limit the effect 
of this, and the anomalies are restricted to small sections of the findings which have no 
material effect on the overall findings. 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: John Bradshaw 

Tel:  214 5825 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 75



  

2.4 West Yorkshire Youth Association were commissioned to conduct the consultation with ex-
users and non-users of Youth Service provision. They reached 148 young people through 
schools, the care system, VCFS partners and  Connexions. The full report is appended to this 
report. 

3.0 Consultation Outcomes 

3.1 A key question asked in the consultation with service users was ‘Overall, how do you rate 
your youth provision?’ Of the 1514 who responded, 90.4% said it was either good or 
excellent. The full breakdown of responses is as follows: 

 

 

 

3.2 The full findings of the two consultation exercises will be taken into account by Youth Service 
managers and supervisors when planning future activities. Following last year’s consultation 
exercise Youth Service managers implemented local action plans to respond to key findings. 

3.3 One example of how these action plans translated into service improvement relates to a 
question young people were asked about where they would go for help with a range of specific 
problems. In the last consultation relatively few young people immediately identified their youth 
worker as being a person they’d approach with problems. Depending on the specific problem, 
between 5% and 10% of young people said they would turn to a youth worker for support. One 
of the actions carried out in some areas, therefore, was to raise awareness of the youth 
worker’s role as being to provide support with problems. The findings this year show that this 
figure has risen to between 21% and 42% depending on the particular problem.   

3.4 The provision of the report findings broken down by wedge will also highlight where such action 
planning has been most successful or can usefully be replicated or improved upon. The 
breakdown of findings by wedge can be obtained directly from the report author. 

4.0 Report presentation 

4.1 Appendix 1 presents a full analysis of the responses received from a total of 1727 young 
people who attend youth provision citywide that is delivered directly by Leeds City Council 
youth workers.  

4.2 Appendix 2 contains the full report that was commissioned to survey the views of young 
people known to be ex-users or non-users of provision delivered directly by the Youth Service  

5.0 Recommendations 

5.1 That Scrutiny Board notes the content of this report and receives the attached consultation 
findings. 

 
Background papers 
 
None 
 
 
 

Excellent Good OK Poor Very Poor 

758 
(50%) 

611 
40.4% 

126 
(8.3%) 

6 
(0.4%) 

13 
(0.9%) 

Page 76



Y
o

u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e

U
s
e
r 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

2
0
0
9

F
u

ll
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

o
f 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e
s

Page 77



T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
:

1
,7

2
7

C
it

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 T
e

a
m

-

4
4

S
o

u
th

 -
 

5
2
6

N
o

rt
h

 E
a

st
-

2
2
5

E
a

st
-

4
1
0

N
o

rt
h

 W
e

st
-

2
7
6

W
e

st
-

2
3
8

Page 78



A
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

…
E

q
u

a
li
ty

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

:

•
G

e
n

d
e

r: M
a

le
=

 4
2

%
F

e
m

a
le

=
 4

1
%

(7
2
7
)

(7
0
8
)

•
N

o
. 

o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

 d
is

a
b

il
it

y
:

6
%

(1
0

0
)

•
R

e
li

g
io

n
 a

n
d

 b
e

li
e

fs
:

B
u

d
d

h
is

t
<

1
%

(4
)

M
u

s
li
m

6
%

(1
0
9
)

C
h

ri
s

ti
a

n
2
7
%

(4
7
9
)

S
ik

h
1
.5

%
(2

4
)

H
in

d
u

<
1
%

(4
)

N
o

 R
e

li
g

io
n

3
7
%

(6
3
7
)

J
e
w

is
h

<
1
%

(6
)

O
th

e
r

2
.5

%
%

(4
3
)

Page 79



A
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

…
•

E
th

n
ic

it
y
:

W
h

it
e

M
ix

e
d

 R
a
c
e

A
s
ia

n
 o

r

A
s
ia

n
 B

ri
ti

s
h

-
B

ri
ti

s
h

1
1
9
0

-
W

h
it

e
 &

 B
la

c
k

5
1

-
In

d
ia

n
2
0

-
Ir

is
h

1
5

C
a

ri
b

b
e

a
n

-
P

a
k

is
ta

n
i

2
1

-
O

th
e
r 

W
h

it
e

3
-

W
h

it
e
 &

 B
la

c
k

5
-

B
a
n

g
la

d
e
s
h

i 
  
  
  
  
  
4
8

B
a
c
k

g
ro

u
n

d
 

A
fr

ic
a
n

-
K

a
s
h

m
ir

i
5

-
W

h
it

e
 a

n
d

 A
s
ia

n
  
  
  
  
 8

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
-

O
th

e
r 

A
s

ia
n

  
  
  
  
  
  
1
1

-
O

th
e
r 

M
ix

e
d

4
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
B

a
c
k

g
ro

u
n

d

B
a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k

O
th

e
r 

E
th

n
ic

B
ri

ti
s
h

G
ro

u
p

s
-

C
a

ri
b

b
e

a
n

1
6

-
C

h
in

e
s

e
0

-
A

fr
ic

a
n

2
6

-
Ir

is
h

 T
ra

v
e

ll
e

r
2

-
O

th
e

r 
B

la
c

k
2

-
G

y
p

s
y

 R
o

m
a

4

B
a
c
k

g
ro

u
n

d
-

O
th

e
r

1

B
a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

Page 80



H
o

w
 o

ld
 a

re
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

?

1
2

a
n

d

u
n
d
e
r

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

3
2

3

1
8

.7
%

2
9

3

1
7

%

3
5

0

2
0

.3
%

2
9

4

1
7

%

2
4

7

1
4

.3
%

1
0

9

6
.4

%

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

 a
n

d
 

a
b

o
v
e

4
7

2
.7

%

2
3

1
.3

%

9

0
.5

%

5

0
.3

%

3

0
.2

%

8

0
.4

%

D
id

n
’t
 a

n
s
w

e
r:

 1
6
 (

0
.9

%
)

Page 81



W
h

a
t 

d
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 d
o

?

1
4
2
5

1
6
0

5
0

5
1

7
1
2

0

2
0
0

4
0
0

6
0
0

8
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
2
0
0

1
4
0
0

1
6
0
0

S
c

h
o

o
l

C
o

ll
e

g
e

/

6
t
h

 F
o

r
m

W
o

r
k

in
g

U
n

e
m

-

p
lo

y
e

d

O
t
h

e
r

T
r
a

in
in

g
 

S
c

h
e

m
e

/
 

A
p

p
's

h
ip

Number of respondents

D
id

n
’t
 a

n
s
w

e
r:

 2
2

Page 82



W
h

e
re

 d
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 l
iv

e
?

1
5

5
6

1
2

2
7

6
9

1
9

4
1

6

0

2
0

0

4
0

0

6
0

0

8
0

0

1
0

0
0

1
2

0
0

1
4

0
0

1
6

0
0

Number of respondents

W
it

h
 o

n
e

/
 

b
o

t
h

p
a

r
e

n
t
s

W
it

h
 m

y
 

a
d

o
p

t
iv

e
 

p
a

r
e

n
t
s

W
it

h
 m

y
 

f
o

s
t
e

r
 

p
a

r
e

n
t
s

O
t
h

e
r
 

f
a

m
il

y
 

m
e

m
b

e
r

M
y

 o
w

n
 

p
la

c
e

H
o

s
t
e

l
O

t
h

e
r

D
id

n
’t
 a

n
s
w

e
r:

 2
4

Page 83



H
o

w
 o

ft
e

n
 d

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 

v
is

it
 t

h
e

ir
 y

o
u

th
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

?

1
8
3

8
3

8
2
4

3
5
9

5
3

1
0
7

0

1
0
0

2
0
0

3
0
0

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0
0

8
0
0

9
0
0

O
n

c
e

 a
 w

e
e

k
T

w
ic

e
 a

 w
e

e
k

3
+
 t

im
e

s
 a

w
e

e
k

O
n

c
e

 a

fo
rt

n
ig

h
t

O
n

c
e

 a
 m

o
n

th
L

e
s

s
 t

h
a
n

o
n

c
e

 a
 m

o
n

th

Number of respondents

D
id

n
’t
 a

n
s
w

e
r:

 1
1

8

Page 84



W
h

e
re

 d
id

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 h
e

a
r 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
ir

 y
o

u
th

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

?

5

8
2

6

3
1

4

2
7

2
9

3
4

1

1
2

5
4

0

1
0
0

2
0
0

3
0
0

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0
0

8
0
0

9
0
0

Relative/

Friend

School/

College

Poster

Flyer

Internet

Youth

Worker on

street

Connexions

PA

Other

Number of respondents

D
id

n
’t

 a
n

s
w

e
r:

 1
1
9

Page 85



H
o

w
 l
o

n
g

 d
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 s
p

e
n

d
 

tr
a

v
e

lli
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 y

o
u

th
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

?

L
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 5

 m
in

u
te

s
4
7
%

(8
1
1
)

5
 –

1
5
 m

in
u
te

s
3
1
%

(5
3
4
)

1
5
 –

3
0
 m

in
u
te

s
1
0
.5

%
(1

8
2
)

O
v
e
r 

3
0
 m

in
u
te

s
4
.5

%
(8

0
)

D
id

n
’t
 a

n
s
w

e
r:

 7
%

(1
2
0
)

Page 86



W
h

e
n

 i
s
 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 
ti
m

e
 f
o

r 
re

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 

to
 v

is
it
 t
h

e
ir
 y

o
u

th
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

?

W
e

e
k

d
a
y
s

(d
a
y
ti

m
e

):

2
5
1
 -

 1
6
%

F
ri

d
a
y

e
v
e

n
in

g
:

1
5
3
 -

 1
0
%

W
e

e
k

d
a
y

e
v
e

n
in

g
s

:

1
0
7
9
 -

 6
8
%

S
u

n
d

a
y

e
v
e

n
in

g
:

1
4
 -

 1
%

S
a
tu

rd
a
y

e
v
e

n
in

g
:

2
5
 -

 2
%

S
a
tu

rd
a
y

a
ft

e
rn

o
o

n
:

4
3
 -

 3
%

Page 87



W
h

y
 d

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 v
is

it
 

th
e

ir
 y

o
u

th
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

?

1
2

9
4

3
3

0

6
8

6

2
5

1
4

8
6

1
8

2

5
0

5
5

4
8

3
1

3

9
8

9

5
6

6

0

2
0
0

4
0
0

6
0
0

8
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
2
0
0

1
4
0
0 H

av
e

fu
n

M
ee

tw
ith

fr
ie

nds

For t
he

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
H

av
e 

a
sa

y

N
oth

in
g e

ls
e 

to
 d

o

B
e 

ta
ke

n s
er

io
usl

y

M
ak

e n
ew

 fr
ie

nds

Suppor
tf

ro
m

th
e 

sta
ff

Lea
rn

 n
ew

 th
in

gs G
o 

on tr
ip

s

D
is

cu
ss

pro
ble

m
s

Number of respondents

Page 88



W
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 

a
t 
th

e
ir
 y

o
u

th
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

?
  
P

a
rt

 1

3
4
4

5
4
9

2
4
7

1
4
0

8
0
5

6
6
8

6
6
9

2
1
2

2
3
0

3
2
3

2
2
7

1
3
6

3
9
4

2
7
4

2
9
5

6
2
9

5
3
7

0

1
0
0

2
0
0

3
0
0

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0
0

8
0
0

9
0
0 D

ru
gs

Educa
tio

n School

Sexu
al

 H
ea

lth H
IV

/A
ID

S
C

rim
e M

y R
ig

hts The
Art

s

Enviro
nm

ent

Pers
onal

 S
afe

ty

In
te

rn
atio

nal I
ss

ues A
lc

ohol Tra
in

in
g Exam
s

M
enta

l H
eal

th Tru
ancy Polit

ic
s

Number of respondents

Page 89



W
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 

a
t 
th

e
ir
 y

o
u

th
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

?
 P

a
rt

 2

3
7

3

2
5

6
2

6
0

1
8

7
1

8
7

1
9

0
1

8
4

1
4

2
1

4
4

3
1

6
3

5
0

5
4

1

2
4

7
1

2
0

1
2

0

5
9

3

0

1
0
0

2
0
0

3
0
0

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0
0

8
0
0

9
0
0

A
nim

al
 R

ig
ht

s
Sport

s

G
lo

bal
 W

ar
m

in
g

K
now

in
g

M
ys

el
f

G
et

tin
g C

er
tif

ic
at

es

R
el

at
io

nsh
ip

s
G

et
tin

g a
 jo

b

Volu
nte

erin
g

G
en

era
l H

ea
lth

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 is

su
es

R
unn

in
g

A
w

ay

D
is

cr
im

in
at

io
n

C
om

pute
rs

/I
T

Leg
al

 Is
su

es

Sel
fC

onfid
en

ce

In
dep

end
en

t L
iv

in
g

Number of respondents

Page 90



W
h

a
t 

d
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 w
a

n
t 

to
 k

n
o

w
 m

o
re

 a
b

o
u

t?
  

P
a

rt
 1

9
7

3
8

1
6

9
8

5
3

1
8

1
9

4
6

1
5

2
4

2
2

2
8

2
6

1
3

3
2

3
1

3
3

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0
0

1
2
0 Dru

gs
Educa

tio
n Sch

ool

Sex
ual

 H
ea

lth HIV
/A

ID
S

Crim
e

M
y 

Rig
hts The 
Art

s

Envi
ro

nm
en

t

Per
so

nal
 S

afe
ty

In
te

rn
at

io
nal

 Is
su

es Alc
ohol Tra
in

in
g Exa
m

s

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth Tru
an

cy Polit
ic

s
Number of respondents

Page 91



W
h

a
t 

d
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 w
a

n
t 

to
 k

n
o

w
 m

o
re

 a
b

o
u

t?
  

P
a

g
e

 2

2
4

9
4

1
5

3
7

1
3

1
3

1
7

3
3

2
6

1
9

2
9

1
9

2
7

8
7

2
1

1
9

02040608010
0

12
0

Anim
al R

ig
hts

Sports

G
lo

bal W
arm

in
g

Know
in

g
M

yself

G
etti

ng C
erti

fic
ate

s

Rela
tio

nship
s

G
etti

ng a
 jo

b

Volu
nte

erin
g

G
enera

l H
ealth

Dis
abili

ty
 is

sues

Runnin
g

Away

Dis
crim

in
atio

n

Com
pute

rs
/ I

T
Legal I

ssues

Self 
Confid

ence

In
dependent L

iv
in

g

Number of respondents

Page 92



H
o

w
 d

o
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 r
a

te
 t
h

e
ir
 

y
o
u
th

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
?

G
o

o
d

O
K

P
o

o
r

D
id

n
’t

a
n

s
w

e
r

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
6

9
.5

%
(1

,2
0
2
)

1
9

.5
%

(3
3
7
)

1
.5

%
(2

5
)

9
.5

%
(1

6
3
)

O
p

e
n

in
g

H
o

u
rs

5
7

.5
%

(9
9
6
)

3
0

.5
%

(5
2
6
)

3
%

(5
0
)

9
%

(1
5
5
)

S
a
fe

 t
o

 v
is

it
6
9
%

(1
,1

9
8
)

1
8
%

(3
0
9
)

1
.5

%
(2

1
)

1
1
.5

%
(1

9
9
)

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

5
4
.5

%
(9

4
3
)

2
8
%

(4
8
5
)

6
.5

%
(1

0
9
)

1
1
%

(1
9
0
)

A
p

p
e

a
ra

n
c

e

o
f 

b
u

il
d

in
g

4
6
.5

%
(8

0
4
)

3
2
%

(5
5
7
)

8
.5

%
(1

4
7
)

1
3
%

(2
1
9
)

A
tm

o
s

p
h

e
re

6
3
%

(1
,0

8
6
)

2
4
%

(4
1
2
)

1
.5

%
(2

9
)

1
1
.5

%
(2

0
0
)

Page 93



H
o

w
 d

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 r
a

te
 

th
e

ir
 y

o
u

th
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

?
A

g
re

e
N

o
t 

S
u

re
D

is
a

g
re

e
D

id
n

’t
 

a
n

s
w

e
r

T
h

e
 a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

 

a
re

 f
u

n
 a

n
d

 

in
te

re
s

ti
n

g

7
6

%
(1

,3
2
4
)

1
2

%
(2

0
3
)

2
%

(3
2
)

1
0

%
(1

6
8
)

I 
le

a
rn

 l
o

ts
 o

f 

n
e

w
 t

h
in

g
s

6
0

.5
%

(1
,0

4
5
)

2
6

%
(4

5
3
)

3
.5

%
(6

2
)

1
0

%
(1

6
7
)

I 
h

a
v

e
 a

 s
a

y
 

in
 w

h
a
t 

w
e
 

d
o

6
6

.5
%

(1
,1

4
4
)

1
9

%
(3

3
0
)

3
.5

%
(5

9
)

1
1

%
(1

9
4
)

T
h

e
re

’s
 l

o
ts

 

o
f 

u
s

e
fu

l 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

a
v

a
il

a
b

le

7
0

%
(1

,2
0
9
)

1
6

.5
%

(2
8
4
)

3
%

(5
6
)

1
0

.5
%

(1
7
8
)

Page 94



W
h

a
t 

d
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 s
a

y
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 s
ta

ff
 a

t 
th

e
ir

 y
o

u
th

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

?

A
g

re
e

N
o

t 
s

u
re

D
is

a
g

re
e

D
id

n
’t

 

a
n

s
w

e
r

A
re

 f
ri

e
n

d
ly

8
8

%
(1

,5
2
0
)

2
.5

%
(4

0
)

0
.5

%
(1

0
)

9
%

(1
5
7
)

T
re

a
t 

m
e

 

w
it

h
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t

8
5

%
(1

,4
6
6
)

5
.5

%
(9

8
)

0
.5

%
(7

)

9
%

(1
5
6
)

A
re

 e
a

s
y

 t
o

 

ta
lk

 t
o

8
3

%
(1

,4
3
6
)

6
%

(1
0
3
)

1
%

(1
6
)

1
0

%
(1

7
2
)

T
a

k
e

 m
e

 

s
e

ri
o

u
s

ly
7

9
.5

%
(1

,3
6
9
)

1
0

%
(1

7
4
)

1
.5

%
(2

4
)

9
%

(1
6
0
)

H
e
lp

 m
e
 t

h
in

k
 

a
b

o
u

t 
m

y
 

id
e
a
s
, 
h

o
p

e
s
 

a
n

d
 f

u
tu

re

7
4

%
(1

2
7
3
)

1
3

%
(2

2
3
)

2
%

(4
4
)

1
1

%
(1

8
7
)

Page 95



O
f 
th

o
s
e

 w
h

o
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

d
, 
h

o
w

 d
id

 

th
e

y
 r

a
te

 t
h

e
ir
 y

o
u

th
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

?
75

8
61

1

12
6

6
13

0

20
0

40
0

60
0

80
0

Number of respondents

E
xc

el
le

nt
G

oo
d

O
K

P
oo

r
V

er
y 

P
oo

r

E
x
c
e
ll
e
n

t
G

o
o

d
O

K
P

o
o

r
V

e
ry

 P
o

o
r

5
0

%
4

0
.4

%
8

.3
%

0
.4

%
0

.9
%

Page 96



W
h

a
t 

d
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 w
o

rr
y
 

a
b

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
ir

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
?

B
u

rg
la

ry
M

u
g
g
in

g
R

a
c
is

m
D

ru
g

s
A

lc
o

h
o

l

6
7
1

6
9
0

7
3
0

6
1
3

6
7
1

5
9
6

5
6
4

5
5
0

5
8
7

6
0
6

2
8
3

2
9
7

2
6
8

3
5
2

2
6
9

0

10
0

2
0

0

3
0

0

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0

0

8
0

0

Number of respondents

N
o

t
 W

o
r
r
ie

d

O
K

V
e

r
y

 W
o

r
r
ie

d

Page 97



W
h

a
t 

d
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 w
o

rr
y
 

a
b

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
ir

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
?

N
o

is
e

A
s
s
a

u
lt

S
e
xu

a
l

A
s
s
a

u
lt

G
ro

u
p
s
 o

f

p
e
o

p
le

c
a
u
s

in
g

tr
o

u
b
le

7
8
2

6
7
5

7
6
4

5
7
9

6
0

5
5

6
3

4
2

6

6
1
5

1
6
2

2
9
6

3
3
3

3
3
2

0

10
0

2
0

0

3
0

0

4
0

0

5
0

0

6
0

0

7
0

0

8
0

0

N
o

t
 W

o
r
r
ie

d

O
K

V
e

r
y

 W
o

r
r
ie

d

Number of respondents

Page 98



O
f 

th
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
, 

w
h
o
 w

o
u
ld

 t
h
e
y
 

g
o
 f

o
r 

h
e
lp

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
:

P
a
re

n
ts

F
ri

e
n

d
s

Y
o

u
th

 

W
o

rk
e
r

C
o

n
n

e
x
-

io
n

s
 P

A

O
th

e
r

B
u

ll
y

in
g

9
7
3

5
6
%

6
4
9

3
8
%

4
5
0

2
6
%

5
5

3
%

8
2

5
%

R
e

la
ti

o
n

-s
h

ip
s

5
6
1

3
2
%

1
,0

1
7

5
9
%

3
6
1

2
1
%

5
8

3
%

4
7

3
%

G
e

tt
in

g

a
 j

o
b

1
,0

2
0

5
9
%

2
8
5

1
6
%

5
3
8

3
1
%

3
3
9

2
0
%

5
9

3
%

G
o

in
g

 t
o

 

c
o

ll
e

g
e

1
,0

2
8

6
0
%

3
6
0

2
1
%

4
6
6

2
7
%

3
3
7

2
0

7
6

4
%

D
ru

g
s
/

A
lc

o
h

o
l

6
1
9

3
6
%

6
4
8

3
8
%

7
2
0

4
2
%

1
0
5

6
%

5
1

3
%

Page 99



O
f 

th
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
, 

w
h
o
 w

o
u
ld

 t
h
e
y
 

g
o
 f

o
r 

h
e
lp

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
:

P
a
re

n
ts

F
ri

e
n

d
s

Y
o

u
th

 

W
o

rk
e
r

C
o

n
n

e
x
-

io
n

s
 P

A

O
th

e
r

S
e
x
u

a
l

H
e

a
lt

h
5

6
3

3
3

%

5
9

9

3
5

%

6
6

7

3
7

%

1
4

5

8
%

7
4

4
%

M
e

n
ta

l

H
e

a
lt

h
8

1
9

4
7

%

3
8

9

2
3

%

5
2

8

3
1

%

1
1

2

6
%

8
6

5
%

P
ro

b
le

m
s

a
t 

h
o

m
e

5
1

6

3
0

%

8
2

1

4
8

%

6
3

7

3
7

%

9
8

6
%

5
9

3
%

P
ro

b
le

m
s

a
t 

s
c

h
o

o
l

1
,0

3
0

6
0

%

6
6

3

3
8

%

4
8

9

2
8

%

1
0

5

6
%

7
2

4
%

Page 100



      

Page 101



WYYA/IYSS/Non-User Servey/09 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 This consultation with non-users of LCC Youth Service provision was carried out by 
‘The Project,’ the Participation Department of West Yorkshire Youth Association. 
The purpose of it is to help identify whether there are any responses the Youth 
Service needs to consider when the findings are viewed in context of views 
gathered from young people in the user consultation. 

2.0 Consultation Parameters 

The Project was commissioned to canvass the views of young people on the 
following basis: 

 Young people not currently accessing Leeds Youth Service provision would 
be targeted

 The consultation would be based on relevant elements of the Youth Service 
user consultation questionnaire 

 include exploring how young people would like to be consulted in the future 

3.0 Participants 

3.1 Individuals and groups were identified through a range of Voluntary, Community & 
Faith Sector programmes, WYYA Connexions Mobile programme and Leeds high 
schools. Looked after children were also consulted. 

4.0  Methodology 

4.1 The consultation was based on the YS questionnaire, and was carried out 
predominantly by staff working through the questionnaire with individual or groups 
of young people, and discussing/clarifying their responses.  In addition to the 
questionnaire participants were invited to comment on the consultation itself and 
make recommendations on how the Youth Service could gather their views and 
opinions in the future. 

5.0  Responses 

5.1 148 young people participated in the consultation.  
125 were interviewed in sessions and through focus groups. 
23 responded to the direct mail out. 
0 responded to the online questionnaire. 

5.2  The gender and ages of participants can be seen in figure 1 overleaf. 

Page 102



Figure 1- Gender and Age Range of respondents

10

3

10

20

7 6
3

0 0

59

12

3

8

18

12

17

7
3

1

82

0 1 2
0

2
0 0 0 0

5

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 Totals

Male Female Unspecified

6.0 Demographics 

6.1  Respondents to the consultation were drawn from the city wedges as portrayed in 
figure 2  below 

18, 13%

38, 26%

18, 13%

28, 19%

32, 22%

6, 4%

4, 3%
North East

East

South

West 

North West

unspecified

WF&BD

WYYA/IYSS/Non-User Servey/09 

Page 103



7.0 Ethnicity, Religion and Ability 

7.1  The religion of respondents is represented in figure 3 below 

1
2

1

49

8

4

68

13

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18
20
22
24
26
28
30
32
34
36
38
40
42
44
46
48
50
52
54
56
58
60
62
64
66
68
70

Religion

Buddist

Hindu

Jewish

Christian

Muslim

Sikh

None

Unspecified

7.2 Thirty one of the respondents (21%) described themselves as being from non-white 
communities.

7.3  Of the respondents 107 (72%) described themselves as being from white 
communities

7.4  Of all respondents 10 (7%) didn’t tell us how they would define their ethnicity;  

7.5  Of the respondents 127 described themselves as non-disabled; 11 described 
themselves as disabled and; 10 didn’t respond. 

WYYA/IYSS/Non-User Servey/09 

Page 104



8.0 Living Circumstances 

8.1  Whether respondents lived at home with parent or elsewhere can be seen in figure
4 below 

124, 84%

21, 14%
3, 2%

Parents

Alternative

Unspecified

Figure 4

8.2  The young people not living with one or more biological parent includes: young 
people living in children’s homes; foster care; alternative relative; adoption and 
hostel.

9.0  What Concerns Young People?

9.1 Young people were asked their views about a range of things that affect quality of 
life in their local area, or that may be an area of concern for them. Their responses 
are shown in figure 5 below. 

Burglary – 135 respondents Mugging – 128 respondents 

15, 11%

37, 27%

83, 62%

Very Worried Slightly Worried

Not Worried at all

14, 11%

44, 34%70, 55%

Very Worried Slightly Worried

Not Worried at all

Cont’d overleaf 

WYYA/IYSS/Non-User Servey/09 

Page 105



Figure 5 Cont’d - what concerns young people?

Racism – 133 respondents    Drugs - 134 respondents 

11, 8%

34, 26%

88, 66%

Very Worried Slightly Worried

Not Worried at all

23, 17%

41, 31%

70, 52%

Very Worried Slightly Worried

Not Worried at all

Alcohol – 134 respondents    Noise – 133 respondents 

19, 14%

29, 22%

86, 64%

Very Worried Slightly Worried

Not Worried at all

15, 11%

17, 13%

101, 76%

Very Worried Slightly Worried

Not Worried at all

Assault – 133 respondents    Sexual Assault – 133 respondents

14, 11%

48, 36%
71, 53%

Very Worried Slightly Worried

Not Worried at all

19, 14%

36, 27%
78, 59%

Very Worried Slightly Worried

Not Worried at all

Cont’d overleaf 

WYYA/IYSS/Non-User Servey/09 

Page 106



Figure 5 cont’d – what concerns young people? 

Groups of people causing trouble 

136 respondents 

        

22, 16%

61, 45%

53, 39%

Very Worried Slightly Worried

Not Worried at all

9.2  The concerns reported by young people in the charts above have also  been 
analysed according to the school key stage at which they’re at – key stage 3 ages 
11 – 15 and Key Stage 4 ages 15 – 19. These findings are presented in the tables 
below at figure 6.

Burglary Very Worried Slightly Worried Not Worried at all

Key Stage 3 9 25 48

Key Stage 4 & 5 6 12 35
Cont’d over

Mugging Very Worried Slightly Worried Not Worried at all

Key Stage 3 9 31 41

Key Stage 4 & 5 5 13 29

Racism Very Worried Slightly Worried Not Worried at all

Key Stage 3 7 13 61

Key Stage 4 & 5 4 21 27

Drugs Very Worried Slightly Worried Not Worried at all

Key Stage 3 11 23 47

Key Stage 4 & 5 12 18 23

Alcohol Very Worried Slightly Worried Not Worried at all

Key Stage 3 10 18 53

Key Stage 4 & 5 9 11 33

Noise Very Worried Slightly Worried Not Worried at all

Key Stage 3 9 12 60

Key Stage 4 & 5 6 5 41

Cont’d overleaf 

WYYA/IYSS/Non-User Servey/09 

Page 107



WYYA/IYSS/Non-User Servey/09 

Figure 6 cont’d – what concerns young people 

Assault Very Worried Slightly Worried Not Worried at all

Key Stage 3 10 23 48

Key Stage 4 & 5 4 25 23

Sexual Assault Very Worried Slightly Worried Not Worried at all

Key Stage 3 12 17 52

Key Stage 4 & 5 7 19 26

Groups of people 
causing trouble 

Very Worried Slightly Worried Not Worried 
at all 

Key Stage 3 12 34 36

Key Stage 4 & 5 10 27 17

10.0 Young people’s involvement in activities 

10.1 Young people were asked a number of questions about their involvement with LCC 
Youth Service provision and activities they are currently involved in. For the 
purposes of this report the findings have been broken down into responses 
according to the school key-stage of respondents, and presented in figure 6 below 

Question Key Stage 
3

(11-14yr.

old)

Key Stage 
4 & 5 

(15-19 yr 

old)

YES 17 YES 15Do you know where your nearest LCC youth 

provision is? NO 68 NO 42

Didn’t know there were any 46 28
Prefer to do my own thing 21 22
It’s in an area I consider unsafe 1 2
Parents don’t allow me to go 2 1
I think it would be boring 8 18
No free time 13 12
My friends don’t go 18 16
Too far away 2 1

If you have 

never visited a 

LCC Youth 

Service

programme

before, please 

say why 
None in my area 14 5

Didn’t like the staff 0 4
No longer have the time 5 1
Now go to a new club 1 1
Parents stopped me going 0 0
Didn’t get on with people who went 0 1
Too far away 4 0
It was boring 3 1
Grew out of it 1 4

If you used to 

visit LCC youth 

provision but 

stopped going, 

please say 

why

Felt uncomfortable 0 2

Cont’d over 

Page 108



WYYA/IYSS/Non-User Servey/09 

Figure 6 cont’d – Young people’s involvement in activities 

Question Key Stage 
3

(11-14yr.

old)

Key Stage 
4 & 5 

(15-19 yr 

old)

More interesting activities 23 11
More advice about important issues 3 4
Involved in making decisions about 
what we do 

5 7

Better equipment 7 4
Friendlier staff 5 4

What would 

interest you in 

using LCC 

youth

provision

again? I would never use 2 1

Sport club 27 13

Music club 8 4

Scouts/guides 11 2

Dance 12 8

Drama 9 6

Religious youth group 1 4

Do you attend 

any other 

youth group or 

activity that is 

not organised 

by LCC? None

Other groups 

and activities 

given

Community youth club, After School Club, Cadets, horse 
riding, Boys 2 Men, choir, gym, Media and Film Society, ROAR 

11.0  What Are Young People’s Preferences? 

11.1  Young people were asked a range of questions about what their preferences would 
be if they were to attend LCC Youth Service provision. The findings are presented 
in figure 7 below. 

Figure 7 

Question Key Stage 
3

(11 to 14) 

Key Stage 
4 & 5 

(15 to 19) 
Less than 5 minutes 10 9
5 to 10 minutes 36 34
10 to 20 minutes 23 7

How far would you be 
prepared to travel to visit a 
LCC youth provision? 

More than 20 minutes 14 8

Drugs 30 15
Relationships 25 23
Training 18 11
School 23 7
Volunteering 25 23
Mental Health 16 10
HIV/AIDS 17 5
Disability Issues 18 6
Crime 32 10
My Rights 29 20
Discrimination 13 7
The Arts 30 21
Computers/IT 25 11

If you were to visit a 
youth provision, which 
things would you like to 
know more about? 

Cont’d overleaf

Page 109



WYYA/IYSS/Non-User Servey/09 

Figure 7 cont’d – what are young people’s preferences? 

Environment 24 8
Personal Safety 24 15
Knowing myself 19 15
International issues 14 10
Alcohol 34 16
Education 21 6
Getting a job 35 25
Exams 24 18
General health 18 10
Sexual health 33 17
Truancy 12 5
Running away 11 4
Politics 16 8
Animal rights 21 6
Legal issues 14 7
Sports 37 15
Getting certificates 11 8
Global warming 20 8
Independent living 15 22

If you were to visit a 
youth provision, which 
things would you like to 
know more about? 

Self confidendence 31 21

Posters 34 20
Flyers 21 13
Youth Workers on the 
streets

9 14

Youth Workers going to 
schools 

42 30

LCC website 6 6
Breeze Website 15 10

What do you think is the 
best way of telling 
young people about the 
youth provision 
available in their area? 

If we created a website 13 0

11.2 A key message across the age ranges was ‘young people want to do something’, 
experiential learning opportunities or diversionary activities.  Their emphasis was 
on achievement eg. raising awareness of issues of interest or creating 
materials/resources, trips and visits. They didn’t want information based provision 
where they were simply expected to learn from staff. 

12.0 Current Support Networks  

12.1 Young people were asked who they would go to if they had any one of a number of 
problems. Their responses are presented in the tables below in figure 8.

Bullying Parents Friends Teacher Connexions PA Other

Key Stage 3 53 35 30 2

Key Stage 4 & 5 21 37 7 2

Relationships Parents Friends Teacher Connexions PA Other

Key Stage 3 35 56 3 5 1

Key Stage 4 & 5 9 44 2 1
Cont’d over 

Page 110



WYYA/IYSS/Non-User Servey/09 

Figure 8 continued – who would you go to for help with… 

Getting a Job Parents Friends Teacher Connexions 

PA

Other

Key Stage 3 58 34 32 24 1

Key Stage 4 & 5 36 19 9 19 2

Going to College Parents Friends Teacher Connexions 

PA

Other

Key Stage 3 54 27 39 19 1

Key Stage 4 & 5 35 24 22 9

Drug / Alcohol Parents Friends Teacher Connexions 

PA

Other

Key Stage 3 41 30 25 12 1

Key Stage 4 & 5 12 38 3 5

Sexual Health Parents Friends Teacher Connexions 

PA

Other

Key Stage 3 37 35 21 14 1

Key Stage 4 & 5 11 36 5 6

Mental Health Parents Friends Teacher Connexions 

PA

Other

Key Stage 3 48 26 29 12

Key Stage 4 & 5 23 5 40 8

Problems at 
Home

Parents Friends Teacher Connexions 
PA

Other

Key Stage 3 52 37 35 14

Key Stage 4 & 5 5 40 8 6

Problems at 

School

Parents Friends Teacher Connexions 

PA

Other

Key Stage 3 52 37 35 14

Key Stage 4 & 5 17 39 17 13

13.0  promoting the Youth Service 

13.1 Young people were asked what they felt would be the best way of promoting the 
Youth Service. Their responses are shown in figure 10 overleaf. 

13.2  Of the respondents, 49% of young people felt that youth workers going into schools 
would be the most effective way of promoting the service.  On further discussion a 
majority gave assemblies and class talks as the best way of reaching young 
people.  Not the more traditional lunch time visits, as this was seen as interrupting 
their own time.

Page 111



Figure 10 – How to promote the Youth Service 

34

21

9

42

6

15 13

20

13 14

30

6
10

0
0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45

Posters Flyers YW on

Streets

YW going

into

schools

LCC

website

Breeze

website

Own

website

Age 11 to 14 Age 15 to 19

13.3 The popularity of printed materials was often the second format chosen by the 
young people along with youth workers promoting face to face either in schools or 
in communities.  These were described as ‘back up to remind people’.  It was 
highlighted that these needed to be relevant, clear and exciting, not photocopies or 
cheesy.  A large number of young people expressed an interest in designing 
promotional materials.

13.4 By far the lowest response was for website based promotion with only 50 positive 
responses for this medium.  Respondents were very clear that neither they nor their 
friends searched on line for local provision.  Therefore there would have to be 
promotion of the website in order to raise awareness, and it was felt that this would 
be better simply promoting the service. 

14.0 Evaluation  

14.1 Young people taking part in the consultation were asked to comment on the 
methodologies being used and make recommendations for future consultations. 

14.2 Despite the low awareness regarding LCC Provision 113 (78%) of respondents 
were pleased that they were being asked for their opinions.  With the majority of 

these stating that this gave them a good opinion of the Youth Service.

14.3 The questionnaire document was perceived as very unfriendly, being cramped and 
using language that was not easy to understand.  The very low number ie. 28 (7%), 
postal returns from over 400, despite enclosing a FREEPOST return envelope, 
would also support this.  We would normally expect around a 20% return on this 
type of direct mail shot.

14.4 Participants accepted that all the questions were relevant and important however, 
they felt this could have been broken down into 2 or 3 separate consultations 
across the year, rather than putting it all into one.  Many however, agreed that 
given the number of questions and variety of areas covered the multiple choice 
format was the best.

WYYA/IYSS/Non-User Servey/09 

Page 112



WYYA/IYSS/Non-User Servey/09 

14.5 It was stated that an on going programme of focus groups in high schools and 
through other providers would be a better way to carry out the consultation.  This 
would enable the questions to be broken down and focused on in more detail with 
more young people getting the opportunity to contribute.  The information gathered 
could then be collated at the end of the year to directly impact on decisions for the 
coming year. 

14.6 Young people wanted the sessions to be fun based with resources developed such 
as board games and quizzes in order to make the discussions more interesting. 

14.7 Young people were asked what they felt was the reason for no take up of the on-
line version.  All the young people who responded to this question felt that it was 
‘random’ and wouldn’t be something they or their friends would bother to find and 
complete.  They felt the way to overcome this was to either attach it to a social 
networking site such as Facebook, or email it directly to young people through their 
Leedslearning.net email accounts.  This would give it a more personal feel and 
would therefore raise it’s status.

15.0 Recommendations  

15.1 There were 6 consistent messages from the young people taking part in the 
consultation. These were further supported by the results from the questionnaires 
completed without the support of staff, ie. on the Connexions mobiles and 
submitted by post. The messages are listed below: 

 Increase the LCC Youth Service provision profile among young people across 
Leeds

 Use School visits, (assemblies class talks) to promote the service.  In particular 
targeting Year 11 within schools in order to establish or maintain relationships 
with post 16 

 Develop a range of high quality printed materials with young people, both area 
specific and generically recognisable citywide.  Including developing a 
logo/identity that is less corporate. 

 Where services are centralised to a local centre explore transport support to 
facilitate attendance and allay parents fears  

 Develop both age specific and cross age range provision focused on an activity 
which can enable young people to gain a sense of achievement.  This could be 
certificated or not, as appropriate.

 Raise awareness and understanding of Leeds City Council and local politics 
through citizenship at school and in youth groups.  Where young people were 
aware of Leeds City Council they perceived it as something working for their 
parents and they hadn’t connected it with youth provision or any other children 
and young peoples service. 

Page 113



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 

Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) 
 

Date: 9 July 2009 
 

Subject: Draft Terms of Reference 
 

        
 
 

 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 At the board’s meeting in June, members agreed to carry out an inquiry into the 
implications of population growth for children’s services in Leeds. 

1.2 Draft terms of reference for the inquiry will be circulated before the meeting.  

 

2.0 Views of the director and executive member 

2.1 The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules Guidance Notes also require that, before 
embarking on an inquiry, the board seeks and considers the views of the relevant 
director and executive member. These views will need to be taken into account in 
finalising the terms of reference. 

2.2 This topic was suggested by the Executive Members when they attended the board 
meeting in June. Any comments received on the draft terms of reference will be 
reported to the board at the meeting. 

 

3.0 Recommendation 

3.1 The board is requested to agree the terms of reference for the inquiry. 

 

Background papers 

None 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Kate Arscott 
 

Tel: 247 4189 

Agenda Item 11

Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) 
 
Date: 9 July 2009 
 
Subject: Work Programme 
 

        
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 A copy of the board’s draft work programme is attached for members’ consideration 

(appendix 1).  
 
1.2 The attached chart reflects the discussions at the board’s June meeting. The first 

sheet sets out a proposal for organizing the Board’s work, which seeks to maximize 
the number of issues that are accommodated within the work programme.  The 
subsequent sheets set out options in relation to each issue raised at the June 
meeting.  

 
1.3 The board is asked to consider which issues should be taken forward through the 

year, bearing in mind the need to create a manageable programme of work. 
 
1.4 In addition, the following documents are attached, to provide the Board with 

information on relevant issues currently being considered by the Executive Board: 
 

• Executive Board minutes of 17 June 

• Forward Plan extract 
 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 The board is requested to agree which issues to include in the work programme. 

Background papers 
 
None 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Kate Arscott 
 

Tel: 247 4189 

Agenda Item 12

Page 117



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) 2009/10 
 
Proposed work programme 
 

Quarterly overview/performance 
meeting 
 

Inquiries Working groups 

CYPP priority Organisational 
issue 

Safeguarding Resources Safeguarding Resources 

Places to go and 
things to do 

LSC Handover Safeguarding Preventative Duty Safeguarding Preventative Duty 

NEET Locality working 14-19 review  

Sex and 
Relationship 
Education (SRE) in 
schools (teenage 
conception) 

New types of school 
– federations, 
academies, trusts 

Population growth  

  Plus one from Maximum two from 

  Potential inquiry topics Potential inquiry or 
working group topics 

Potential working groups 

  21st century schools*  City of Leeds Request 

  Rose review*  Safer Schools 

  * these two could possibly 
be combined into a single 
inquiry with a primary focus 

 National Year of 
Volunteering 

`   Aiming High for Disabled 
Children (+ post-16 SEN 
provision) 

 

   Community Use of Schools  

   Coping with reduced 
funding 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
9



P
a
g
e
 1

2
0

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)  
Draft Work Programme 2009/10  

Item Description Suggestion Type of 
item 

Items carried forward from 2008/09 

14-19 education review Terms of reference set in autumn 2008 
Update report on July agenda 
 

Review in the light of the July session, and 
decide whether any further evidence is 
required 

 

Safeguarding Two inquiries in progress: 
Resources 
Preventative Duty 

Incorporate domestic violence as a theme 
within the Preventative Duty inquiry 

 

Attendance The Board agreed in May 2009 that 
progress should be reviewed before the 
end of the calendar year 

Working Group to meet in 
November/December 2009 

 

Items agreed at June 2009 meeting 

Population Growth Implications of population growth for 
children’s services in Leeds 

Inquiry One – October and November 2009  

Overview/performance • Regular overview of children’s 
services 

• Performance monitoring of LAA 
targets and APA/JAR 
recommendations 

• Recommendation tracking 

Continue to devote 1 meeting per quarter to 
these issues 
September 2009 
December 2009 
March 2010 
 
The Board may wish to choose one priority to 
focus on as part of each quarterly overview/ 
performance meeting 
 
The Board may also wish to choose one 
organisational issue to focus on as part of 
each quarterly overview/ performance meeting 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
1



Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)  
Draft Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Item Description Suggestion Type of 
item 

Possible items for 2009/10 work programme from June meeting 

Domestic Violence How children’s services meets the 
needs of children and young people 
arising from domestic violence 

Incorporate into the Safeguarding 
Preventative Duty inquiry 

 

Launch of new Children 
and Young People’s Plan 

New priorities identified for 2009-14 
 
 

Agree to focus on one priority as part of each 
quarterly overview/performance meeting 

 

Places to go and things 
to do 

Children and Young People’s Plan 
priority 
Chosen by children and young people 

Choose this as the priority area for one of the 
quarterly overview/performance meetings 

 

NEET Children and Young People’s Plan 
priority 
 

Choose this as the priority area for one of the 
quarterly overview/performance meetings 
 
Alternatively, incorporate into 14-19 Inquiry 

 

Handover from LSC The Learning and Skills Council will 
cease to exist from 1 April 2010. Some 
of its responsibilities will transfer to the 
council 

Incorporate into 14-19 inquiry 
 
Alternatively, choose as an organisational 
issue to focus on in one of the quarterly 
overview/performance meetings 

 

Post-16 provision for 
young people with SEN 

To consider how post-16 SEN pupils will 
be provided for in the review of 14-19 
provision 
 

Incorporate into the 14-19 inquiry 
 
Alternatively, combine with Aiming High for 
Disabled Children 

 

Aiming high for disabled 
children 

To consider how Leeds is responding to 
the needs of disabled children 
 

Potential inquiry or working group  

Community use of 
schools 

To review policies on the community use 
of schools 

Potential inquiry or working group  

National Year of 
Volunteering 

To look at the opportunities for 
volunteering in Leeds 

Potential working group  

P
a
g
e
 1

2
2



Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)  
Draft Work Programme 2009/10  

Item Description Suggestion Type of 
item 

21st century schools To consider how Leeds schools are 
preparing for the vision set out by the 
government 

Potential inquiry 
Possibly combine with the Rose review and 
focus on primary education 
Could also incorporate the suggested work on 
new school types 

 

Rose review To consider the impact of the primary 
curriculum review for Leeds schools 
 
 
 

Potential inquiry 
Possibly combine with the 21st century 
schools and focus on primary education 
Could also incorporate the suggested work on 
new school types 

 

Safer Schools To evaluate the Safer Schools 
Partnership initiative in Leeds 

Potential working group  

PHSE/SRE To evaluate sex and relationship 
education in Leeds schools 
 
 
 

Choose this as the priority area for one of the 
quarterly overview/performance meetings 
(priority on teenage conception) 
 
Alternatively, potential working group 

 

Coping with reduced 
funding 

It is widely anticipated that funding for 
public services will reduce over the next 
few years 

Potential inquiry or working group  

Children’s Trusts National changes have been deferred 
for a year 
 

Choose as an organisational issue to focus on 
in one of the quarterly overview/performance 
meetings 

 

New school types – 
federations, trusts and 
academies 

 
 
 
 

Choose as an organisational issue to focus on 
in one of the quarterly overview/performance 
meetings 

 

Locality working 
arrangements 

 
 
 

Choose as an organisational issue to focus on 
in one of the quarterly overview/performance 
meetings 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
3



P
a
g
e
 1

2
4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)  
Draft Work Programme 2009/10  

 
 

Item Description Notes Type 
of item 

Meeting date –  9 July 2009 

Youth Service Surveys To consider the results of the youth 
service surveys of users and non-users 

Requested by the Board in April 2009  

Performance Management  Quarter 4 information for 2008/09 (Jan-
Mar)  

All Scrutiny Boards receive performance 
information on a quarterly basis 

PM 

Meadowfield Primary 
School 

To agree the Board’s report arising 
from the Inquiry 

This report is carried over from 2008/09 RP 

14-19 Education Review To conduct the final session of the 
Board’s Inquiry 

This inquiry is carried over from 2008/09 DP P
a
g
e
 1

2
5



Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)  
Draft Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Item Description Notes Type 
of item 

Meeting date – 17 September 2009 

Formal responses to 
Scrutiny Board 
recommendations 

To receive the formal response to the 
following final inquiry reports: 

• Protecting our Environment 

• Entering the Education System 

 MSR 

Performance Management  Quarter 1 information for 2009/10 (April 
- June) 

All Scrutiny Boards receive performance 
information on a quarterly basis 

PM 

Children’s Services and 
the Children and Young 
People’s Plan 

To maintain an overview across the 
Board’s portfolio, and to monitor the 
development of the Children’s Services 
arrangements in Leeds 

The Board has previously agreed to monitor 
progress against the priorities in the Plan on 
a quarterly basis 

Includes tracking of progress against APA 
and JAR recommendations 

PM 

Recommendation 
Tracking 

This item tracks progress with previous 
Scrutiny recommendations on a 
quarterly basis 

 MSR 

Ofsted Inspections  

 

Biannual update on Ofsted Inspections 
and schools causing concern 

The Scrutiny Board agreed in 2006/07 to 
consider these reports to Executive Board 

PM 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
6



Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)  
Draft Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Item Description Notes Type 
of 

item 

Meeting date –  15 October 2009 

Formal responses to 
Scrutiny Board 
recommendations 

To receive the formal response to the 
following final inquiry report: 

• Meadowfield Primary School 

 MSR 

Population Growth To receive evidence for the first 
session of the board’s inquiry 

  

Meeting date – 12 November 2009 

Population Growth To receive evidence for the second 
session of the board’s inquiry 

  

Meeting date – 10 December 2009 

Performance Management  Quarter 2 information for 2009/10 (July-
Sept) 

All Scrutiny Boards receive performance 
information on a quarterly basis 

PM 

Children’s Services and 
the Children and Young 
People’s Plan 

To maintain an overview across the 
Board’s portfolio, and to monitor the 
development of the Children’s Services 
arrangements in Leeds 

The Board has previously agreed to monitor 
progress against the priorities in the Plan on a 
quarterly basis 

Includes tracking of progress against APA and 
JAR recommendations 

PM 

Recommendation 
Tracking 

This item tracks progress with previous 
Scrutiny recommendations on a 
quarterly basis 

 MSR 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
7



Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)  
Draft Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Item Description Notes Type 
of item 

Meeting date –  28 January 2010 

Inquiry Two To receive evidence for the first 
session of the board’s inquiry 

  

    

Meeting date – 25 February 2010 

Inquiry Two To receive evidence for the second 
session of the board’s inquiry 

  

    

Meeting date –  25 March 2010 

Performance Management  Quarter 3 information for 2009/10 (Oct-
Dec) 

All Scrutiny Boards receive performance 
information on a quarterly basis 

PM 

Children’s Services and 
the Children and Young 
People’s Plan 

To maintain an overview across the 
Board’s portfolio, and to monitor the 
development of the Children’s Services 
arrangements in Leeds 

The Board has previously agreed to monitor 
progress against the priorities in the Plan on a 
quarterly basis 

Includes tracking of progress against APA and 
JAR recommendations 

PM 

Recommendation 
Tracking 

This item tracks progress with previous 
Scrutiny recommendations on a 
quarterly basis 

 MSR 

School performance and 
Ofsted Inspections  

 

Annual report on school performance 
and biannual update on Ofsted 
Inspections and schools causing 
concern 

The Scrutiny Board agreed in 2006/07 to 
consider these reports to Executive Board 

PM 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
8



Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)  
Draft Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Item Description Notes Type 
of item 

Meeting date – 22 April 2010 

Annual Report To agree the Board’s contribution to the 
annual scrutiny report 

  

Scrutiny Board Inquiry 
Reports 

To finalise the Board’s inquiry reports   

 
Key:  
RFS – Request for scrutiny 
RP –  Review of existing policy 
DP – Development of new policy 
MSR – Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 
PM – Performance management 
B – Briefings (including potential areas for scrutiny) 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
9



Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)  
Draft Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Working Groups 
 

Working group Membership from 2008/09 Current position Meeting 
Dates 

Safeguarding - Resources Councillor Hyde 
Councillor Driver 
Councillor Gettings 
Councillor Selby 
Mr Britten 
Mr Falkingham 
Ms Foote 
Prof Gosden 

To consider the adequacy of current children’s 
social work resources to meet core child 
protection responsibilities 

 

 

30 July 

Safeguarding – 
Preventative Duty 

Councillor Driver 
Councillor Gettings 
Councillor Lancaster 
Councillor Selby 
Mr Britten 
Mr Falkingham 
Ms Kayani 
Ms Morris-Boam 

To consider the universal safeguarding duty and 
preventative work, particularly at a wedge level 

30 July 

14-19 review Councillor Hyde 
Councillor Cleasby 
Councillor Driver 
Councillor Lancaster 
Mr Britten 
Mr Falkingham 
Professor Gosden 

Inquiry carried over from 2008/09 – meeting with 
employers to be arranged 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

3
0



Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services)  
Draft Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Working Groups 
 

Attendance Councillor Hyde 
Councillor Gettings 
Mr Britten 
Mr Falkingham 
Professor Gosden 

The Board agreed in May 2009 that the working 
group should review progress before the end of 
the 2009 calendar year. 

Nov/Dec 2009 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

3
1



P
a
g
e
 1

3
2

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 17TH JUNE, 2009 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor R Brett in the Chair 

 Councillors A Carter, J L Carter, 
R Finnigan, S Golton, R Harker, P Harrand, 
K Wakefield and J Monaghan 

 
   Councillor R Lewis – Non-Voting Advisory Member 
 
 

1 Chair's Announcement  
In opening the meeting the Chair welcomed Councillor Monaghan to his first 
meeting as a member of the Board and Councillor R Lewis to his first meeting 
in his new role. 
 

2 Exclusion of the Public  
RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated exempt on the 
grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted 
or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public were present 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information so designated as 
follows: 
 
(a) Appendices 1 and 2 to the report referred to in minute 5 under the 

terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(2) and on the 
grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information by reason of the fact 
that 

 
(i) Appendix 1 identifies each property address that it is proposed 

be leased to LHC and as such could be used to identify the 
supported tenants who already live at those addresses 

(ii) Appendix 2 identifies each property address that it is proposed 
to be leased to GIPSIL and as such could be used to identify the 
supported tenants who already live at those addresses. 

 
(b) Appendix 2 to the report referred to in minute 16 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
it contains detailed sensitive information about the financial position of 
the Council and it is considered that the public interest in maintaining 
confidentiality outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information 
because release of this information at this time could prejudice the 
ongoing negotiations with the vendor. 

 
(c) Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 7 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 

Page 133



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

interest in disclosing the information because it refers to the Invitation 
To Qualify document which sets down the minimum requirements of 
FIFA which host cities must meet, England 2018 advises that the 
contents of the Invitation To Quality must not be made public and that 
Applicant Host Cities in breach of this condition may be disqualified 
from the Host City bidding competition, accordingly some of the 
information provided for Members is contained in the exempt section of 
this report on the basis that disclosure could prejudice the  outcome of 
the bid and the commercial interests of the Council. 

 
(d) Appendix A to the report referred to in minute 10 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
it is considered not to be in the public interest to disclose this 
information at this point in time as it could undermine the Council’s 
position in negotiating with the building owner, the release of this 
information could also prejudice the Council’s interests in relation to 
this or other similar transactions in that the land owner of this or other 
similar properties would obtain information about the nature and level 
of consideration which may prove acceptable to the Council. It is 
considered that whilst there may be a public interest in disclosure, 
much of this information will be publicly available from the Land 
Registry following completion of any transaction and consequently the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing this information at this point in time. 

 
3 Declaration of Interests  

Councillor Wakefield declared a personal interest in the item relating to the 
Outline Business Case for the West Leeds Academy as a governor of Leeds 
City College. 
 

4 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 13th May 2009 be 
approved. 
 
NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING 
 

5 Lease at Less Than Best Consideration - Agreement to Lease 28 
Miscellaneous Properties to GIPSIL and Leeds Housing Concern on a 25 
Year Lease Agreement  
The Director of Neighbourhoods and Environment submitted a report on a 
proposal to grant a long lease at less than best consideration for 28 Council 
owned miscellaneous properties to GIPSIL and LHC, for the purpose of 
refurbishment and improvement for accommodation for vulnerable tenants. 
 
The report presented the option of the Council retaining the properties with 
the only alternative of open market disposal in the absence of funding to 
renovate them. 
 

Page 134



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

Following consideration of appendices 1 and 2 to the report designated as 
exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(2) which were 
considered in private at the end of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – That the 28 properties listed in appendices 1 and 2 to the 
report be leased to GIPSIL and Leeds Housing Concern, at a peppercorn rent 
for a 25 year period at less than best consideration and that authority be given 
for formal negotiations to complete the leasing arrangements. 
 

6 Area Committee Roles for 2009/2010  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report outlining 
the proposed delegated Area Functions and other roles for the ten Area 
Committees during 2009/10. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the Area Functions and Well Being Function be delegated to Area 

Committees for 2009/10 as summarised in the submitted report. 
(b) That the enhanced roles of Area Committees as summarised in the 

report and the newly defined roles as detailed in Appendix 1 be 
endorsed. 

(c) That this information be reported to the Area Committees at the next 
cycle of meetings. 

(d) That the Area Functions referred to be incorporated into the Council’s 
Constitution at the next available opportunity. 

(e) That a report be brought to a future meeting of the Board with regard to 
the issue of advertising on lampposts. 

 
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

7 Football World Cup 2018  
The Director of City Development submitted a report providing an update on 
the new information received from the Football Association and seeking 
approval from the Board to take forward the bid response. 
 
Following consideration of appendix 1 to the report designated as exempt 
under the terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and 
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the additional information provided by England 2018 in relation to 

the Host City bidding process be noted. 
(b) That a bid from Leeds be formulated on the basis that the City wishes 

to be selected as a Host City for World Cup 2018. 
(c) That all necessary steps be taken to publicise the Leeds bid and to 

seek support from the community for the bid, in particular by 
encouraging all those in favour to register their support on the England 
2018 website. 

(d) That the Director of Resources identify an appropriate revenue budget 
to facilitate the delivery of the Leeds bid document by the end of 
October 2009. 

Page 135



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

(e) That the Chief Executive commence dialogue with City Region partners 
to establish how they wish to be involved in the Leeds bid. 

(f) That, in view of the fact that the deadline for submission of the (draft) 
Outline Bid will not allow for the submission of a further report to this 
Board, the Chief Executive be authorised, in consultation with the 
Leader of the Council, to approve the submission. 

 
8 Planning Appeals at Royds Lane, Rothwell and Fleet Lane, Oulton  

The Director of City Development submitted a report on the outcome of recent 
planning appeals on greenfield sites at Royds Lane, Rothwell and Fleet Lane, 
Oulton, and the implications, if any, for the Council’s approach to greenfield 
developments. 
 
The report presented the following options:-  

(a) accepting the need for greenfield release recognising a deficit in the 
5 year housing land supply; and  

(b) concluding that greenfield release, in the circumstances outlined 
within the report, would be inappropriate. 

 
RESOLVED – That option (b), as detailed within paragraph 8.11 of the 
submitted report and as detailed above, be approved. 
 

9 South Leeds Regeneration Area Governance Arrangements  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods and the Director of City 
Development submitted a joint report outlining a proposal to establish a 
governance framework for an informal partnership covering the regeneration 
of a large area of South Leeds. 
 
In presenting the report, Councillor A Carter reported receipt of a message 
from the Chair of Renew on the day of this meeting and undertook to address 
the comments made in that message. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the opportunities for regeneration and investment in South Leeds 

and the findings outlined in the work already undertaken be noted. 
(b) That the establishment of appropriate governance arrangements in 

order to co-ordinate the Steering Group be approved. 
(c) That officers be authorised to establish the Management/Investors’ 

Group, Partnership Engagement Group with MPCL and other 
interested private sector organisations. 

(d) That the joint working with MPCL and the production of an Investment 
Strategy for South Leeds be supported. 

(e) That the Executive Member for Regeneration and Development be 
appointed as Chair of the Steering Group and that the Member 
Management Committee be requested to appoint four further political 
representatives from the South Leeds Area to the Steering Group. 

 
 
 
 

Page 136



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

10 47-57 Chapel Hill, Morley: Acquisition, Demolition and Development  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report outlining 
the proposed scheme design and related expenditure for the acquisition of 47-
57 Chapel Hill, Morley and 1-8 Bank Court, Bank Street, Morley. 
 
Following consideration of Appendix A to the report designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which was considered at 
the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the project brief and scheme design as presented be approved 

and that the Asset Management Board be authorised to approve the 
final detailed design of Phase 2. 

(b) That authority be given to spend the amount referred to in exempt 
Appendix A to the report and that the Director of Resources be 
authorised to approve expenditure of the balance remaining shown in 
exempt Appendix A in the Town and District Regeneration Scheme 
12154/MOR/000. 

 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

11 Playbuilder Initiative  
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report on the Playbuilder 
Project and the intended programme to build or significantly refurbish twenty 
two playgrounds or informal play spaces across the City. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That approval be given for the injection of £1,145,914 into the Capital 

Programme (capital scheme no: 15390) fully funded by DCSF grant. 
(b) That authority to spend be given in respect of the sixteen play sites 

identified in appendix 2 to the report. 
(c) That approval be given to the Play Partnership recommendation to 

seek working solutions for the development of the remaining six sites 
with partners in the Council. 

(d) That a further report be brought to the Board recommending the 
location and provider of the remaining six sites. 

 
12 Proposal to Add Specialist Community Provision at Whitkirk Primary 

School for Pupils with Complex Physical Difficulties and Medical Needs  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on a proposal to 
establish specialist community provision at Whitkirk Primary School for pupils 
with complex physical difficulties and medical needs. 
 
RESOLVED – That approval be given for consultation on a proposal to make 
a prescribed alteration to Whitkirk Primary School so as to establish a 
resourced base for primary age children with complex physical needs. 
 
 
 
 

Page 137



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

13 Submission of the Outline Business Case for Leeds West Academy  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on the Outline 
Business Case for Leeds West Academy as part of the Council’s Wave 1 
Building Schools for the Future Programme and on associated expenditure. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That approval be given to the Outline Business Case for Leeds West 

Academy of the Council’s Wave 1 Building Schools for the Future 
Programme and authority be given for its submission to the 
Department for Children, Schools and Families and to Partnerships for 
Schools. 

(b) That approval be given to the injection of additional expenditure of 
£17,018,000 financed by additional BSF Capital Grant Funding from 
DCSF into the Capital Programme, arising from the change from 
school to academy status as detailed in section 8 of the report. 

(c) That scheme expenditure of £31,128,000 from capital scheme number 
15414 for Leeds West Academy be authorised. 

(d) That approval be given to the application of the previously approved 
City Council contribution of £2,529,000 to be committed elsewhere in 
the Leeds BSF Wave 1 Programme. 

(e) That the Board notes that further reports relating to 14-19 provision will 
be submitted to Executive Board for consideration, including a report to 
the next meeting on confederation arrangements. 

 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter)  
 

14 Children and Young People's Plan 2009/14  
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report presenting the 2009-
2014 Children and Young People’s Plan for approval, prior to its submission 
to Full Council and Government Office. 
 
RESOLVED – That Council be recommended to adopt the Children and 
Young People’s Plan for Leeds 2009-2014, as attached to the report, as part 
of the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework. 
 

15 Expanding Primary Place Provision  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on trends in  
population growth and the changing context for planning primary school 
places in Leeds; on the proposed immediate response to the pressures for 
additional reception places in 2010/2011; and outlining planning 
arrangements to ensure sufficient places to meet future needs. 
 
In presenting the report Councillor Harker indicated that he had requested that 
this matter should be the subject of Scrutiny. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the changing context for the provision of primary school places 

and the potential  demands on capital programmes in the future be 
noted. 

Page 138



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

(b) That approval be given to communications with relevant stakeholders 
and the Schools Adjudicator and the DCSF as outlined in section 6 of 
the report. 

(c) That further reports be brought to the Board on proposed expenditure 
and future planning proposals, including a report to the next meeting of 
the Board regarding the arrangements being made to manage the 
provision of reception places required for September 2010. 

 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter)  
 
 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

16 Roundhay Road Relocation Project  
Further to minute 198 of the meeting held on 12th March 2008 the Director of 
Adult Social Services submitted a report providing an update on the proposed 
accommodation solutions in place, and the costs associated with the 
implementation of these, to support the relocation of remaining services from 
the Roundhay Road site to alternative ‘fit for purpose’ accommodation. 
 
Following consideration of Appendix 2 to the report designated as exempt 
under the terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which was 
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the contents of the report and the proposed accommodation 

solutions outlined in Appendix 1 be noted. 
(b) That expenditure of £1,100,000 on this scheme as outlined in the 

exempt appendix 2 to the report be approved. 
(c) That the Roundhay Road site be declared surplus to  requirements 

subject  to the completion of the acquisition of the property at 
Killingbeck. 

(d) That the demolition of the building be approved subject to the 
completion of the appropriate option appraisal taking into account both 
the potential impact on the asset value and the ongoing costs of 
security. 

 
17 Response to Council Deputation - Provision of Changing Place Toilets in 

Leeds  
The Director of Adult Social Care submitted a report in response to the 
deputation to Council by the ‘All Means All’ organisation on 22nd April 2009. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the actions being taken to provide city centre based changing 

places toilets be noted. 
(b) That the work undertaken to agree a specification for a changing 

places toilet be noted. 

Page 139



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

(c) That a further report be brought to this Board in six months time which 
will recommend a strategy for the provision of changing places toilets in 
Leeds. 

(d) That a further report be submitted to the Board providing an update on 
the current position prior to the end of this year. 
 

CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 

18 Taxi and Private Hire Licensing: Age Criteria Proposals - Deputation to 
Council  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) submitted a report in 
response to the deputation to Council from the GMB Trade Union on 22nd 
April 2009. 
 
RESOLVED – That the contents of the report, the rationale behind the 
proposals and the information that will be available to the decision makers be 
noted. 
 

19 Financial Performance Provisional Outturn 2008/09  
The Director of Resources submitted a report on the Council’s financial 
outturn position for 2008/09, including both revenue and capital and the 
Housing Revenue Account. The report also detailed revenue expenditure and 
income compared to the approved budget, and reported on the outturn for 
Education Leeds and the ALMOs. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the report be noted. 
(b) That the transfer of £4,800,000 to general reserves be agreed in 

accordance with paragraph 3.8 of the report. 
(c) That the carry forward of £1,300,000 Area Based Grant be agreed as 

outlined in paragraph 3.7 of the report. 
(d) That contributions to and the use of Housing Revenue Account 

Reserves be agreed as outlined in the report. 
 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter)  
 

20 Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11 Refresh: Amendments to Partnership 
Agreed Indicators  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) submitted 
a report proposing a number of amendments to the partnership agreed targets 
in the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11, the Local Area Agreement for Leeds. 
 
RESOLVED – That appendix 1 to the report be approved as the Council’s 
proposed revisions and additions to the partnership agreed targets in the 
Leeds Strategic Plan. 
 

21 Annual Report on Risk Management  
The Director of Resources submitted a report providing an overview of the key 
risk management developments for the Council over 2008/09, reporting on the 

Page 140



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

corporate risk register and highlighting future areas of work to improve the 
Council’s risk management arrangements. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report and the progress made on further embedding 
risk management across the authority be noted. 
 

22 Review Process for the Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Licensing 
Policy  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) submitted a report 
providing information on the review process for the Gambling Act 2005 
Statement of Licensing Policy and advising of the methodology and timeframe 
for the final approval of the revised Policy, taking into account the statutory 
requirements for consultation and the expressed expectations of Full Council. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the methodology and timeframe for the adoption of the gambling 

policy be noted. 
(b) That the draft policy be referred to Full Council for Members to 

comment on the draft as part of the initial consultation process with 
stakeholders. 

(c) That the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) be 
authorised to undertake public consultation as outlined in the report. 

(d) That the revised policy and the results of any subsequent consultations 
on the draft policy be referred to Scrutiny Board (Central and 
Corporate) with a request that Scrutiny report back to the Executive 
Board on the 9th December 2009. 

 
23 Procurement of a Corporate Interactive Voice Response (IVR) Solution  

The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) submitted 
a report providing an update on the steps taken to date to procure a corporate 
IVR solution, providing responses to the recommendations of the Scrutiny 
Board (Central and Corporate Functions) and seeking support for the release 
of the funding necessary for this project to continue. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the development of a corporate IVR solution for the Corporate 

Contact Centre be approved. 
(b) That authority be given for the allocation and expenditure of £262,000 

from the ICT capital development pot to support the development of a 
corporate IVR solution. 

 
(Under the provision of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he voted against the decisions taken in this 
minute) 
 
(The matters referred to in this minute were responding to a previous Call In 
decision, and were therefore not eligible for further Call In)  
 
 
 

Page 141



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:  19TH JUNE 2009 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN: 26TH JUNE 2009 
 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items called in by 12.00 noon on 
29th June 2009) 
 
 

Page 142



LEEDS CITY COUNCIL 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
 

Extract relating to Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) 
 

For the period 1 July 2009 to 31 October 2009 
 

Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 

representations to) 

Changes to Admission 
Numbers for Primary 
Schools in 2010 
To note the outcome of 
consultation with schools 
and submission to the 
adjudicator 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Children's 
Services) 
 

22/7/09 With Schools 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Chief Executive of 
Education Leeds 
jackie.green@educatio
nleeds.co.uk 
 

East Moor Secure 
Children's Centre 
To decide whether to move 
to the next stage of 
constructing a replacement 
for East Moor following 
contract negotiations with 
DCSF and Youth Justice 
Board. 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Children's 
Services) 
 

22/7/09 Extensive consultation 
with ward members 
and local community 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of Children's 
Services 
david.mcdermott@leed
s.gov.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

4
3



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 

representations to) 

Proposals  for changes to 
primary provision in the 
Richmond Hill area 
Final decision following 
statutory notice 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Children's 
Services) 
 

22/7/09 n/a 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Chief Executive of 
Education Leeds 
lesley.savage@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Connexions Intensive 
Support Services 
Contract Award 

Chief Officer - Early 
Years and 
Integrated Youth 
Service 
 

10/8/09 Wide ranging 
consultation process 
has taken place 
involving all key 
stakeholders, existing 
providers and the 
Directorate of 
Children’s Services 
 
 

Award Report 
 

Chief Officer - Early 
Years and Integrated 
Youth Service 
gerry.hudson@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Playbuilders Capital 
Programme - Update 
To accept the update and 
agree the final 
recommendations 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Children's 
Services) 
 

26/8/09 Children’s Services 
Leadership Team, 
Strategic Play 
Partnership 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Chief Officer - Early 
Years and Integrated 
Youth Service 
sally.threlfall@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

4
4



 
 
NOTES 

 
Key decisions  are those executive decisions: 

• which result in the authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £250,000 per annum, or 

• are likely to have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards 
 

Executive Board Portfolios Executive Member 
 

Central and Corporate Councillor Richard Brett 

Development and Regeneration Councillor Andrew Carter 

Environmental Services Councillor James Monaghan 

Neighbourhoods and Housing Councillor John Leslie Carter 

Leisure Councillor John Procter 

Children’s Services  Councillor Stewart Golton 

Learning Councillor Richard Harker 

Adult Health and Social Care Councillor Peter Harrand 

Leader of the Labour Group Councillor Keith Wakefield 

Leader of the Morley Borough 
Independent Group 

Councillor Robert Finnigan 

Advisory Member Councillor Richard Lewis 

 
In cases where Key Decisions to be taken by the Executive Board are not included in the Plan, 5 days notice of the intention to take such 
decisions will be given by way of the agenda for the Executive Board meeting.  

P
a
g
e
 1

4
5



P
a
g
e
 1

4
6

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 11th June 2009
	7 Request for Scrutiny - City of Leeds High School
	Request for Scrutiny - City of Leeds High School - Appendix 1

	8 Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 4 2008/09
	Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 4 2008-09 - Appendix 1
	Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 4 2008-09 - Appendix 2 a
	Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 4 2008-09 - Appendix 2 b
	Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 4 2008-09 - Appendix 3

	9 Scrutiny Inquiry - 14-19 Education Review
	Scrutiny Inquiry - 14-19 Education Review - Appendix 1
	Scrutiny Inquiry - 14-19 Education Review - Appendix 2

	10 Youth Service user and non-user surveys 2009
	Youth Service user and non-user surveys 2009 - Appendix 1
	Youth Service user and non-user surveys 2009 - Appendix 2

	11 Draft Terms of Reference for Scrutiny Inquiry - Population Growth
	12 Work Programme
	Work Programme - Appendix 1 a
	Work Programme - Appendix 1 b
	Work Programme - Appendix 1 c
	Work Programme - Appendix 2
	Work Programme - Appendix 3


